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If efforts are made to work passionately and strive for excellence,

anyone can make an impact. From defying gravity, to making space
travel a reality, the only thing that make impossible feats a possibility
is the drive to go beyond expectations, and the aspiration to be bigger

and better.

GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited is proud to present its
Annual Report for the year 2021. This report focuses on Stakeholder
Information, Corporate Governance, Directors’ Report and Financial

Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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GSK Consumer Healthcare

Pakistan Limited starts

operations as an
independent company.
= GSK Consumer business demerged from

20 GSK Pakistan Limited.

GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
5 Limited formed.
m GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited formed from

Novartis OTC portfolio.

GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited

20 -
merged with and into GSK
Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited.

m GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan

20 Limited gets listed on Pakistan Stock ® GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Exchange. Limited (GSK CH) inherits

17 » Transfer of Market Authorization and manufacturing facility (Jamshoro] &
Jamshoro manufacturing License to GSK its portfolio with leading brands like

OTC (Pvt.) Limited. CaC-1000 Plus, Qalsium-D, Voltral
Emulgel, T-day and Lamisil.

Transfer of Marketing
authorizations and

= Transfer of Marketing authorization of

manufacturing license of Panadol, Eno, Hydrozole and Brevoxyl
GSK OTC (Pvt.) Limited to 20 in the name of GSK Consumer

GSK Consumer Healthcare

Pakistan Limited.

Healthcare Pakistan Limited.

) ® Deployment of SAP in the Commercial division of
Deployment of SAP in the
the Company to have a standard set of processes

with ONE ERP.

manufacturing division of
the Company.

20 = Panadol has become the biggest Pharmaceutical / Over the Counter (OTC) brand of
Pakistan. Additionally, CaC-1000 Plus ranks as 4" largest Pharmaceutical / OTC
brand versus 7" last year.*

® | aunch of Panadol Extend.

*|QVIA MAT Nov'21

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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The Year = Earning
Turnover per year

24 | Rs. 18.23

20 w
billion
21 ( = W Profit

Gross Profit 1 after tax
at a 6 6b|ll|on : % 2 1b|ll|on

GLANCE

Market
Dynamic / Highlights

in Sensitivity Prescribed
Pharmaceutical Category Calcium
Industry supplement
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What We Do

Our Core Values
Our Business

We are a science led Global
Healthcare Company that
researches and develops
innovative Consumer
Healthcare products.

The company is engaged in
manufacturing, marketing,
and sale of consumer
health care products.

Our Global
Research

GSK has a significant
global presence in
more than 150
markets, a network of
manufacturing sites
globally and large R&D
centers in the UK, USA,
Belgium and China.

Consumer Healthcare is a global unit, represented by
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited.

How Are We
Structured

Our commercial operations
are structured as a
combination of regional
units and areas of focus.
Each business benefits
from GSK’s global
commercial infrastructure,
international supply
networks, innovative R&D
and significant scale.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



Our Business Model

=5

Inputs

Organization operates on robust
systems and process based on
comprehensive and reliable inputs in
respective areas of the business:

e Commissioning most effective
financial models to continue tracking
business sufficiency and risk
management.

* Driving forecast accuracy to enable
efficient sourcing and manufacturing.

e Empirical understanding of category
insights to design winning strategy for
consumers, experts & shoppers.
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Outputs

Integrated business strategy and
reliable inputs result in actionable
outputs:

e Sustainable growth in Sales in line
with growth objectives.

e Coverage expansion across
geographies and regions.

e Delivery of financial plans.

Business Activities

Winning strategy for sustainable growth
is driven by following salient business
activities:

e Consumer sight driven campaigns
and activations based on empirical
inputs.

e Well defined expert strategy with
expansion mind set. Aim to improve
prescription share with Best-in-call
detailing practices.

e Winning at point of purchase with
Best-in-Call instore strategy serving
to facilitate shoppers and enable
customers for a better mutual
relationship.

* Route-to-market strategy for a
national footprint and better
consumer outreach.

e Compliance to responsible ways of
Working.

Outcomes

e Compliant business conduct.

e Sustainable growth in business
value and volume.

e Growth in category and prescription
share.

e Customer satisfaction and
brand loyalty.

e Shareholders trust and confidence.

08



Key Brands

Panadol

Panadol, GSK Consumer Healthcare’s flagship
brand, is the first choice for fever and pain relief
among consumers and doctors. With a value
share of 21.2%’, Panadol is the market leader in
the pain relief category. In 2021, the brand not
only maintained its category leadership but also
achieved a major milestone as it emerged as the
No. 1 Pharmaceutical brand of the country?.

Panadol has now become a household name in
Pakistan, built on a history of trust and
credibility, spanning several decades. The brand
portfolio consists of a diverse range of solutions
for Fever, Pain and Cold & Flu with varying
strengths for all age groups. Owing to its medical
heritage and strong brand equity, Panadol is the
most prescribed brand by experts in the
analgesics segment with a prescription share of
67%3.

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the incidence of fever increased significantly,
those who were affected turned to Panadol to
treat fever and body pain, leading to a surge in
brand consumption. Moreover, the brand was
present at the right touchpoints to contribute in
mitigating the spread of COVID-19. This
reinforced that Panadol stands shoulder to
shoulder with the consumers during the crisis.

Panadol delivered exceptional business results
with a 22.9%?* value growth over 2020, translating
into a PKR 9.1 billion® brand.

2021 was an exciting year for the brand with the
introduction of PANADOL EXTEND. With its
superior bi-layer technology, Panadol Extend
offers long lasting relief for up to 8 hours and is
available in a first ever consumer pack of 20
tablets. The launch helped the brand to expand
into multiple pain states such as joint pain, back
pain, and muscle pain. Panadol Extend’s launch
reinvigorated the brand and has been very well
received by consumers and doctors alike.

ﬂ 20 Tablets

FevercJoint pain
K paincTooth Ache

The key objective of Panadol Extend is to recruit
new users and upgrade existing consumers by
driving stronger efficacy and sustained relief
proposition. A 360-degree marketing
communication was rolled out to maximize
awareness on Panadol Extend through
conventional and digital channels positioning it
as a suitable solution with extended pain relief.
In parallel, the brand focused on strengthening
shopper and expert connections through
authentic, relevant, and talkable experiences.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



LONG LASTING
RELIEF FOR

UPT°8 HOURS

BI-LAYER
TECHNOLOGY

1t LAYER
For IMME

2" LAYER
rorR EXTENDED
RELEASE

A marketing campaign was also aired on Panadol
EXTRA Toughies’. The objective of the campaign
was to establish Panadol Extra as the ideal pain
reliever for tough pain states. The campaign g o
strengthened brand relevance by emerging as a
safe and effective solution for fighting tough

pains.

In line with our strategic vision, Panadol will
continue to drive the business growth by
delivering superior efficacy propositions and
customized solutions for multiple pain states.

‘ FIGHTS MULTIPLE
1& 2. 1QVIA MAT Nov 21 sales data T UGH PAINS

3. 1QVIA H1 21 Prescription data
4. Primary sales data 21 vs '20
5. Primary sales data 21
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CaC-1000pLuUS

CaC-1000 Plus is the biggest brand in the

Vitamins & Minerals category with a value share

of 33.3%' driven by utmost trust of Consumers —

and Healthcare Professionals alike. The brand @
has made great strides in building awareness of

long-term Calcium supplementation as every 1in R

2 women? suffer from Calcium deficiency in ‘ cac 1000 PLUS
Pakistan.

CaC-1000 Plus is an effervescent tablet, available
in 4 flavors: Orange, Cola, Lemon and Mango
(sugar-free). The brand has strong scientific
credentials as it has double Calcium in the form

of Calcium Carbonate and Calcium Lactate
Gluconate which when combined are in line to
support the average daily requirements of an
adult. It also has the honor of being the

#1 Prescribed Calcium Supplement brand in
Pakistan.

In 2021 CaC-1000 Plus delivered phenomenal
results, achieving the milestone of PKR 5Bn in local

CaC-1000rpLus

sales growing by 16%?2 vs last year. A new digital
Calcium Awareness campaign titled “Calcium
Zaruri Hai” was launched on World Osteoporosis
Day. The essence of this was to empower women
and encourage them to take care of themselves.
Also, in 2021 the first ever GSK CHC Web
Documentary series called “Lockdown Kahani” was
launched, paying homage to the determination &
resilience women showed in the face of adversities
during lockdowns. Other achievements in 2021

SIX REAL LIFE
INSPIRATIONAL STORIES

include a massive on-ground campaign on World
Osteoporosis Day, BMD activations testing ~140K
consumers for Calcium deficiency through free
testing and clutter-breaking trade visibility drives,

to name a few.

IMS MAT Sales Data, Oct 21
2National Nutrition Survey, 11
3Secondary Sales Data, Dec "21

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




SENSODYNE

As COVID-19 took a relaxing turn, with the
introduction of vaccination things started to turn to a
new normal in 2021. Pandemic-inherited improved
focus on health, rise in conscious consumption; trust
in quality products is now a significant part of buying
decisions in urban centers.

Thus, it was imperative for the brand to communicate
to greater audiences and attract fewer sensitivity
sufferers - 37.5M pop. Sensodyne, after thorough
research and consumer surveys, decided to step into
the most exciting journey of its brand life cycle with an
objective to establish the brand as a daily use
toothpaste that enables little pleasures of life as Life
is too short for sensitive teeth.

This change was led by a complete makeover of
Sensodyne’s identity and backed by a solid 360°
Integrated Marketing Campaign that activated all
facets of marketing, trade, and expert excellence.
Moments Campaign was launched with beautiful food
shots and customized music crafted for the region.
The new campaign helped the brand break the
monotony and aided the attention of our growing
audience. What once used to come across as a
medicated product, now is transformed into a lifestyle
choice, to enjoy your favorite food and drinks.

To further build affinities with growth audiences,
Sensodyne activated long-term collaboration with
Pakistan’s biggest passion point - Cricket. Sensodyne

SENSODYNE

LIFE'S TOO
SHORT FOR
SENSITIVE
TEETH

SE000-12-ONIS-Hd-Wel

became an official Oral Care Partner for the Pakistan
Cricket Team for the 2021-22 domestic season.

On the whole, 2021 has been a great year for
Sensodyne, where we topped our recent performance,
and our growing category; the brand grew by 3X vs
category CAGR over last 6 years. Additionally,
Sensodyne still stands as the No. 1
dentist-recommended toothpaste brand for sensitive
teeth.

Teeth Sensitivity creates hindrances in enjoying life as
81% of Sensitivity sufferers stop having food or drinks
which are hot, cold, spicy, and sweet. Sensodyne
manifests to create a future where every life is
sensitivity-free. The portfolio includes 7 variants of
toothpaste, 4 brushes, and a mouth wash. All of these
are underpinned by cutting-edge science and category
understanding to enable little pleasures of life.

ORAL HEALTH PARTNER
: SENSODYNy

".‘Ny PCB SEi[ 4
S

.PC? SENSODYNE

)DYNy SENSODYNF/

PCB

ORAL HEALTH PARTNER

PCB

AB CHALEGI
THANDI ICE CREAM

Annual Report 2021




parodontax

Parodontax is a gum care toothpaste to help stop
and prevent bleeding gums, clinically proven to
eliminate the cause of bleeding gums, plaque, 4X
times more effective than any regular
toothpaste.

2021 largely was about establishing Parodontax’s
functionality, the presence of 67% added
minerals salt making Parodontax 4X times more
effecting in eliminating the main cause of
bleeding gums through Time Campaign, helping
in strengthening the condition awareness.
Additionally, we were able to introduce and
relaunch the base range i.e. Original and Extra
Fresh with a new and improved taste (Aria).

Rigorous and targeted efforts to communicate
brand messaging and building condition
awareness, TV and digital played a pivotal role
where TV helped reach out to the masses, and
digital helped reach out to the relevant targeted
market. Emphasis on educating consumers on
bleeding gums was instilled through first

675

exposing to Mythbusters Campaign and then
rerouted to Gum Health Test on Parodontax’s
website for additional learning.

COVID’s multiple waves across the year
continued to limit consumer instore activation,
however we continued to strive with various
bursts of visibility drives. Additionally, a first time
ever Gum Health Care Category has been piloted
in Pakistan by Parodontax to increase awareness
for the condition and share of shelf for the brand
in multiple modern trade stores.

During this time, our Expert Team also innovated
through introduction of PROBE - a program
launched for continued medical education for
young experts in the oral health category. This
allowed targeted efforts in multiple institutions,
fostering discussions, interaction, and
engagement with the brand, and thus
strengthening the footprint in the dental
community.

Despite continued challenges in a highly
cluttered market with age old competitors,
Parodontax continued to show growth and holds
1.7% market share of the industry.

IMPROVED

B

DAILY FLUOR|

Ask your dentist about gum problems.

IDE TOOTHPASTE FOR HEALTHY GUMS & STRONG TEETH

rodontax

Helps stop and prevent bleeding gums

llx MORE EFFECTIVEVS REGULARTOOTHPASTE"
AT REMOVING THE MAIN CAUSE* OF BLEEDING GUMS

EXTRA FRESH

*after a professional clean and twice daily brushing.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



Expert Testimonials

HCPs (Health Care Professionals] significantly influence the health behaviors of our consumers,
therefore their opinions & experiences regarding our brands are of utmost importance to us.

(13
a CaC 1000 Plus is a well trusted and time-tested brand. | have been
I E
-1 = E

prescribing it for many years and have witnessed my patients benefitting
from it. As CaC-1000 Plus is a GSK Consumer Healthcare brand, | am
confident that | am prescribing a quality product that is able to address
my patient’s needs effectively. 99

Prof. Dr. Mehrun Nissa Khaskheli, Liaquat University of Medical
and Health Sciences Jamshoro

$ | have found the Panadol range to be an effective & affordable choice of
antipyretic medicine in pediatric patients which is easily available in the
market. Panadol has made life easier for parents as well as healthcare
professionals while dealing with ill pediatric patients. 99

Dr. Khalid Hussain Khan, Head of Pediatric Department, Sindh
L =" Government Hospital Liaquatabad Karachi

. | have a great experience of prescribing Sensodyne Rapid Action to aul
my patients reporting with sensitive teeth and | must proudly say that
almost all my patients have reported back with the issue being subsided
after use of this toothpaste. | thank you GSK Consumer Healthcare for
launching these products which further build my trust for Sensodyne as |
could not find any better alternative during all these years. 99

Dr Nasar Um Min Allah, Assistant Professor Department of Periodontics,
Foundation University College of Dentistry & Hospital

(1
I have been recommending Parodontax to my patients for the last 10
years. It has helped in improving the oral hygiene of my patients
significantly. | do recommend Parodontax to all for promising results. 99

~ parodontax

Professor Muhammad Kaleem, HOD Periodontology, Rawal Institute
of Health Sciences Islamabad
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ther Brands

For the treatment of oily,
pimple, and acne prone skin

Chewable calcium

tablets for strong
bones and teeth

e

Brevoxyl -

ort 82
e e a0 /

(o)
> Wtsteet

- g = [

For the treatment of mild acne

misil’cream e

-4
Lai
— inafine HCI) Browtapecinum

__ Lamisil’cream  mschued
aw (Terbinafine HCI) Broadss
5 ¥/ 10 grams Antifungal L

A topical anti-fungal cream
designed for the treatment of
fungal infections

i

s

[ e

////'2%%7/

LA T

For systematic relief of nasal congestion,

rhinitis or cough associated with upper
respiratory track disorders

The only antacid in the market that
helps relieve heartburn symptoms
by effectively beginning the
process in just six seconds

Voltral Emulgel 2%

=
(Diclofenac Diethylamine) @
('33 Up ta 12 Hours of Pain Relie! 4

Topical Emulgel for neck,
back and muscular pain

i ’n‘

Vi o R i i |

Zr7 =

Anti-allergic treatment for sneezing,
blocked nose, itchy skin rash and itchy
watery eyes

209

Broad Spectrum Antiungsl
and Anténfamesory o

An anti-fungal cream that targets
inflammation and fights the fungi
that cause it. Hydrocortisone, the
core ingredient in this product,
distinguishes it from other
antifungal products in the market

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



Marketing
Calendar 2021

20
March 21

Launch of the first-ever Launch of
Web Documentary

Series “Lockdown

Kahani” promoting Campaign
Calcium awareness
20
November 21

Launch of
Panadol Extend

20
November 21

Roll out of Breath Easy
Campaign - 1st ever
Range Detailing
(Respiratory Health).

Panadol Extra
‘Toughies” Media

2
November201
& December

ENO Digital Launch

Launch of
Sensodyne’s
New Identity

20
October 21

Launch of Sensodyne
Challenge - Digital
Campaign

20
December 21

Sensodyne signed as
Official Oral Care of
Pakistan Cricket Board

20
August 21

Launch of Sensodyne’s
Moments Campaign

____________

- —————————

20
October 21

Roll-out of World
Osteoporosis Day
“Calcium Zaruri Hai".

20
December 21

Launch of
Panadol Extend
Media Campaign
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w.e.f. 1 April 2021 to replace Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin who retired from the Company.

Registered Office

35 Dockyard Road, West Wharf,
Karachi-74000

Tel:92-21-111-475-725
(111-GSK-PAK)

Fax: 92-21-323-148-98

Investor Relations Contacts

Share Registrar
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

CDC House, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Tel: 021-111-111-500
Email: infoldcdcsrsl.com

Annual Report 2021

GSKCH Shares Department

35 Dockyard Road, West Wharf,
Karachi-74000

Email: chc.shareinfoldgsk.com

Business Units - Geographical
Location and Addresses

The business units and addresses are mentioned
in note no. 43 of the financial statements
available on page 202 of this report.

Website

www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com




Geographical
Presence

®

~ AFRICA Asia & Middle East
Algeria (EN) Bangladesh (EN)

Kenya (EN]) China (EN)

Morocco (EN) Egypt (EN/AR)

Nigeria (EN) Hong Kong and Macau (EN/ZH)
South Africa (EN) India (EN)

Tunisia (EN) Indonesia (EN)

O/ Israel (EN)

" Australasia Japan (JP) Singapore (EN)
Australia (EN) Kazakhstan (RU) Sri Lanka (EN])
New Zealand (EN) Korea (KO) Taiwan (ZH)

Malaysia (EN]) Thailand (EN)
North America Pakistan (EN/UR) Turkey (TR)
Canada (EN/FR) Philippines (EN) United Arab Emirates (EN)
Mexico (EN) Saudi Arabia (EN) Vietnam (EN)

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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9 Europe ]
INCEREN(SN)] Greece (EL) Montenegro (EN) ?y

Austria (DE) Hungary (HU) Netherlands (NL)

Belarus (EN) Ireland (EN]) North Macedonia (EN)

Belgium (FR/NL/EN) Italiy (IT) Norway (NB)

Bosnia and herzegovina (EN) Latvia (EN]) Poland (PL)

Bulgaria (BG) Lithuania (EN) Portugal (PT)

Croatia (EN) Luxembourg (FR/NL/EN) Romania (RO)

Cyprus (EN) Malta (EN) Russia (RU)

Czech Republic (CS) Serbia (SR)

Denmark (DA) Slovakia (SK)

Estonia (EN) Slovenia (SL)

Finland (FL) Spain (ES)

France (FR) Sweden (SV) Ukraine (UK]
Germany (DE) Switzerland (DE/FR) United Kingdom (En)
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Our Mission

OUR CODE OF CONDUCT

GSK CH's vi;ion-is- inspiring:
“The opportunity to make
lives every day”

At GSK CH we perform in unison by following our strong value syste
ethical guidelines as a source of guidance and inspiration to achieve our
vision. Every member of the GSK CH family plays a vital role in improving
the quality of human life. GSK CH’s growth and development can be

attributed to the contribution of the skills, talent and passion of its people.

GSK CH follows its core values of keeping consumers first, demonstrating
respect for people, acting with integrity, and operating with transparency.
We are proud of our commitment that enables us to enhance the quality of

peoples’ lives and helps us provide them with quality products. Our mission
is to improve the quality of human life by enabling people to

“Do More, Feel Better, Live Longer”

At GSK CH our mission acts as an underlying principle to
whatever we do. We follow a legacy of great science and
innovative healthcare that provides people around the world with
healthier and fulfilled lives, every single day.

Every GSK CH employee and complementary worker is required to complete
mandatory training on the Code of Conduct annually. Our employees have
completed the training which covered topics such as safety, health and
wellbeing, third party oversight, data breach reporting, sexual harassment,
and anti-bribery and corruptions (ABAC).

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd







Compliance and Ethics

We are committed to creating an ethical, values-driven culture, in which any issues are responded to
swiftly and transparently. We expect everyone at GSK CH to live our values and expectations, speak up
if they have any concerns, engage appropriately with stakeholders and respect human rights. We also

extend these ethical expectations to the third parties we work with.

Our Core Values

At GSK CH, we are committed to delivering results underpinned by our values. These values guide our

actions and behaviors and lie at the heart of every decision we make.

Our core values are:

Consumer First

The strength of our business lies in
the consumers we reach out to. Our
dedicated leadership team drives
brands that have strong purpose,
and together we ensure that the
needs of our consumers are catered
to in the best possible way.

Transparency

Transparency is vital to the way we
work and helps build trust. We strive
to be honest and open about what we
do and how we do it. This improves
how we collaborate with each

other and the way we are seen by the
communities we work with. It
demonstrates that we do not avoid
challenges or discussions and
confront problems as a team.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.

Respect

We cultivate an environment of
support, inspiration and
development, and ensure that as an
organization, we create diversity in

culture, thought and in how we

operate, in order to collectively
work towards achieving our shared
vision.

Integrity

We must live up to the highest
standards of integrity expected of us
by our consumers, partners and
stakeholders. We go beyond abiding
by the law and do all we can

to maintain the trust and respect of,
and protect the interests of,

the organizations and communities
we work with.




Our Expectations

To thrive in an ever-changing world and achieve our purpose, we need
to adapt some of our behaviors to keep us competitive, all while staying
true to our values. That’s why we have our four Expectations

Courage

Accountability

Teamwork Development

Putting our values and expectations at the heart of everything we do,
we become a high performing team. One that works together to
achieve our goal, in the right way.
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Awards .
Best Corporate Repo

GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited secured 1% Position for Best Corporate Report in the
Pharmaceutical Industry, evaluated and announced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan. The same report has been
awarded as 2" best presented annual report among 7 South Asian countries acknowledged by

South Asian Federation of Accountants (SAFA].

1" Position
harmaceuticals Sector

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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GSK Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Limited is ecstatic to receive the 1
Pharmaceutical Export Summit and
Award 2021 (PESA) from the Pakistan
Pharmaceutical Manufacturers
Association (PPMA] for exceeding
expectations in terms of international
business.

Representatives from a wide spectrum of
pharmaceutical businesses compete in
this award, making it one of the most
competitive.

PESA's goal was to raise awareness
about the pharmaceutical industry’s
accomplishments. The event also aimed
to highlight the potential contribution of
this industry to the economy through
export.
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Ownership and Operating Structure

GSK CH Pakistan was incorporated in Pakistan as a public unlisted company on March 31, 2015. The
Company is listed at the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited since March 22, 2017 with 85.79% shares
being held by GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. The ultimate parent of the Company is
GlaxoSmithKline plc, UK. The Company is engaged in manufacturing, marketing, and sale of consumer
healthcare products. The registered office of the Company is situated at 35-Dockyard Road, West
Wharf, Karachi.

Group Structure

GlaxoSmithKline PLC

No 03888792 incorporated 06/12/1999,
England

Address: 980 Great West Road, Brentford
Middlesex Tw89Gs

Pfizer, Inc.
235-E, 42M st, New York, NY 10017,
United States

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer PF Consumer Healthcare

Healthcare Holdings Limited Holding LLC
No 8998608 incorporated 15/04/2014, No 374151 incorporated in Delaware,
England USA

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Holdings (No.2) Ltd.
No 11961650 incorporated 24/04/2019, England

|
|
]
|
|
|
|
| Consumer Healthcare Holdings Limited
No 11985432 incorporated 09/05/2019, England

' PRISM PCH Limited
No 11986381 incorporated 09/05/2019, England
. |

' " GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare (Overseas) Limited
No 09237639 incorporated 29/09/2014, England

PF Consumer Healthcare B.V.
No 24243225 incorporated 08/12/1993, Netherlands

' " GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V.
No 33147823 incorrporated 23/03/1977, Netherlands

3 " GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
85.8 /0 No 0092738 incorporated 31/03/2015, Pakistan
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Organizational Structure - GSKCH

Board of Directors

|
|
|
|
|
:
|
Audit Human Resource & Integration & :
Committee Remuneration Supply Network |
. Committee Optimization |
T TT T Committee |
o S I
L 0 | _________ |
Q . N . |
: I l
Chief Internal ! Chief Executive | :
Auditor ! Officer  ~7777777C . ““““
| | |
i | Company
~ ——————— : L Secretary
|
Risk Management . | o . .
Committee . Brands Director ----}--- . Chief Financial Officer
l
|
. Sales Director e . Head of Regulatory Affairs
|
l
. Head of Expert -———:r——— . Head of Supply Chain
:
|
. Head of -
Commercial Excellence
Mr. Farhan Haroon Mr. Mazhar Shams Ms. Mashal Mohammad
Chief Executive Officer Head of Regulatory Affairs Company Secretary
Mr. Dilawar Meghani Mr. Faisal Rafiq Ms. Mariam Maqgsood
Chief Financial Officer Head of Expert Chief Internal Auditor
Mr. Salman Altaf Mr. Irfan Qureshi Mr. Khurram Khan
Brands Director Head of Supply Chain Head of Commercial
Syed Abrar Ali Excellence (Commex])

Sales Director
— — —- Functional Reporting ———— Administrative Reporting
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Key Quantitative Information

Number of persons employed as on the date of financial statements and average number of employees

during the year are present in the financial statements in note no. 41. However, details of the company

& factory employees are as follows:

Total number of
employees - CH

20
3 |

20

Total number of
plant employees

20

Al 331
3’0 362
Employee

Turnover Rate

15.51%

20
21

20
20 8.15%

Total average number
of employees - CH

20
2 | 473
20

B 20 489

Total average number
of plant employees

20

pa 347

20

20 360
| Employee

Productivity Rate

20 173,543
2 Packs / employee [ ] Productivity
20 149'505 l Increase
20 Packs / employee
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Finance

GSK’s
Position
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Significant Factors Affecting The External
Environment And The Organizational Response

B T T

High inflation and interest

rates, increasing Corporat_e 'S.ocial Increasing awareness
comnlwodity prices, logistic Rt'as'ponsmll.lty program about the sur.r'oun'dlngs
challenges, labor Icost and initiated to increase anq the condition in

' ' awareness amongst the which a person operates.

low economic growth
adversely affects the
profitability.

Organizational Response .

people and to promote a
healthy lifestyle for them.

Initiatives taken to reduce Various steps taken as The Company complies

costs through evaluating part of our CSR with local regulatory

alternative sources and campaign. compliance requirements

price adjustments. to environmental safety.
Legal ‘ Technological r m

Companies Act 2017, Income Continuous technological Political instability and

Tax Ordinance 2001, Sales changes and uncertainty.

Tax Act 1990, Pakistan Stock advancements lead to

Exchange listing obsolescence and

regulations, SECP Act, Drug excessive training.

Regulatory Authority of

Pakistan Act, 2012

Organizational Response

The Company ensures Continuous training Diversification of
compliance with all the provided to the inventory holding across
applicable laws and employees regarding the country and across
regulations evolving ways of working. the route-to-market. Use

of technology to manage
business operations
during uncertainties.
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Effect of Seasonality in Terms
of Production and Sales

With continued availability of our wide range of consumer healthcare products, our products are in high
demand throughout the year. Sales of Pain portfolio increase in winters whereas Wellness portfolio is
sold more during the summers. The Company manages seasonality through alignment on production
planning cycles involving multiple stakeholders and inventory management as well as distributor
warehouses to ensure enhanced availability of our products for patients without any supply limitations
enabling them to do more, feel better and live longer.

Significant Changes from Prior Year

Global commodity prices and international logistic challenges posed significant risk to profitability.
Paracetamol prices escalated manifold compared to last year along with supply challenges. On the part
of the regulator, there is a need to devise an adequate mechanism for approval of hardship cases
where emerging cost escalations can be timely addressed. Absence of such a mechanism may pose a
serious risk towards availability of high quality and low priced essential medicines.

Composition of Local Versus
Imported Material

GSK CH procures its materials from both local and international sources. Composition of local versus
imported materials basis exposure to foreign currency during the year ended December 31, 2021 was as
follows:

_ocal Imported

%
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Sensitivity Analysis

Share Price Sensitivity

Share price of GSK CH is affected by a combination of internal and external

factors. The various factors that impact the share price are Company’s

performance, economic events, and circumstances, political environment,
interest rates and the product demand and supply, etc. In 2021, the highest
share price was recorded at Rs. 295.85 whereas the lowest price was recorded
at Rs. 210.00. The closing prices recorded at 31st December 2021 was Rs. 241.06.

Market Capitalization Sensitivity

P
| I]C]n As at December 31, 2021, GSK CH’s market capitalization stood at Rs. 28,217

million. A consequent change of 5% in the market price of the Company’s share

would result in a change of Rs. 1,411 million in the market capitalization.

o) Foreign Currency Sensitivity
()

\ Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

®
{
®

The liability is mainly denominated in US Dollars. Net payables exposed to
foreign currency risk as at December 31, 2021, amount to Rs. 508.18 million
(2020: Rs. 263.89 million).

At December 31, 2021, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5%
against the US Dollar with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for
the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 25.52 million (2020: Rs. 13.19
million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of
US Dollar-denominated trade payables, trade debts and bank balances.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The company is sufficiently cash rich which is evident from the Rs. 3,087 million cash
and cash equivalents. The company has no sensitivity when it comes to interest rate as
the interest expense is Nil for financial year 2021.

When it comes to interest income a change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the
year-end would have increased or decreased the profit before tax by Rs. 24.45 million
(2020: Rs. 5.62 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2020.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




Competitive Landscape and
Market Positioning

GSK CH has progressed to deliver over-the-counter healthcare needs of Pakistan. Over the years, it has
grown brands such as Panadol, CaC-1000 Plus and Sensodyne to a status of heritage. With a
state-of-the-art production facility, it has continued to gain market share across the different
categories the entity operates in.

Oral Health

) Oral Health is a heated category across all fronts, one that is highly penetrated
across the country. In terms of landscape, Sensodyne is the #1 player in the

i\\

Sensitivity category while Parodontax is the #1 recommended brand for Bleeding
Gums by Dentists. Sensodyne is also #1 in share for recommendation for
consumers suffering from Sensitivity.

Pain Relief

| %O The Pain Relief category in Pakistan is dominated by systemic pain segment with
QO around 96% of the share and topical pain contributing towards the remaining

4%. The Systemic Pain segment is further divided into two subcategories
Analgesics and NSAIDS. Even though the category is dominated by NSAIDs (both
in terms of value market share (53%]) & volume market share (51%), Panadol,
despite being an Analgesic brand, leads the market with a 21% Market Share
(Value) which reflects the strong equity & heritage of the brand.

Vitamins & Mineral Supplements

This subcategory has a fragmented market landscape with various product

offerings. There are 7 sub-segments, out of which Calcium is the biggest with
79% contribution to overall VMS sales. Within VMS, CaC-1000 Plus is the market
leader with 42% value share.
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Threat of Substitutes

Healthcare is essential for the people and the demand for it in the country must
be met. GSK CH undertakes extensive research to come up with a product that

would help the consumers in fulfilling their demand of healthcare needs. Threat
of substitute is always there since for every treatment, pain or disease there are
multiple medicines being made. Technological advancement also plays a huge
role in development of these products as GSK CH continues to incorporate
innovative enhancements in its offerings.

Power of Customers

GSK CH has been serving its customers with excellence for over 6 years.
The Company prioritizes its relationship with its customers and the trust

they have in the company. GSK CH has played a major role in shaping the
healthcare sector of Pakistan. They introduced Protective Counter Units in
pharmacies for customers well-being and to minimize exposure of
pharmacists during COVID-19.

Power of Suppliers

Supply chain department at GSK CH holds a crucial area of operational
excellence. For the company to keep growing they need a sustainable

framework that allows smooth and uninterrupted supply of input. GSK CH has
good strategic relationship with its suppliers; be it for smooth access of raw
materials or capital inputs.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Plant Operations

The manufacturing plant of GSK Consumer Healthcare (CH) Pakistan is a state-of-the-art facility
located at Jamshoro, about 150 km from Karachi. It manufactures Consumer Healthcare and
Over-the-counter pharmaceutical products for Pakistan and exports to Vietnam, and Philippines. It also
manufactures and packages medicinal products for Novartis Pharma (Pakistan) Limited. The site has
the capability to manufacture and pack oral tablets, effervescent tablets, capsules,
syrups/suspensions, creams, and gel products. All products are manufactured and packed as per
cGMP practices complying to high standards of quality following international, and local standards. The
plant also complies to NEQS (National Environmental Quality Standards) as per EPA (Environmental
Protection Agency) and SEPA (Sindh Environmental Protection Agency) guidelines.

In 2021, Jamshoro plant successfully kicked off Project Hawaii and launched three new products,
Panadol Liquid, Panadol Drops and Panadol Extend to support the continuous growth of the business
and Pakistan Market. The manufacturing plant ensures full compliance to guidelines by the
government for the health and safety of employees including for handling recent COVID'19 pandemic.
Currently all employees are fully vaccinated.

Actual volume
produced in 2021

90.24 Planned Annual

volume for 2022

122.06

million Packs

million Packs

No. of SKU
Manufactured

80

Annual Report 2021
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Finance

We are committed to serving in the
best interest of the shareholders
and other stakeholders’ acting as a
symbol of responsibility and
viability. Finance department is
motivated to lead the organization
towards the achievement of its
rigorous financial KPIs by operating
under the basic values of integrity,
efficiency, and continual
improvement.

Finance is one of the functions that
serves as the common core of

GSK's operating model and enables one GSK enterprise approach. We provide the business units with the
partnership, strategic counsel, and support services they require to operate efficiently and effectively. We add
focus and combine it with positive attitude to engage all business finance areas effectively by optimizing
company’s financial performance. This includes business planning and budgeting, strategic allocation of
resources across our valuable brands, managing liquidity through better cashflow planning while keeping an eye
fixed on risk and opportunities.

We use numbers to drive our strategic success, so we can help people do more, feel better, and live longer lives.

We ensure to broadly group the capabilities required for our roles into four main categories:

¢ N

Compliance Commercial
Capabilities Capabilities

Technical
Capabilities

Leadership
Capabilities

Liquidity position of the company has improved owing to better CAPEX planning and healthy operating cash
inflows. This has resulted in generation of income from other sources such as short-term investments in TDR and
T-bills.

The team was also able to achieve a healthy cash to conversion ratio during the year along with a Zero-Based
Budgeting exercise to improve the management of overheads. Moreover, finance is constantly focused on
improving and strengthening internal controls to mitigate risk and protect value for shareholders. By simplifying
our operating model and pertaining to product innovations, our finance business partners, through various
contributions, seek to add value to the business.

On the other hand, finance team is making sure that GSKCHC Pakistan Limited remain committed to
transparency, accountability, and governance. Our last year Annual Report (Extra Mile) secured 1% Position for
Best Corporate Report in the Pharmaceutical Industry, evaluated and announced by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan. The same report has
been awarded as 2" best Presented Annual Report among seven South Asian countries acknowledged by South
Asian Federation of Accountants (SAFA). This is a testament to our intentions of presenting the company’s
performance and strategies to our shareholders and stakeholders transparently.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Marketing

At GSK CH, Marketing Team
stands for “Consumer and
Customer Obsession”. This
passion is exhibited through
spectacular performance of
global and local power brands in
2021. Strong rigor in executing
“Strategic Must Wins and
Seamless Collaboration with
commercial teams” are the key
enablers in delivering benchmark
performance.

In 2021, power brands continued to strengthened leadership position in respective categories. Sustained
investment was ensured to build and fuel brand growths.

Alongside, brand innovations based on higher consumer benefit also accelerated overall growth.

In oral care pillar, Sensodyne embarked on transformation journey “Sensodyne as Life Enabling Brand”.
New brand “Look and Feel” and dynamic communication campaign was launched which supported in
accelerating performance. The campaign idea is to recruit less sensitivity bothered sufferers, thus
expanding consumer base. Campaign was brought alive across consumers, healthcare professionals and
shoppers. In oral care category, there is increasing incidence of bleeding gums i.e. 27%. Consumers rely on
regular toothpaste to treat this incidence. Parodontax based on science helps stop and prevent bleeding
gums. This was the thrust of communication “building awareness of bleeding gums”. This focused
communication strategy is helping to drive penetration and brand traction.

In OTC pillar, Panadol was the pioneer in driving disruptive growth. Marketing team collaborated with Area
and local creative partners to develop engaging communication campaign. A campaign that will expand
brand foot print in relevant pain incidences beyond headache. Later towards the year end, a new variant -
Panadol Extend was launched with aggressive integrated marketing campaign. Each individual from the
organization contributed in making the launch successful. Panadol Extend happens to be a first launch
after 30 years in Panadol pain franchise. CaC-1000 Plus continued to build “Calcium Supplementation”
amongst the women. Brand launched bespoke “World Osteoporosis Day” campaign which resonated
strongly with consumers. GSK footprint in calcium supplementation was further strengthened with the
activation of Qalsium D.

“Winning Strategies” were mutually conceived and aligned in “Growth Accelerator” workshops and were
executed with excellence by marketing, expert marketing and commercial team.

Thus, setting strong growth momentum for the forthcoming years. As we continue to set new benchmarks,
each member of the team is inspired by GSK's purpose

“deliver better everyday health with humanity”.
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Commercial
Excellence

Commercial Excellence (ComEx)
is one of the most powerful
levers for consistently
delivering business growth &
gaining market share by
strategizing for the
best-in-class instore
executions. It encompasses
targeted channel marketing &

digital commerce strategies along with sales force excellence to enhance understanding, availability &
visibility during the shopper’s journey leveraging data analytics thereby bringing in incremental
revenue.

2021 was a unique year as it was first year that encouraged a hybrid model for everything - product
launches, market executions, consumer touchpoints, shopper behavior and teamwork. This
encouraged the scope of E-commerce & digital media globally. Marking this as priority, ComEx
ensured joint value creation with the biggest E-Commerce retailers for OTC and oral care including
Daraz, Pandamart, Tabiyat, Dawai.pk and Dvago thus ensuring positive disruption addressing changed
shopping habits by focusing on highlighting shopper messaging, call-to-action and immediacy to
purchase.

In the wake of increased focus on self-care, our OTC portfolio was enhanced with the launch of Panadol
Extend. Offering Panadol in a consumer pack for the first time, this launch was activated across all
touch points of Pharmacy channel by creating disruption throughout the shopper journey via trade tools
focus such as primary shelf, secondary shelf, counter top, POSM and cross category reaching 100% of
the customers in targeted time of one month. Enabling our shoppers to take charge of their health and
driving the priority of Self-care, instore shopper engagement was ensured Chain Pharmacies by
establishing self-select and shopper engagement options using multiple mediums such as CATMAN,
self-care counter tops, in-store activations and in-store on-screen ads with digital content.

Modern Trade channel has had unprecedented growth over the last few years showing a shift in
shopper purchase trends making our instore intervention significant to generate top of mind and call to
action. For the oral category in the modern trade channel, GSKCH was the first company to establish
brand recall for the consumers by gaining category captaincy and ownership. For Sensodyne with the

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




launch of Sprint, we piloted with best-in-call category leading displays, cross category trail generation
and winning shopper journey branding driving an immediacy purchase. For Parodontax, we deployed
first in class gum-care category to address & provide for the underlying gum issues prevalent in the
country. Keeping interception in mind, our brand ambassador program’s scope grew by 20% in the last
year with increased activities and reach. Consistent rounds of scratch & win activations for modern
Trade and cluster activations for general trade were executed to engage, entice and excite the
consumer thereby leading to 1.5mn interceptions nationally.

Despite limitation of conducting face to face trainings, journey for development of the sales force was
carried forward by conducting capability building sessions following the hybrid model for both expert
and trade teams. 11 face-to-face and numerous online training sessions were held keeping in mind the
needs of the team.

Increased focus on Net Revenue Management this year have led to efficient trade investment
expenditure by encouraging promotional evaluation and strategizing accordingly. The ROI
thought-process was inculcated in all ComEx’s activities such as promotions, brand ambassador
program and future customer JBPs to ensure clarity of ideation and efficiency in strategy.
Incorporating consumer insights by identifying the need for channels, focus on consumer offering
upgradation as well as promotions has led to incremental revenue for GSKCH.

2022 promises a lot of excitement for ComEx with new set of challenges sure to come our way. With
increased channel focus and customer centric strategies, ComEx is looking forward to go an Extra Mile
and help achieve this ambition by focusing on priorities such as driving availability, enhancing visibility
winning in channel & customer, growth in Ecommerce, accelerating revenue growth and upscaling
digital & sales analytics with outclass automation and processes.

Annual Report 2021
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Sales

Sales is all about foot work,
availability, and visibility are the
core fundamentals of the job
and these cannot be ensured
through any digital application,
remote or agile working these
can only be worked out by
physically walking the markets
and visiting the stores. One
thing that did not changed a bit
in this year from the previous
year was the working

environment, it continued to pose the same threat and challenge as it did last year courtesy COVID-19.
Smart lock downs and restricted market timings etc continued to create obstacles for the teams on
ground but with each passing day Team GSK became more and more resilient and better prepared to
overcome them. It was sheer hard work, dedication, and our passion for playing above and going
beyond that paved way for yet another fabulous year which recorded a phenomenal growth of 21%
(excluding toll manufacturing and exports). We operate in four major categories and the great thing
about this growth is that it was broad based across all categories

N N

Oral care grew by Pain Management by

31% 22%

<
Nutrition/Gl by

18.1%

<
Respiratory Health

63%

In a year which saw other businesses curtail down their operations we went ahead and opened new
independent branches in Gilgit-Baltistan. Our distribution partners have been our biggest strength who
made sure that our products reach far and wide across all relevant channels without compromising
safety and security of the team. We are also very proud to make Panadol the biggest brand of
Pakistan’s Pharma Industry with PKR 9.5 billion, CaC-1000 Plus also touched the new magical number
of PKR 5.0 billion in this year.

Digital is a new and emerging channel; we have been actively partnering with various digital platforms
which are servicing patient needs at their doorstep. As a Consumer Healthcare Company, we ensure
that our products are made available to shoppers and patients across the spectrum of the market and
no point of purchase is left out.

We in sales believe in a single point of action “Availability Ensures Patient’s well-being”. It is with this
mindset that we operate daily, making sure that no point of purchase is left unattended.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Expert

An instrumental pillar behind
the success of any healthcare
brand is endorsement from
healthcare providers (HCPs),
also known as Experts. Being a
strategic function, the Expert
department strives to create
long-lasting partnerships with
HCPs through scientific dialogue
& engagement, empowering
them to make informed
decisions that can positively
impact the lives of patients.

2021 was a year of executional excellence for the Expert department, as the team went all out in
launching initiatives designed to make interaction with HCPs more dynamic. These on-ground
activations were further supported by the launch of the Global Health Partner page for Pakistan, a
dedicated website for our medical partners, curated to deliver more personalized yet readily available

sources of information.

In 2021, the team also underwent significant expansion. With two detailing verticals already running
(Oral Health & OTC]J, a 3rd detailing team was established. Serving as a launch pad, this team has been
entrusted with the detailing of the latest innovation, Panadol Extend along with the Respiratory Health

portfolio.

Strategy

Our winning strategy relies on having clear
objectives and a robust promotional plan
that complements our campaigns. With a
dynamic competitive landscape, we have
learnt to evolve and be innovative in the ways
we engage with HCPs while delivering
impactful results.

Capability Building

Our field force is distinguishable from the
rest based on the knowledge and skillsets
they have been equipped with to deliver
brand messages effectively. With an
in-house training manager, the team is
engaged in various capability building
sessions all year round.
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Execution Analytics & Governance

With the easily accessible Power Bl tool, our
team is able to track performance in real
time, allowing us to turn data into
opportunities. We also demonstrate utmost

Navigating through a large team with
multiple brands requires flawless execution
to ensure we are able to provide our
customers with a memorable engagement
experience. Our team successfully amped up vigilance during all our activities and
engagement with HCPs for all key brands regularly conduct internal monitoring, to
throughout 2021. ensure compliance with SOPs.

In terms of impact, our key brands continue to be the recommended choice of treatment by Experts.
Power brands Panadol & CaC-1000 Plus have not only maintained their leadership position in respective
categories but continue to put up a strong performance with double-digit growth, which is significantly
faster than the market. These results give us the confidence that we are operating in the right direction
and have been successful in maintaining the trust of our customers. The Expert team is committed to
demonstrating the same passion & energy in the years to come, and in doing so take GSK CH to even
greater heights.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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............ TECH IS TRANSFORMING

Information
Technology -
Your

Transformation

Partner

The world is changing at an accelerating pace. We have become a generation almost entirely depen-
dent on technology, and it goes without saying that things were done very differently decades ago than
they are now. Tech today has now transformed to become a business partnering function and plays a

vital role in organization’s success.

Year 2021 was all about living GSK behaviors where tech went beyond their functional responsibilities,
did what matter the most for the business and kept it human for their customers all across the market.

Few major achievements of last year includes,

Tech Connects

(Transformation for
better partnership)

Core Tech

(Transformation to
become future ready)

Third parties in market
are required to complete
multiple trainings
depending on the service
they provide. The
business found it
challenging to conduct
the trainings on different
subjects and also track
attendance, especially
after inception of COVID
period where travelling
was no more possible.
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With high speed growth
of Consumer Healthcare
business in Pakistan, new
upcoming challenges and
requirement need to be
catered pro-actively. It is
important for tech
function to match up the
growth speed and work
closely with business
functions for parallel
technology
implementation.

In line with GSK
Consumer Healthcare
ambitions for Future
Ready Programme, Tech
thrive to simplify service
delivery model by
streamlining their global
footprint and leveraging
the cross-industry
experience with an
strategic partner HCL.
This new service delivery
model was introduced in
Q1, 2021.




Project Titan

(Transforming Controls
and Compliance)

Tech Connects
(Transformation for
better partnership)

Core Tech
(Transformation to
become future ready)

To help the business and
compliance team, tech
completed a local
assessment and with the
help of shortlisted
vendor, established an
automated solution, for
meeting 3P training
requirements. A solution
named as “Titan” was
developed to serve the
purpose. It also helped to
have increased level of
accountability at function
level.

GSK Consumer
Healthcare Pakistan now
comply with Third Party
training requirements
and keep us in an audit
ready status. This is the
first of its kind portal in
MEA Area.

Tech connects were
introduced in Year 2021.
These sessions were
arranged in every quarter
where Tech and Pakistan
leadership team connects
and align on priorities.
Tech connects also
covered topics like
information security,
phishing, tech service
delivery performance
review, relooking into
future opportunities and
roadmaps.

In quest of continuous
improvement and to
engage wider audience
tech survey was
launched. Later on,
feedback results and
actions were shared with
employees in townhalls.

What's New ? With this
new model GSK Tech
standardized Desk site
support model resulting
users to have Improved
Service Experience via
Reliable, Innovative and
Accelerated Service
delivery. Service Now
portal was launched in
order to closely track
employee’s requests and
queries with pre-defined
SLA’s and escalation
matrices.

Local Tech business
partner plays a vital role
in this transformation by
bridging between global
and market team,
identifying gaps and
driving communication
campaigns.

And Tech Transformation Continues ....

Through strong hand-in-hand partnership with business, we are
entering into the historical year of creating world’s first consumer
healthcare company where Tech will be connecting business to
technology and bridging the gap to redefine the future.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




IT Governance Policy

Tech Control Framework (TCF) forms the basis of internal control defining essential governance,
compliance and risk management activities that support the day to day Tech activities.

The Enterprise Tech Control Framework aims to achieve the following objectives:

Risk
Management

Risk Management and
Compliance Boards (RMCBs]
are a GSK CH required
governing body. RMCBs are
responsible to ensure
appropriate risk
management and
implementation of internal
controls for risks within their
scope of accountability.

Controls

A Governance framework of
control documents
communicates the ideas,
rules and expectations of
organizations; to reduce
risk, ensure accountability,
and enforce compliance in
business operations.

Monitoring

Local managers are
accountable for the controls
in their area. Management
Monitoring is an ongoing
process of assessing that the
controls are in place and in
use. This process may
involve in-process checks
and approvals, or a
workplace inspection, or
may be a checklist, or may
be a review of data or
dashboards, or observation
of tasks, or self-assessment.
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Supply
Chain

2021 was yet another
phenomenal year for the
business. It was a result of
strong Supply Chain partnership
with commercial that Pakistan
not only overdelivered the
business results but also
mitigated the supply risks for
outer years. Despite numerous
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challenges through out the year, the business managed to deliver a growth of 21% over last year which

itself was a higher base (+23% over 2019)

This phenomenal growth wouldn’t have been possible if the Supply Chain team had not responded
effectively to the challenges coming their way from everywhere, like:

Extreme Market Volatility

2021 was started with an assumption that with
reduced Covid cases things will get normalized,
hence a volume growth of 1%-2% was projected
over 2020. But the reality was completely
different. Unprecedented upside against the
forecast was experienced in all major brands like
Panadol, CaC-1000 Plus & Sensodyne, that
resulted in tremendous pressure on factories
and upstream Supply Chain. The challenge was to
respond to an unknown increase in demand in a
shortest possible time & It was a daunting task
considering the heavy reliance on Imports. To
manage this complex situation several extreme
measures were taken at all levels of Supply
Chain including:

e |ssuance of advance purchase orders to the
vendors to ensure long term supply security.

e Expediting the shipments by using alternate
logistics arrangements.

e Production facilities ramped up to maximum

capacities ensuring seamless availability of
stocks to manage demand variations.

e Strong coordination with LSPs to make sure
that they are up and running in full swing to
manage deliveries to customers across
country in a timely manner thus maintaining
a strong OTIF between 97-98%.

Logistics Congestion

As the world resumed in 2021, the global logistics
operation started choking up with extreme
shortages of Containers & Vessels. With heavy
reliance on imports it was quite challenging to
bring in the materials on time and keep the
production facilities operational. The logistics
congestion got worsen in Mar-2021, when a Ship
blocked Suez Canal impacting the in-transit
shipments with considerable delays in ETAs. It
resulted in a stock out situation of few critical
materials and the production got stopped. The SC
Imports & procurement teams did a phenomenal
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job by taking timely mitigation actions and
arranged materials from alternate sources &
using alternate logistics arrangements and the
operations got resumed within a week. They also
put in place a daily governance forum where each
shipment was tracked, and timely mitigation
actions were agreed to avoid any disruption.

Supply assurance of Calcium

There has been a steady volume growth in
CaC-1000 Plus over past many years but 2020 was
unprecedented with a 30% volume growth and
increased consumption habits in the light of
COVID-19. The demand pattern continues in 2021
as well with a 5% volume growth on a higher
base of 2020. This sudden increase in demand
put an extra pressure on Factory’s capacities and
the site was compelled to operate 24/7 without a
break. Despite running with full capacities there
was a risk of losing consumption during
summers which happens to be the peak season
for CaC 1000 Plus. Also, the production pattern
was not sustainable posing risks of unplanned
breakdowns and exhaustive resources.

Following multi-dimensional projects were
identified and delivered on time not only to
secure the supplies for 2021 but also building
enough stocks to manage the seasonal peak of
2022

Improved OEE from 60 to 72%: Increased daily
output from 127k / day to 178k /day,and reduced
breakdown from 14 % to 7 % and batch size
optimization.

Design campaign production: Reduced washing
frequency from twice a week to once a week
resulting in savings of 3 hours/week and 36
additional batches/year.

Refurbish 4" calcium line: There was a
redundant Fette line which was refurbished from
scratch in minimum possible time to meet
continuously increasing market demand and to
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reduce shift timings from 12 hours to 10.5 hours
keeping in view the health and wellbeing of
employees.

Paracetamol pricing / availability

The demand of Panadol Tablets has increased
many fold during the past two years. The factory
is running with full capacity and despite that
hardly managing the volume upside with a
limited stock over.

This unprecedented demand has also put a lot of
pressure on upstream supply chain specially on
Paracetamol. Paracetamol has been a two-fold
problem for the business in 2021. One is its
exorbitant pricing due to limited supply of PAP
from China and the second is the availability. The
team did a good job in terms of locking quarterly
prices and issuing long term Purchase orders to
ensure supply commitment. They did their best to
agree a price which was quite lower than the
market prevailing price thus minimizing the
adverse impact on the P&L. Several other
strategic initiatives are also started to ensure a
long-term fix to the issue.

Changes in RTM and Commercial
Partners

As part of business development and driving
growth strategy lots of RTM changes were driven
by Commercial team in terms of opening new
distribution branches in untapped locations,
consolidating / replacing commercial partners
etc. SC responded well to all these changes and
altered the Cerps setups, Warehouse mapping
and distribution alignments in a timely manner to
avoid any business disruption.




Quality
Management
System

(QMS)

The GSK CH Quality
Management System (QMS] is
our comprehensive system of

management responsibilities,

quality culture expectations, and documented policies and procedures. At GSK Consumer Healthcare,
managing customer/consumer relation is our foremost and utmost responsibility. It is very much vital
for the maintenance, sustenance, and growth of the trust-based relationship with our end users and
stakeholders by providing the safe products of best Quality.

The year 2021 was quite challenging for the whole GSK CH in terms of the immense market demand,
timely availability of our products for our customers & consumers. Amid the aforesaid matters, the
GSK CH Quality Management Systems and its requirements for continuous improvement played a
pivotal role. We had applied and utilized our well-maintained edifice of Quality Management Systems to
focus every hook and nook. This particularly included all GxP areas like Warehouse, Manufacturing,
Packaging, Quality Control Laboratory, Operational Quality, Regulatory affairs, Technical, Engineering,
EHS, Quality Systems and Compliance & all commercial aspects. Along with all of these, the GSK CH
Quality Management Systems also emphasized the justifiable improvements in effectiveness and
efficiency of our products. Furthermore, in the past year, we succeeded to achieve not only business
targets, but we have also got successful renewal of our manufacturing license. In addition to it, we
went beyond and have launched Panadol Extend and shifted Panadol Liquids and Panadol drops from
CMO to Jamshoro Site. We increase our end to end surveillance through properly addressing
customers and consumers. Besides this, in 2021 with GSK CH Quality Management Systems
compliance, we kept it human and did that mattered most, took multiple initiatives through adapting
e2e strategy and focusing on the basic needs of our consumer and customer.

In 2022 our aim to ensure timely availability of our products with maintaining Quality, Safety and
Efficacy. Our Strategy is to Deliver better everyday health with humanity.
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Regulatory
Affairs

Like the previous year, COVID-19
has taken its toll on businesses
and changed the global
dynamics from face-to-face to
online connectivity. In
Regulatory Affairs, we also had

planned deliverables

considering the above challenges and delivered all internal and external projects well within time. The
Regulatory Affairs Team has ended the year on high notes with a couple of global awards and new
products for the Pakistan market.

In 2021, the much-awaited sustained release paracetamol formulation, Panadol Extend, was launched
with full execution where Regulatory Affairs had not only secured the desired supply line but also
received approval of all above-the-line direct to consumer connections. In line with our earlier pricing
success, this year we also successfully secured all CPI-based price increases. Another big news is
related to the manufacturing consolidation of our portfolio by transferring liquid formulations under
the Panadol name to our own manufacturing facility based out of Jamshoro, which assures our strategy
and direction for our products and provides a further boost to patients’ confidence.

In 2022, we have planned innovations with margin improvements and supply consolidations for existing
and future launches, and we are already on top and at different stages of strengthening GSK CH
business besides handling of the spin-off which is around the corner. Hopefully, our consumers and
partners will see an agile and aggressive organization delivering every-day health with humanity.
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Internal
Audit

& Compliance

The Internal Audit
funCtion ensures Statutory

compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance (Covered in
detail on Pg. 106 to 107 “Audit Committee
Report”] and serves an active role in assisting
the management to achieve operational
efficiencies while managing the risk appetite of
the business. The internal audit operations at
GSK CH are outsourced to Ernst & Young Ford
Rhodes (Pakistan), that adds an additional layer
of transparency and provides independent
assurance to the members of Audit Committee.

Having a third-party team of Internal Auditors
ensures that the Company's operations are
reviewed objectively and without any bias. It also
helps the business in developing better Risk
Management, Regulatory Compliance and
Governance Control processes over time.

Internal Audit Function, in GSK CH, is led by
Mariam Magsood who was on-boarded virtually
in mid of 2020. Mariam Magsood is an ACCA
member and has worked across various
industries, over the span of 10 years.

The Compliance function is responsible
to ensure that local and global policies are
effectively complied with and offers to provide
compliant solutions to the business, when they
are not available in existing policies.

The Compliance function ensures that each
function (commercial and supporting] is
managing its Internal Control Framework and
identifies and minimizes risks proactively.

Compliance function is responsible to organize
Risk Management Compliance Board (RMCB])
meetings where risks are discussed, and
mitigating controls and actions are put in place
every quarter. This meeting is attended
religiously by all functional heads.

Other than above, Compliance function conducts
independent reviews for high risk areas and
presents findings in the RMCB, provides
trainings to head office and sales staff on
Anti-bribery anti-corruption, Third Party
Oversight, Code of Promotion etc. Compliance
ensures that other functions are also conducting
Management Monitoring activities to ensure
issues are proactively identified and fixed, rather
than being spotted out by auditors.

Speak up or whistle blowing issues, relating to
compliance matters are also overseen by
Compliance Function and the Head of
Compliance is responsible for providing relevant
and up to date information to above country
independent investigators when required. Where
policy permits, some investigations are
conducted by the Head of Compliance. The
Ethics and Compliance Function in GSK CH
Pakistan is led by Muzna Hussain. She is an
FCCA by qualification and has been with GSK
since June 2016.
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Legal and
Corporate
Secretarial

The Consumer Healthcare Legal
and Corporate Secretarial
department works across the
business to help it deliver better
everyday health with humanity.
The Pakistan Legal department is
aligned with the GSK 1Legal

purpose of being a Trusted Business Partner and
delivering high quality legal and corporate
secretarial services by proactively engaging with
our business partners to achieve GSK's goals with
GSK values at the heart of every decision.

In keeping up with a fast-paced business, the
Legal and Corporate Secretarial department aims
to have a solution-orientated and pragmatic
approach that is focused on enabling the business
to achieve its objectives, while protecting and
managing legal and corporate compliance risks to
provide timely and quality legal support on all
critical areas including:

e Day to day advisory;

e Managing of ongoing and future litigation risk;
e Business development transactions;

e Contract drafting and negotiations;

e Digital processes;

e Legal project management;

e E-commerce; and

e Trainings.

Corporate Secretarial (CS) plays a central role in
ensuring adherence to the Company’s governance
structure in conformity with best practices. CS
supports the Board of Directors, by liaising with
directors, organizing board meetings and general
meetings, facilitating departments in preparing
relevant documents for board presentations,
recording minutes of the meetings and proactively

coordinates in the implementation of board

decisions, among other tasks.

Despite the challenges of the previous year, the
Legal and Corporate Secretarial department
continued to adapt quickly its ways of working to
the ‘'new normal’ in 2021 to play its part in Running
Legal Like a Business, for the Business in the
following manner:

a) Continued focus on digital initiatives with the
adaption of digital signatures, use of digital
document repositories, utilizing of a digital Board
Evaluation Form, and creation of a One Stop Legal
page containing updated templates, information,
documents for the ease internal stakeholders /
clients.

b) Smart risk-taking to keep up with changing
trends and the pace of the business and keeping in
view Trusted Business Partner principles and the
GSK Red-Grey-Green legal risk assessment, so as
to strike a balance between Business First and
GSK Values.

c) Stakeholder knowledge management with
comprehensive trainings on competition law,
anti-harassment, corporate compliance, GSK
document repository, digital brand protection
guidelines etc.

d) Simplification of all contracts, key documents,
and key processes.
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Human
Resources

GSK Consumer Healthcare has
started its incredible journey
with the purpose of “Deliver
better everyday health with
humanity.” Our values and
expectations are at the heart of
everything we do, and they
define our culture. Acting with

integrity is non-negotiable, and that means we can be proud of how we operate. At GSK CH's we set out
clear choices by going beyond, doing what matters most, and keeping it human so we can deliver
extraordinary things to our consumers and customers. we continued to build on our CSK CH Priorities
of Innovation, Performance and Trust as part of our commitment to deliver game changing business
results. To achieve this vision our strategy has advocated through Advance Technology, strong
leadership, employee development, Employee Health and Safety, and our continued focus on being a
Modern Employer.

Go Beyond

Our constant hunger and

Keep It Human

Our dedication to

- consumers, customers and
each other demands
unmatched understanging
and empathy

irresistible energy drives r
us to be better, move with
pace and outerforn
competitors

INCLUSION & DIVERSITY

We aim to create an inclusive workplace to attract and retain the most talented people from all
background ds and cultures. Diversity makes us stronger and it is important that we talk, share, and
understand our cultural differences. The principles of Modern Employer and Be You are key to our
success as a company. We want employees to feel supported in being their authentic selves at work.
We strive to create inclusive environment where Everyone have the right to share their own thoughts,
feelings, and perspectives. One way we achieve this is through our Employee Resource Groups,
including Women'’s Leadership Initiative, and the Disability Confidence Network.
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Women’s Disability Local
Leadership Confidence ERGs
Initiative Network

DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE

We aim to create an inclusive workplace to
attract and retain the most talented people
from all background ds and cultures.
Diversity makes us stronger and it is
important that we talk, share, and
understand our cultural differences. The
principles of Modern Employer and Be You
are key to our success as a company. We
want employees to feel supported in being
their authentic selves at work. we strive to
create inclusive environment where Everyone
have the right to share their own thoughts,
feelings, and perspectives. One way we
achieve this is through our Employee
Resource Groups, including Women's
Leadership Initiative, and the Disability
Confidence Network.

Our continued commitment to developing and
sustaining our talent pipeline by attracting
and retaining the most talented people is key
success factor in GSK CH’s outstanding
results. In 2021, as part of our ongoing focus
to make our systems and processes easier
for our customers, we have improved
recruitment process which can be directly
facilitated through service now. This uses
innovative technology to deliver a
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cutting-edge global recruitment platform
that not only makes it quicker and easier for
recruiters and managers to fill vacancies
with the best candidates but also makes it
easier and a better experience, for external
candidates and employees to find new job
opportunities.

PERFORMANCE SYSTEM

Recognizing and rewarding great individual
or team performance is an important part of
our culture. It's a great opportunity to
recognize and thank our colleagues for
exemplary work that supports the delivery of
our Innovation, Performance, Trust, and
Culture priorities and role models our values
and expectations. The Global Employee
Recognition program enables employees to
celebrate contributions and achievements
and recognise each other across businesses
and countries.

Being a modern employer is one of our core
Trust commitments - creating an inclusive
workplace where everyone can be
themselves, feel good, and keep growing.
And a key part of that is making sure our pay
practices are always fair. Base pay is
differentiated through several factors - such




as performance through Annual Pay Review,
Promotion / progression based upon
performance and skills, and Interim
adjustments to reflect competitiveness with
the market, rare skills, and talent
assessment. At GSK, reward includes base
pay, bonus, IPTc, and Long-Term Incentives
(LTIs), (for eligible employees).

It's important to make sure we're on track.
We inspire our managers to promote a
culture where straight talk is encouraged,
and diverse opinions are accepted. This is
strengthened through regular Check-ins
between employee and his / her line manager
review progress to date and celebrate
achievements - and identify where help
might be needed to get things back on track
for performance objectives and development
plans.

LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT

In GSK, career development is about building
experience and capability and is not defined
solely by promotion and advancement. We
offer our employees many opportunities both
in our Keep Growing Campus and in the
MyLearning portal, with the most effective
mix of learning modalities e.g.,
instructor-led, e-learning, blended learning,
and social learning. Employees can find
suggestions on a wide variety of topics and
get training courses that give in-depth
expertise and knowledge to help them grow
in their personal and professional life. We
provide performance support,
self-assessment tools, and resources to help
an employee develop. In 2021 Total No of
53,832 Training has been completed with the
Total Training hours of 62,181.06.

MAKING IT EASIER INITIATIVES

In 2021 we embrace transformation and
relies more on technology to boost efficiency
by making HR information and service easily
available ‘on demand’. We're organising our
services around our Regional HR Service
Centers, making processes simpler, and
using technology to make things more
accessible and transparent - with the
introduction of the Service Portal
(ServiceNow] and updates to Workday. This
portal not only promotes self-service but also
provides better and more readily available
information for more integrated and
consistent systems across markets,
especially in times of remote working.
Furthermore, this system also promotes the
communication between the manager and
employee, and employee have now the
visuality to track their queries and status.
This portal has centralized various HR
processes i.e. Recruitment, Onboarding,
Employee Confirmation which are being
looked after by different HR teams and
expertise around the globe. In 2021 No. of
queries has been addressed via ServiceNow.

EMPLOYEE HEALTH, SAFETY &
WELL BEING

GSK has an established EHS framework of
compliance and constantly raising the bar by
striving to go beyond the local legal
environmental, health & safety requirements.
EHS is the driving force of our business
operations which ensures safe workplace,
healthy environment, and energy efficient
processes.

In 2021 the Safe Man Hours were 4,325,323.
To strengthen that Living Safety project was
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Launched to bolster risk management
system, strengthen safety culture, and
enhance continuous improvement.

RESILIENCE AND WORK LIFE
BALANCE

We at CSK CH. under the Modern Employer
Agenda are focused to give our employees a
congenial environment that makes them feel
at ease — where their work is more valued
than adherence to a strict work schedule.
Furthermore, we designed certain
communications to further facilitate this
agenda and connected it to our value of
Respect for People e.g. the launch of respect
for work hours where employees were
encouraged to be respectful of each other’s
personal and family time, make efforts to
disconnect ourselves from work after
business hours and reflect twice before
contacting a fellow colleague via call / text /
emails unless there's an emergency to
connect immediately.

Our priority will always be the safety and
wellbeing Of our people, For now, we follow
local COVID-19 guidelines, but as restrictions
lift it's really important we hold onto the
great ways of working, balanced with the
power of face to face collaboration, to drive
performance and delivery on our agenda.
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Strategy and Resource Allocation

Objective and Strategies

Strategy/

Process

Timeline

Resource
Allocation
Plan

Relevant
KPIs

Enhance
Pipeline value
by introducing
new brands,
variants and
line extension

Medium to
long term

Advertising and
promotion,
research and
development,
procurement
sourcing

Annual sales of
recently
launched
products as a %
of total sales

Achieve
profitable
growth, increase
market share
and

enhance liquidity

Short to
medium term

Value
engineering
initiatives,
deploy

shopper
marketing tools
and optimize
working capital

Gross margins
sustainability,
Share of Voice
and Cash
conversion ratio

Ensure reliable
supply of
quality

products to the
customers by
improving
route-to-market

Long term

Embed an
integrated,
end-to-end
supply chain

Forecast
accuracy and
On Time In Full

FUTURE RELEVANCE

The KPIs will remain relevant in the future.

Continuously
evolve our
policies to
become a
modern
employer by
focusing on
people
development

Long term

Human resource
Investment

Employee
engagement
survey scores
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STRATEGY TO OVERCOME LIQUIDITY PROBLEM

The Company has no liquidity problem and manages its working capital in the most efficient manner.
Our treasury department invests the surplus funds at the most beneficial rates, which, in turn, adds to
its investment income and duly provides the Company with additional funds to meet its operational
needs. Furthermore, better Capital Expenditure planning and healthy operating cash inflows have
helped to eliminate the Company's dependency on running facility.

LIQUIDITY POSITION OF THE COMPANY

The company maintains healthy operating cashflows, which are 53% of its Profit before tax as
compared to 164% as at last year. The acid-test ratio of the Company has also improved from 0.78 to
0.87 during the year.

SIGNIFICANT PLANS AND DECISIONS

The Company plans to continually invest in the manufacturing capacity upgradation in a sustainable
manner under improved capital governance and oversight of the Board.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES FROM PREVIOUS
PERIOD

There have been no significant changes in objectives and strategies from last year.
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Risk and Opportunities

BOARD’S STATEMENT & EFFORTS ON RISK
MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors rigorously works to develop and
monitor risk management policies to determine the
Company’s level of risk tolerance. Our Board’s main
responsibility includes establishing and overseeing an

effective risk management framework in the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK & METHODOLOGY

Our risk management framework is well embedded
within the processes of the business and continually
reviewed with oversight at Board level through our

Opportunity

Risk & Opportunities

Audit Committee. This framework enables the Board to
identify, evaluate, manage our principal risks, and is
designed to support our long-term priorities. It
provides our businesses with a framework for risk
management and upward escalation of significant
risks. In conjunction with our values and expectations
and Speak Up processes, it ensures that the risks
associated with Company business activities are
actively and effectively agreed and mitigated and
provides reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Board of Directors monitors various compliance
initiatives and promotes risk management and

Related Opportunity or Risk

or Risk
Environment, Health & n
Safety and Sustainability
(EHS&S)
Information Security n
Volatile Law and Order
Situation n
Counterfeit products n
Pricing Policy ﬂ

K] risk

Opportunity

=3 High

oo

Low

Short
Term

67

Unable to protect people, the environment
and the communities in which we operate.

IT infrastructure or data maybe exposed to
misuse or unauthorized disclosure.

Potential damage to Company’s Property,
plant and equipment, unstable economic
conditions and safety threat to employees

The availability of low-cost generics in the

market

Opportunity to sustain and thrive in longer
run through conducive price increases.

n Medium

Medium
Term

( Internal

j External
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compliance culture in the Company. Board has risks, each Risk Owner then performs a review of
delegated the responsibility of monitoring and control  their key Principal Risks, take corrective and

of business risks to the management of the Company. preventive approaches to ensure controls are in
place and wherever gaps are identified, clear
ASSESSMENT OF PRINCIPAL RISKS plans are assigned to address them. The

Compliance Officer facilitates in instilling a risk-
based approach to establishing internal controls
system. This eventually makes risk management
an integral part of decision making and business
operations. The RMCB held four (04) meetings
during the year.

Our Risk Management and Compliance Board
(RMCB] is responsible to effectively identify,
assess, mitigate, monitor, and report major risks
that the business may encounter. All critical
business risk units are governed by the RMCB,
which promotes the ‘tone from the top’,
establishes the culture regarding risk and The Board monitors the various compliance
oversees internal controls. The RMCB has formed  jpitiatives and promotes risk management and
a structure whereby designated Risk Owners are  compliance culture in the Company.
responsible for identifying and treating significant

Mitigation measure of Risk / Description of

opportunity

Magni Likeli-
-tude hood

We are actively managing our EHS&S obligations and seek Human
to ensure practices that are environmentally sustainable (’ E,E;:Elait”udred u
and compliant. Capital
Proper controls in place that are commensurate with the Intellectual
changing nature of the security threat landscape. (’ H
Company ensures security measures are in place and rolls Human

. . . Capital and
out effective communications to alert employees in such n ’ u maapr:uafa?:j m
SR, tured Capital
Through capacity enhancement/plant upgrading, new } n %g(l:eixét]iloanns%ip u
product launches, R&D and providing affordable healthcare Capital
solutions to maintain the company’s market share.
Secure price increases to offset ongoing inflation n } FEeE! u

and devaluation in the prevailing economic
environment.

INFORMATION ABOUT DEFAULT IN PAYMENTS INADEQUACY IN THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE
OF DEBT

There were no defaults in payments of debts during the
year ended December 31,2021

The Company does not have any inadequacy in the
Capital Structure.
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Swot Analysis
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Strengths

1) Global footprint with operations in
nearly 150 countries and diverse
portfolio of category defining brands
that have established themselves as
the leading products in their
respective markets.

2) Strong distribution network with
collaboration of 34 distributors
nation-wide.

3) Global thinking with local execution,
which means that it pursues global
strategies that make it win the
hearts and minds of consumers.

4) State of art manufacturing facility in
Jamshoro serving three markets,
Pakistan, Philippines and Vietnam.

Opportunities

1) Great potential in the export market
to capture new markets and grow
consumer base across the globe.

2) Strong e-market potential in the
Consumer Healthcare business,
further enhancing the customer
growth.

3) Increasing awareness and demand
for healthcare products.

4) New product innovations and
additional variants can grow and
diversify the portfolio.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Weaknesses

1) Challenging price-controlled
environment in the OTC portfolio
where absence of conducive policies

by the regulatory authorities is a risk.

2) Dependence on imported raw
material.

Threats

1) Weak implementation of
Intellectual Property Rights can lead
to loss of market share.

2] Deteriorating exchange rates pose a
high risk to our profitability as we
depend heavily on imported raw
materials.

3) Consistent increase in cost of doing
business including raw material
prices and associated handling and
freight bill amid COVID-19.
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4 , Appointment: 26 April 2018
| rec 0 rs Nationality: Pakistani
° Years of experience: 40 years of experience in business
Pr0f| le and finance fields.

Education: Chartered Accountant
M. Z. Moin Mohajir’s business experience spans 40
years. After qualifying as a Chartered Accountant with
A.F. Ferguson & Co. He joined Pakistan Security Printing
Corporation in 1978, where he was Chief
Accountant/Company Secretary. In 1981, he joined Sanofi
Aventis Pakistan Limited (formerly Hoechst Marion
Roussel Limited/Hoechst Pakistan Limited) from where
he retired as Director Finance and Administration in
October 2011. Subsequently he worked with the Overseas
Investors Chamber of Commerce and Industry (OICCI) for

ten years as Deputy Secretary General, from October
2011 to October 2021.

He also serves as the Independent Member of the Board
of Directors of Pakistan Oxygen Limited, Wyeth Pakistan
Limited and Loads Limited and their Board Committees.

His previous responsibilities included: Member of the
Board of Directors and Chairperson Audit Committee -
Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation (PIDC),
Member of the Board of Directors and Audit Committees
of Standard Chartered Leasing Limited and Sindh
Modaraba Limited, Chairperson of the ICAP Election
Committee and member of the ICAP Audit and Fiscal
Law Committees.

Mr. M. Z.
Moin Mohajir

Independent Director
(Chairperson)

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



Appointment: 1 April 2021
Nationality: Pakistani
Years of experience: 20+

Education: : ACA, ACMA, MBA

Mr. Haroon has been with GSK for over 10 years.
His last assignment was Audit Account Director, of
the GSK Global Audit & Assurance function, based
in London. Previously Mr. Haroon also served as
the Finance Director and a member of the Board of
Directors of the Company.

During his time with GSK, Mr. Haroon has led
various key local and above country restructurings,
M&As and change management projects. He has
performed multiple leadership roles in Finance,

Distributor Management, E2E Supply Chain,
In-Country Shared Services and played key
business partnering roles with Supply Chain, Legal,
HR and Site operations, through which he has

contributed to the success of the Company. Prior to
joining GSK, Mr Haroon worked in various
capacities for Lotte, sanofi and PwC.

Mr. Farhan
Muhammad Haroon

Executive Director
(Chief Executive Officer)
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Appointment: 27 October 2020
Nationality: Pakistani
Years of experience: over 16 years

Education: Chartered Accountant and Master’s
degree in Commerce.

Dilawar Meghani has diverse experience spanning
over 16 years of Financial Planning & Controlling,
Assurance & Advisory and led various restructuring,
integration and change management programs. He
has worked as a Senior Finance Business Partner for
GSK Pharma Saudi Arabia. Prior to this, he served as
a Financial Controller for GSK Consumer Healthcare.

He joined GSK in 2015 as part of Novartis Integration
where he was responsible for Consumer Healthcare
business as Manager Business Planning and Analysis
since 2012. Before joining Novartis, he has also
worked for Johnson & Johnson Pakistan and
PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PWC) on various

managerial and advisory positions.

He played a pivotal role in the merger of GSK and
Novartis consumer entities, creation and listing of
new legal entity at Pakistan Stock Exchange, local
manufacturing projects in Saudi Arabia, revamping
Core Commercial Cycle (CCCJ; driving significant
savings and efficiencies including re-designing route
to market for Saudi business.

Mr. Dilawar
Meghani

Executive Director
(Chief Financial Officer)

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



Appointment: 23 June 2016
Nationality: Pakistani

Years of experience: 40 years of experience in
various industries.

Education: Graduated with honours in Economics and
later obtained a master’s degree in the same
discipline.

Syed Anwar Mahmood, who retired as a Secretary to
the Government of Pakistan in 2008 after heading the
Ministry of Health and the Ministry of Information &
Broadcasting, now heads his own consultancy, media
and government relations firm. He also publishes and
edits a monthly magazine titled Health and Pharma.
He is also an honorary senior advisor in the office of
the Wafaqi Mohtasib (Federal Ombudsman).

He joined the Central Superior Services (CSS) of
Pakistan in November in 1971. After training at the

Civil Services Academy, he was assigned various
positions and responsibilities during which he earned
varied experience both in media and management,
including hands-on-experience of executing media
and communications strategy for the Federal
Government at the highest level.

He has served for nearly six years, spread over two
terms, as the Federal Information Secretary and the
government’s chief spokesman. He has headed many
media organizations as Chief Executive or as the
Chairperson of the Board, including PTV, PBC, SRBC,
APP and the Press Information Department.

Syed Anwar
Mahmood

(Independent
Director)
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Appointment: 3 March 2021
Nationality: Pakistani

Years of experience: over 28 years of financial
experience

Education: MBA (Institute of Business
Administration, Karachi) and CFA Charterholder

Ayesha Aziz currently serves as the CEO /
Managing Director of Pak Brunei Investment
Company (nominee of GoP). She brings over 20
years of experience in Structured Finance, Private
Equity & Strategic Advisory businesses. Ms. Aziz
started her career from ANZ Grindlays Bank &
worked in Merchant Banking & Treasury Markets
Divisions. She was also involved in establishing and
managing business operations of Pak Oman
Investment Company and its subsidiaries, in senior
roles.

She serves on the Board of Directors of Primus
Leasing (subsidiary) as Chairperson, Awwal
Modaraba Management Ltd (subsidiary) and is an
Independent Director on the boards of KSB Pumps
Company Ltd and Engro Polymer and Chemicals
Ltd.

Ms. Ayesha
Aziz
(Independent
Director)

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



Appointment: 26 August 2020
Nationality: French
Years of experience: 25 years

Education: International Executive MBA (High
Distinction) from the Louvain School of Management -
Belgium (1999); Doctorate Degree, Faculty of
Pharmacy - University Claude Bernard (Lyon -
France]; Second Degree Master - Focus in Galenic
(Formulation - Process - Production) - University
Diploma of Pharmaceutical Management, Institute de
la Pharmacie Industrielle de Lyon.

Oussama Abbas, currently Vice president, Head of
Quality & Supply Chain - Middle East & Africa (MEA],
Consumer Health Supply Chain (CHSC), is an
accomplished industrial senior executive of GSK with
proven abilities in international pharmaceutical,
biotech and animal healthcare. He also has solid
experience in leading manufacturing plants of

commercial and clinical supply-chain operations. He
is deeply involved in corporate organizational changes
with understanding of impact on other business
functions.

He joined GSK as Director, Secondary
Manufacturability & Clinical Supply in May 2009 and
has grown through the system to his current position
as the Head of Quality & Supply Chain of MEA.

He also serves as a Non-Executive Director of the
Board of Directors of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer
Nigeria plc.

Mr. Qussama
Abbas

(Non-Executive
Director)
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Appointment: 13 April 2020

Nationality: Pakistani

Years of experience: over 25 years

Education: Master’s Degree in Mass Communication from Karachi University.

Erum Shakir Rahim, VP & General Manager of GSK Pakistan Limited has a
professional career that spans over 25 years in the Pharmaceutical sector.

She started her career in the field of media, first in advertising, then as a journalist
and later joined GSK in Pakistan.

In GSK Pakistan, Erum did multiple commercial roles in Rx, Vaccines and Consumer.
These included Marketing, Sales, Comms, GA and Business Development (leading the
BMS, Stiefel and UCB acquisition as well as launching around 20 assets across
oncology, vaccines and Specialty and growing GSK core assets). During her tenure,
GSKP maintained its leadership of the market.

In 2013 Erum was appointed as General Manager of GSK Malaysia (+Brunei). In 2016
she took over as MD & GM of GSK Bangladesh and Developing Countries Asia Cluster
and then as GM Indonesia from mid-2018. Erum took over as Vice President & General
Manager of GSK Pakistan in April 2020.

Across all her roles, Erum has delivered GSK objectives consistently focusing on;
driving high quality and disciplined execution, in ensuring there is strong focus on
doing the right thing across the organization as well as developing strong teams.
She has worked in multiple geographies

Ms Eru m and led diverse teams across 9 countries
[}

in Asia where she was able to launch,

[ ]
Shaklr sustain and grow key brands and

. portfolios whilst managing public,
Rahlm government and regulatory challenges.
Erum has been on the boards of GSK
(Non-Executive  pakistan Limited, GSK Bangladesh and
Director) GSK Consumelj Healthcare Pakistar?
Limited, ensuring regulatory compliance

of the said listed companies.
She has also represented the industry on
various forums across different countries
as part of the Industry associations and is
a member of the Managing Committee of
OICCI.
Erum is the first woman from the
subcontinent to be appointed as GM by
GSK. She was also the first female GM in
Malaysia, Bangladesh and now Pakistan.
Her passion is people development.
She has a master’s degree in mass
communications and is a gold medalist in
both BA Honors & MA.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



Board's Diverse Experience
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N Finance, Risk Management, L’
. Regulatory and Governance ol
Geography and Cross AN e Corporate Strategic
Cultural Experience and Strategic Planning

Human Resources
and Community Development

General Management
. and Leadership Experience

e Sales, Marketing N
. and Business Development .

EXPERTISE

Our Board is an ideal mix of analytical, strategic and leadership skills. The Directors are seasoned
professionals and are familiar with the organizational and industrial aspects of operations and have
adequate competencies to bring value additions to our functions.

The Board represents diverse skill sets and expertise in Accounting Sales and Development,
Information Technology, Public Relations, Digital Marketing, Strategy Development and
Implementation, in alignment with our long-term strategic plans.

Diversity by Gender Diversity by Age (No.) Diversity by Experience (Years)

. Female ‘ Male i Above 50 ‘ From 30 to 50 N 25-40 ‘<25

WOMEN EMPLOYED (PERMANENT / NON-CONTRACTUAL) AT C MINUS-1 LEVEL IN
PERCENTAGE

15% of women are employed at a C Minus-1 level in the Company as of 31 December 2021.
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Company Secretary

Mashal Mohammad is the Company Secretary and
Legal Director of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer
Healthcare Pakistan Limited. She graduated from
Bristol University and City University of London with
honours and is a Barrister-at-Law from Lincoln’s Inn,
United Kingdom. She is also enrolled as an advocate
of the Lahore High Court and has over 14 years of
diversified work experience as an inhouse and
practicing lawyer. She is also a Certified Director,
having completed the Directors Training Programme
from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.
She is the recipient of numerous global employee
recognition awards of the Company. Additionally, she
is a winning graduate of GSK plc’s Global Legal
Emerging Talent Programme 2019. She has also
graduated from GSK plc's IMPACT Leadership
Development Programme 2019.

Mashal joined GSK in 2015 as an enterprise lawyer
supporting both pharma and consumer businesses
from a legal and corporate secretarial perspective.
She has supported the business in various capacities,
including but not limited to re-entry in the Islamic
Republic of Iran of the pharma business, overseeing
"fhe legal work of the Iran market thereafter, pivotal
work on the demerger of GSK Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited from GSK Pakistan Limited,
Novartis transaction and integration, merger of GSK
OTC (Pvt) Limited with and into GSK Consumer
Healthcare Pakistan Limited, and Pfizer CH
integration. Furthermore, she has been on an
internal assignment with GSK UK Pharma, based out
of London, United Kingdom. She is currently
employed as the Legal Director & Company Secretary
of the Company since May 2020.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

The core business (excluding toll and exports])
grew by 21% versus the same period last year
(SPLY]. The performance was mainly driven by
increase in demand and underlying consumption
trends. Our best in class supply chain and
in-market execution teams ensured that we were
able to meet the consumer needs across all
categories.

Within the Over the Counter (OTC) portfolio;
Respiratory, Pain Management and Nutrition &
Digestive Health categories registered a growth
of 63%, 21% and 17% respectively; whereas Oral
Healthcare registered a growth of 31% over the
corresponding period. The toll manufacturing
business of Rs 3 billion and the export business
of Rs 151 million continued to contribute towards
our revenue.

Gross profit margin at 27.4% of sales depicts a
marginal decline versus Q3 2021. Consequent to
the closure of a major Chinese supplier of
Paracetamol (i.e. the key raw material of
Panadol), its prices have been constantly
increasing since January 2021. In addition to
these unsustainable levels of paracetamol prices
hitherto, devaluation of Pakistani Rupee has
added to the cost pressures during second half
2021 and may continue to do so in the near future.

While delivering growth on our key brands with
continued focus on sustainable gross margins,
we have also been able to exercise due control on
our cost levers. Total expenses to net sales ratio
has improved from 18% to 16% as compared to
SPLY. Further, the other income of the Company
increased by Rs. 294 million vs SPLY mainly on
account of better cashflow management and
recovery of expenses from the group entities.

REASONS FOR NOT DECLARING
DIVIDEND

Your Company has delivered a fine profit and
earnings per share for the year 2021. However,

your Company can secure better shareholder
returns in future by investing more in the
capacity building of its core brands including
Panadol and CaC-1000 Plus. Further, the recent
imposition of sales tax on Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (APLs] will also put a strain on future
liquid resources. Consequently, the Board of
Directors have decided against recommending
dividend for the year ended 2021.

HOLDING COMPANY

As at December 31, 2021, GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare B.V., Netherlands held
100,423,259 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each,
representing 85.79% of the total shares of the
Company.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The Company’s shares are traded on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited. The shareholding
information as of December 31, 2021 and other
related information is set out on page nos. 216 to
219 of the Annual Report.

CHAIRPERSON’S REVIEW

The Chairperson’s message to the shareholders
on page nos. 89 to 90 of the Annual Report
contains information regarding:

- Board evaluation for the year 2021;

- Board committees which include the Audit
Committee, Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee, and Integration
and Supply Network Optimization Committee;
and

- The culture of the Company.

The Directors of the Company endorse the
contents of the same.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share after taxation were Rs.
18.21 as compared to Rs 10.78 earnings per share
in 2020.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility is an integral part
of the Company’s ethos and policy and it has been
pursuing this on a sustained basis. Your Company
is committed to drive the mission of helping
people to “Do More, Feel Better, Live Longer.”

During the period under report, the Company
undertook various initiatives for the welfare of
the society which are elaborated upon on page
no. 253 to 264 of the Annual Report.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
AND SUCCESSION PLANNING

Your Company takes great pride in not only
recognizing its people as its key asset, but also
ensures that this belief is translated into a
conducive working environment to provide
growth opportunities, respect, empowerment and
inspiration. As a company that is geared towards
helping people, we ensure that our employees
are not only committed to this vision with the
utmost passion and sincerity but are also well
equipped to perform and deliver at their best
potential.

With this objective in mind, the Human Resource
Development team engages and develops
policies including competitive remuneration,
performance management and succession
planning including a wide range of development
opportunities as well as international
assignments. This is supported through
implementation of an internal talent development
system that helps provide leaders with the data
needed for strategic alignment and decision
making. Along with this, it carries out continuous
feedback, evaluation, and communication
programme ensuring that our employees are
well aligned and believe in our core behaviours of
“Keep it Human, Go Beyond, and Do What
Matters Most” and operating with transparency.

Annual Report 2021

With our high-performance culture, we are
constantly evaluating and building a team that
truly considers itself the foundation of the
Company and draws its strength from and
contributes towards the evolution of a company
that aims to be a high-performance Consumer
Healthcare Goods Company in the industry.

CONSUMER / PATIENT SAFETY

Your Company focuses on the health of its
consumers and patients thus always looking for
continuous improvement in order to provide
highest Quality products that are safe for use. To
meet this commitment, we implement and follow
strict guidelines that control both manufacturing
and supply of the trusted brands. Our products
comply with all applicable local and international
regulations and are manufactured according to
current Good Manufacturing Practices (cGMP)
and GSK internal Quality Management System.

As a team, we have been working to identify ways
in which we can maintain and improve the trust
of our consumers at the end of our supply chain.
We always focus on consumer needs, put their
safety first, provide them with clear and
up-to-date information, and always promote our
products appropriately and ethically. Our values
demand that we think about, and protect the
interests of our consumers at all times.

Our patients and consumers are our first priority.
Therefore, we make sure the consumer voice is
heard at all stages through inclusive relationship
to understand their views, needs and
expectations. Our Purpose, passion and pride is
to be Customer & Consumer obsessed and help
people to sustain and improve their health.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND
SAFETY (EHS)

Your Company has an established EHS
framework of compliance and constantly raising
the bar by striving to go beyond the local legal
environmental, health & safety requirements.
EHS is the driving force of our business
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operations which ensures safe workplace,
healthy environment and energy efficient
processes.

Your Company has implemented Global EHS
Standards to ensure that we deliver best quality
products balanced with ensuring safety at each
level. We believe in continuously improving our
systems by taking new initiatives to meet the
company’s Environment, Health & Safety
objectives.

Some of our recent initiatives proved to be an
instrumental step in being a safe and healthy
community and are elaborated in the
Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility
sections on page nos. 253 to 264 of the Annual
Report.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND
HEALTH

Your Company continues its legacy to promote
the health and well-being of its employees by

implementing strict control over occupational
health & safety. To achieve these objectives, a
systematic approach is established to achieve
these goals.

In order to improve Occupational Safety and
Health at our Jamshoro site, some significant
measures have been successfully taken which
are explained in the Sustainability and Corporate
Social Responsibility sections on page nos. 253 to
264 of the Annual Report.

ETHICS, COMPLIANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

At the Company, we face several legal,
regulatory, reputational, operational and
strategic risks as a part and parcel of belonging
to a highly regulated industry. We manage these
risks using our internal methodology i.e. Internal
Control Framework, which is based on
recognized international risk management
standards.

The Ethics and Compliance function is
responsible for supporting the development and
implementation of practices that facilitate
compliance with laws and global company
policies. The Compliance function partners work
with the business to support the Winning
Formula by effectively managing risk, simplifying
controls, promoting the Company’s Values and
securing our Mission to make a positive impact
on the lives of patients and consumers.

The risks of the Company are managed through
the various compliance programmes specified
below:

Risk Management and Compliance Board:

Our Risk Management and Compliance Board
(RMCB] is responsible to effectively identify,
assess, mitigate, monitor and report major risks
that the business may encounter. All critical
business risk units are governed by the RMCB,
which promotes the ‘tone from the top’,
establishes the culture regarding risk, and
oversees internal controls. The RMCB has
formed a structure through which designated
Functional Heads are responsible for identifying
and treating significant risks and each Functional
Head then performs a review of their respective
key risks, takes corrective and preventive
approach to ensure appropriate controls are in
place and wherever gaps are identified, clear
plans are assigned to address them. The
Compliance Function facilitates in instilling a
risk- based approach to establishing a robust
internal controls system. This eventually makes
risk management an integral part of decision
making and business operations. The RMCB
meeting is held at least once in a quarter or more
frequently when required.

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption (ABAC) and
Data Privacy:

The Company’'s ABAC programme is developed to
help ensure that neither the Company nor its
third parties bribe (or are bribed by) either

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



government or regulatory bodies, or private
sector entities. It reinforces its zero tolerance
towards all forms of corruption and its
commitment to maintaining accurate records of
all business dealings. It is also to ensure that no
undue influence is exerted in engagements, that
no personal benefit is gained and that no
corruption occurs. Corruption can include fraud,
money laundering and tax evasion. Put simply, it
helps to ensure ethical business, aligned to the
Company's Values. Privacy is concerned with how
we manage the personal information we hold on
individuals - such as patients, healthcare
professionals, consumers, employees and
complementary workers. Personal information is
any information that can identify, or reasonably
be used to identify someone. The Company has
strict policies in place when it comes to Data
Privacy and there is zero tolerance for data
breaches.

Third Party Oversight (TPO) Programme:

To achieve our purpose, we often work in
partnership with third parties, who bring skill,
expertise or scale to help us deliver our mission.
We strive to conduct business only with those
suppliers, distributors, equity stake holdings and
other business partners / third parties who share
our commitment to high ethical standards and
operate in a responsible way. The Company has
implemented a comprehensive Third Party
Oversight programme to strengthen its
management of risk. The aim is to ensure that all
third parties are risk assessed against the
enterprise-wide risks and accordingly, fully
compliant contracts are entered into.

Values and Expectations:

We deliver clear and integrated compliance
solutions that are embedded in the Company’s
Values (Consumer focused, Respect, Integrity,
and Transparency) and Expectations (Courage,
Accountability, Development, and Teamwork] in
order to build trust. We also conducted a GSK
Values Assurance review last year and made
significant progress during the year to ensure
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that your Company follows its Values and
Expectations in letter and spirit. This was
reflected in our employee engagement score
being the highest across the GSK universe.

Written Standards:

The Company's has various policies and other
written standards which help us manage the
risks associated with operating in a heavily
regulated industry.

Speak Up Programme:

The Company ensures that it conducts business
with complete honesty, fairness, openness and
integrity. The Company encourages its employees
and business partners to report any genuine
concerns about misconduct or unlawful conduct
and has strict policies in place against any kind of
retaliation against the person raising the
concern.

Governance of Legal Agreements (GOLA):

The Company’s GOLA SOP ensures that its risks
and liabilities are mitigated appropriately and to
ensure that the Company’s expectations and
requirements from third parties (including their
performance and compliance with GSK policies)
are clearly stated by documenting the rights and
responsibilities of GSK and each third party in a
legally enforceable agreement.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company ensures compliance with Code of
Corporate Governance for all the related party
transactions. The details of these transactions
are provided in note no. 36 of the annexed
financial statements available at page no. 195 to
196 of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, Yousuf Adil, Chartered
Accountants had indicated their consent to
continue as auditors. The Board of Directors
endorses the recommendation of the Audit




Committee for their continuation as the Statutory
External Auditors of the Company for the
financial year ending 31 December 2022, at a
mutually agreed fee.

VALUE OF INVESTMENTS OF
PROVIDENT, GRATUITY AND PENSION
FUNDS

The Company maintains retirement benefit plans
for its employees. The value of investments of
provident and gratuity funds as at 31 December
2021 was as follows:

Provident fund Rs. 325 Million
Gratuity fund Rs. 131 Million

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL
EXCHEQUER AND ECONOMY

Your Company made a total contribution of Rs 1,805
million to the National Exchequer by way of income
tax, sales tax, custom duties and employees’
income tax during the year 2021.

Your Company’s contribution through income tax
amounted to Rs. 832 million, sales tax Rs. 482
million, customs duty Rs. 408 Million and Rs. 83
million through employee related taxes.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

The Board of Directors have set up effective
internal financial controls across all functions. The
independent Internal Audit function of your
Company regularly monitors the implementation of
financial controls, whereas the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the internal control
framework. Refer audit Committee report on page
no. 106 of the Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

The Board is well versed with the requirements of
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and has taken
relevant steps to ensure compliance with the same,
along with the Management. Please refer to the
review report on the Statement of Compliance
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issued by the external auditors of the Company
further to the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 on page no. 149 of
the Annual Report.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure for the year 2021 amounted
to Rs. 543 million. The expenditure includes
replacement at our Jamshoro site of one of the
main packaging head assembly for CaC-1000 Plus
effervescent Tablet and upgrading and replacement
of site drainage system at our Jamshoro site to
cater to Panadol Liquid in-sourcing requirements.
Out of the above amount, to ensure the optimum
quality of our products and compliance, the
Company spent Rs. 58 million on quality related
equipment and compliance.

FUTURE OUTLOOK AND CHALLENGES

Post pandemic, the global healthcare system has
embarked upon the journey of selfcare where
consumers prefer to take charge of their health and
wellbeing. This has created opportunity for
companies that operate in the preventive
healthcare segment, with your Company not being
an exception. Our household brands, including
Panadol, CaC 1000 Plus, Eno, Sensodyne and many
others are well placed to deliver that promise in
Pakistan. To continue our journey towards high
growth ambition, we have laid out plans to
strategically allocate resources within key growth
areas and streamline operations to cater these
evolving needs.

We are optimistic that the year 2022 will continue to
contribute to successful execution of all our plans.
The investment plans have been structured to bring
more innovative healthcare solutions to our
consumers. Focus on systems, capacity
enhancement and market penetration have
positioned your Company to further consolidate
leadership position in all categories it operates in.

To meet current and future demand, your Company
remains agile and is proactively engaged in
strengthening its pipeline of high-quality
innovations. A conducive regulatory framework is,
however, essential to enable an environment where
innovative solutions can be fast tracked. We believe
that sustainable pricing and timely regulatory
approvals are key pre-requisites, especially when
innovations require high capital investments.

Global commaodity prices and international logistic
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challenges pose a risk to profitability in future. With
current paracetamol prices escalating manifold
compared to last year and supply challenges, our
Pain category may remain a margin diluter. On the
part of the regulator, there is a need to devise an
adequate mechanism for approval of hardship
cases where emerging cost escalations can be
timely addressed. Absence of such a mechanism
may pose a serious risk towards availability of high
quality and low-priced essential medicines.

CEQ’s Presentation Video on the Company's
Performance, Strategy and Outlook can be seen at
the Company's website:
www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Independent Directors of the Company are

entitled to a remuneration recommended by Human

Resource, Remuneration and Nominations

Committee [HRR&NC] and approved by the Board,

based on market benchmark of the consumer

healthcare industry and other similar style of

business.

The salient features of the policy and procedure

are:

- The Company does not pay any remuneration
to its non-executive directors; and

- Adirector shall be provided or reimbursed all
travelling, boarding, lodging and other
expenses incurred by him for attending
meetings of the Board, its Committees and/or
General Meetings of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTOR AND
EXECUTIVES

A detailed note on the remuneration of the Chief
Executive Officer, Directors and Executives for the
year 2021 are provided in note no. 35 of the annexed
financial statements reproduced on page no. 194 to
195 of the Annual Report.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board opted for an external evaluation of
performance of the Board and its Committees. This
evaluation was conducted by the Pakistan Institute
of Corporate Governance. The outcomes of this
evaluation resulted in valuable insight and areas of
focus for the members of the Board. Please refer
to page no. 93 to 94 of the Annual Report for further
details about the evaluation conducted for the year
2021.

COMPOSITION AND COMMITTEES OF
THE BOARD

The total number of Directors are seven (7) as per
the following: Male:5 Female: 2

The composition of the Board as at December 31,
2021 is as follows:

Independent Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir
Directors Syed Anwar Mahmood

Ms. Ayesha Aziz
Executive Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon*
Directors Mr. Dilawar Meghani
Non - Executive Mr. Oussama Abbas
Directors Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim

* During the year, Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin retired on March
31, 2021 and Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon was appointed
as Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director on April 01,
2021.

The Board’'s composition and the details of its
committees are provided on page nos. 91 & 92 and
105 of the Annual Report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board of Directors take this opportunity to
thank all GSK employees for their outstanding,
untiring work and dedication to ensure that the
Company Delivers Better Everyday Health with
Humanity. The Board would like to further extend
its appreciation to all stakeholders, shareholders,
suppliers and partners for their continued support
and dedication in the achievement of the Company’s
results.

By the order of the Board

Sincerely,

Farhan Muhammad Haroon
Chief Executive Officer

Dilawar Meghani
Chief Financial Officer

Date: 9" February, 2022
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Chairperson’s Review
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BOARD EVALUATION

The Board has carried out an independent /
external performance evaluation of the Board
and its Committees. The evaluation identified
areas for further improvement in line with global
best practices. The main focus remained on
strategic growth, business opportunities, risk
management, Board composition and providing
oversight to the management. Please refer to
page no. 92 to 94 of the Annual Report for further
details regarding the evaluation.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

With strong oversight on reporting, the Board has
a responsibility to provide a clear visibility of
financial reports to stakeholders in accordance
with the Financial Reporting framework
applicable in Pakistan. Thus, the financial
statements have been prepared in accordance
with the applicable accounting and reporting
standards and in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Your Company has three (3) committees, as
stated below, to assist the Board for its optimal
performance:

¢ Board Audit Committee;

e Human Resource & Remuneration and
Nomination Committee; and

e Integration and Supply Network Optimization
Committee

The terms of reference and details about the
members of committees are provided on page
nos. 105 to 111 and 103 respectively of the Annual
Report.

CULTURE OF THE COMPANY

Our Company’s Values (Consumer First,
Integrity, Respect and Transparency),
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Expectations (Courage, Accountability,
Development and Teamwork) and Behaviours
(Keep it Human, Do What Matters Most and

Go Beyond) help us to cultivate a conducive work
environment. These are inter alia included in the
Company’s Code of Conduct, which has been
simplified for ease of reference. Every employee
and complementary worker is required to
complete mandatory trainings on the Code of
Conduct annually, among other trainings
pertaining to ‘Living Our Values’.

We believe in offering individual development
opportunities and recognising employees for how
they work, as well as what they achieve. We want
everyone at the Company to feel proud of the
work they do, with a strong belief in your
Company’s Purpose of delivering ‘Better
Everyday Health with Humanity’.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| extend my gratitude to the Board of Directors
for their valuable support and commitment. |
would also like to sincerely thank our dedicated
and hardworking employees for all their efforts,
as well as our consumers, shareholders,
customers, suppliers and all other stakeholders
for placing their trust in in the Company. It is with
your support that we are growing swiftly and
expanding rapidly year by year.

gﬁv’_.

MR. M.Z. MOIN MOHAJIR
Chairperson

Date: 9" February, 2022




Corporate Governance
ROLE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is responsible for
governing the organization by establishing Board
policies, setting goals, objectives and strategies.
The Board exercises all powers granted to it by
the Companies Act, 2017 with responsibility,
diligence, and in compliance with the legal
framework after due deliberations in its
meetings. These include, but are not limited to,
ensuring the Company's prosperity by collectively
monitoring and directing the Company's affairs,
whilst protecting the appropriate interests of its
shareholders and stakeholders. The Board is
responsible for the Company’s system of internal
controls, policy frameworks, corporate
governance, risk assessments and ultimately
accountable for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is also accountable to the shareholders for
ensuring that the Company is appropriately
managed and achieves its business objectives.
The Board remains committed to the highest
standards of corporate governance and integrity.

Business is focused around an established
framework which assists to deliver the main
objectives of the Company i.e. increase growth,
deliver results and simplify performance, as well
as to create a long-term value for shareholders.
At the Company, we have a Board that follows a
coherent corporate governance framework with
clearly defined responsibilities and
accountabilities.

The Board of Directors meets approx. 4-5 times a
year to consider the Company’s financial
performance, operating budgets, forecasts,
business strategy, development plans, capital
expenditure plans, assets disposal, major
investments, licensing decisions and evaluates
and monitors the Company’s performance. The
Board comprises of seven (7] Directors, who
actively ensure that all shareholders and

stakeholder’s interests are fully protected. There
are five (5) non-executive directors on our Board,
three (3) of whom are independent directors. In
view of the Company’s policy on Inclusion and
Diversity and compliance with applicable law, the
Company maintains female representation on the
Board with two (2) Director being a female.

The Board also formulates corporate strategies
and Company objectives. The Company pays
bench-marked remuneration to the
Non-Executive Directors for attending the
meetings of the Company, which includes the
Board Meetings and the meetings of the Board
Committees. In order to adequately delegate, the
Board has constituted Board Committees. Each
Committee has its charter with goals and
responsibilities. The Committees report on their
activities and results to the Board.

The Board, whilst maintaining its overall
responsibility for managing risk within the
Company, has delegated the executive and
operational management of the Company to the
Chief Executive Officer’s office and Management
Team.

DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE BOARD

The Board has defined its policy of materiality
and such matters are accordingly placed before
the Board for its decision(s). The Board convenes
at least 4-5 times in a year on a quarterly basis at
a minimum where material decisions are taken.
In between, the Board is readily available for
consultation and decisions for urgent matters
circulated to them.

OUR BOARD COMPOSITION

There are five (5) non-executive directors on our
Board, three (3] of whom are independent
directors, out of which one chairs both the Board
Audit Committee and Human Resource,
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Remunerations and Nominations Committee
(HRR&NC]. The Chairperson is also an
Independent Director.

All Independent Directors have been appointed in
accordance with the requirements of Section 166
of the Companies Act, 2017 and all applicable law.
The current Board composition reflects a good
mix of experience, diversity in backgrounds,
skills and qualifications, and comprises of
individuals actively ensure that all shareholders
and stakeholder’s interests are fully protected.

Our Board composition is mainly governed by
Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance] Regulations, 2019 and
other good corporate governance practices,
ideologies available locally and internationally.

The Company values and ensures effective,
efficient and independent decision making. The
Board as a group includes competencies and
diversity considered relevant to operations of a
public limited company. Our Board comprises of
members who have local and international
experience, giving the Board a competitive edge
for effectively managing the complexities of our
business. Our Board of Directors comprise of
highly qualified professionals from varied
disciplines, including pharmaceutical, finance,
investment, financial institutions, and business
management.

The composition of the Board and the names of
Members of Board sub-committees are disclosed
in the Statement of Compliance with the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 issued by the Company on
pages 150 to 152 of the Annual Report.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD
COMPOSITION

The changes in the Board composition are as

follows:

al The retirement / resignation of Mr. Sohail
Ahmed Matin, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director, who was replaced by
Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director.
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b] The resignation of Mr. Talal Javed Ahmed,
Non-Executive Director, who was replaced by
Ms. Ayesha Aziz, Independent Director.

For further details regarding the above, please
refer to pages 150 to 152 of this Report.

SHARIAH ADVISOR

International Halal Certification (IHC) Pakistan
has advised the company on Shariah Affairs
during the year. IHC Pakistan is a leading Halal
Certification body, duly Accredited by Pakistan
National Accreditation Council (PNAC]. IHC offers
Halal Certification services globally for food,
beverages, ingredients, cosmetics,
pharmaceuticals, nutraceutical, animal feed,
packaging materials, food service establishments
and Hotels to its certified clients all over the
world.

IHC services include “Halal Audit & Certification”
for the companies, to verify their implementation
of Halal Management System and Certify their
Products/Services as Halal. IHC also provides
“Awareness Trainings on Halal Food
Management System” for the Halal Industry as
well as promoting the trade of “Halal Certified
Products”.

IHC Pakistan has also assisted the Company in
Halal Certification of key FMCG brands including
Sensodyne and Parodontax.

EVALUATION OF THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER.

The performance of the Chief Executive Officer is
evaluated through the Company’s internal
performance evaluation system, which is based
upon the Company’s objectives. This is further
deliberated upon by the Board.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE
BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors act as governing trustees
of the Company on behalf of the

shareholders while carrying out the Company’s
mission and goals.




As per the requirements of Code of Corporate
Governance and S.R.0. 301 (1)/2020 dated 9 April
2020, the Chairperson of the Board of Directors
opted for an in-house assessment with the
support of the Secretary of the Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee and the Company
Secretary to evaluate the performance of the
Board in 2021. Qualitative and quantitative criteria
were used in the evaluation form, as follows:

e Appropriate composition of the Board and its
quality of skills.

e Compliance with all applicable law,
particularly the Companies Act, 2017, Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019, and the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company.

e Execution in supporting and upholding the
Company’s Values and Expectations

e Adherence to the Company’s Code of Conduct.

e Advising the management on developing
appropriate strategies and ensuring that
operations are in line with the same.

e The effectiveness and efficiency of the
operation of the Board and its committees.

e Oversight of the Financial Reporting Process,
including Internal Controls.

e Contributions to ensure robust and effective
risk management and monitoring the
Company’s performance against its
objectives.

e Adequate and constructive execution of the
Chairperson’s role.

Furthermore, the criteria for this year were
presented in simple language for the ease of the
members of the Board. The evaluation was
conducted on a digital platform for the
convenience of all Board members, as well as for
the ease of computation of the outcomes, setting
of future KPIs and metrics. Upon the completion
of evaluation, the future strategies and action
plans were formulated to address the identified
challenges / issues were shared with the
Chairperson and the members of the Board and
with the SECP.

BOARD’S PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION BY EXTERNAL
CONSULTANT ONCE IN THREE
YEARS

The Board of Directors act as governing trustees
of the Company on behalf of the shareholders
while carrying out the Company’s mission and
goals.

As per the requirements of Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 and S.R.0. 301 (1)/2020 dated 9 April 2020,
the Company appointed the Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance (PICG) to conduct an
external assessment of the Board for the year
2021, so as to obtain an independent assessment
of the strengths and capabilities of the board and
its committees.

The assessment questionnaire was customised in
consultation with the Chairperson and the
Company Secretary, who ensured compliance
with the Companies Act, 2017, Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019, the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, the Values, Code of
Conduct, and Behaviours of the Company are
taken into account when customising
questionnaire.

The PICG board evaluation questionnaire used
the following criteria:

e Board Composition: Requisite knowledge and
experience, diversity, size, number of
independent directors, succession planning
of the Board of Directors to gauge effective
governance.

e Board and CEO Compensation:
Competitiveness of remuneration policy for
the Board and its committees as well as the
CEQ, was evaluated to gauge adequate
remuneration.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



e Strategic Planning: Contributions towards
robust and effective risk management and
monitoring the Company’s performance
against its objectives.

e Board Procedures: Evaluation of the
transparency and effectiveness of the
procedures of the Board.

e Board Information: Whether appropriate and
timely information was provided to the Board
and its Committees.

e Board and its Committees: The effectiveness
and efficiency of the operation of the Board,
and its committees was evaluated.

e Chairperson & CEO Effectiveness:
Effectiveness of the Chairperson, and CEO
was assessed.

e Control Environment: Assessment of the
oversight of the financial reporting process,
including Internal controls in place.

Upon the completion of the evaluation, the future
strategies and action plans were formulated to
address the identified challenges / issues were
shared with the Chairperson and the members of
the Board and with the SECP. The overall
performance of the Board, its committees,
Chairman and CEO measured based on approved
criteria remained satisfactory.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING(S)

The Board is kept up to date on legal, regulatory
and governance matters through regular papers
and briefings from the Company Secretary and

presentations by internal and external advisers.

Directors are responsible for upholding the
corporate governance and giving the Company a
strategic direction. To optimize the effectiveness
of the Board, it is pertinent for new members to
learn the dynamics and operations of the
Company.

The Company conducts various training
programmes to make sure the Board is aligned

with the Company’s missions and governance.

Five out of seven (5/7) Directors on the Board
have successfully completed the Directors’
Training Programme certification from SECP
approved institutions, as specified below.

e Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon
e Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir

e Mr. Dilawar Meghani

e Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim

e Ms. Ayesha Aziz

All the other directors possess sufficient skills
and experience as prescribed by the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

The Company Secretary also conducted a
refresher training of the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 for
the Board of Directors in Q3-2021.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING
PROGRAMME ATTENDED BY
FEMALE EXECUTIVES AND
HEAD(S) OF DEPARMENT AND/OR
EXEMPTIONS.

The Company has successfully complied with the
encouraged requirement of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 regarding training of at least one head of
department and one female executive every year.

BOARD INDUCTION AND
ORIENTATION

The Company Secretary assists the Chairperson
in designing and facilitating individual induction
programmes for new Directors. They are
designed with the purpose of orienting and
familiarizing new Directors with the industry the
Company operates in, organisation, governance
and objectives of the Company.

All new Directors receive a general induction
from the Company Secretary, which includes
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their duties and responsibilities as a Director of a
listed company, the Company’s Corporate
Governance structure and undertake training on
the Company’s Code of Conduct.

The induction programme for Executive Directors
inter alia includes an explanation of the role of an
Executive Director, if appropriate, building
relationships with the Chairperson and the Board
and arranging to fill any capability gaps the new
Director may have.

The induction programme for Non-Executive
Directors inter alia includes explanations of the
Company’s business and financial structure, the
commercial and regulatory environment in which
we operate, our competitors and an investor’s
perspective.

To ensure that our Directors develop and
maintain a greater insight and understanding of
the business and key stakeholders, they:

- Are familiarized with the industry and the
Company.

- Review the Board's operations, legal
requirements and duties, committee
structures and relevant charters.

- Peruse and understand the Board
Chairperson and Committee chairperson
roles along with the CEO’s roles and
responsibilities.

- Are made aware of statutory director duties.

- Provided company policies for their review,
including any policy that impact the directors
such as conflict of interest, whistle blowing,
health and safety, environment, corporate
social responsibility.

- Review any recent investor presentations
such as the corporate briefing sessions.

- Visit our business operations and different
manufacturing sites, which are also a feature
of the Directors’ induction programme.

- Receive documents explaining the following:

e The Company’s business and financial
structure, the commercial and regulatory
environment in which we operate, our

competitors and an investor’'sperspective.

e Role and responsibility of Directors under
the Companies Act, 2017, Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 and any other applicable law.

e Investor relations and stakeholder
reports to maintain awareness of investor
and stakeholder views and competitors’
performance and strategy.

* Directors and officers (D&O0) insurance
and indemnification documents.

e Yearly meeting schedules of the
Company.

e Latest financial statements.

e |mportant minutes of past meetings.

e Major litigations status.

EXTERNAL OVERSIGHT

The Company has outsourced the operations of
its Internal Audit department to one of the Big 4
Audit Firms in Pakistan - Ernst & Young, who
specialize in performing Assurance, Consulting,
Strategy and Transactions, and Tax related
services. To cater to the dynamic and highly
regulated environment in which the Company
operates, EY works closely with the Company’s
Chief Internal Auditor, to prepare various
functions to address the most complex issues,
using a proven global audit methodology and
deploying the latest, high-quality auditing tools
and technologies.

Additionally, the Company has an Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) cycle that helps to identify,
manage, and report on the most critical risks in a
proportionate and consistent way. Risk
ownership and accountability is embedded within
the business and supported by Management
Committee. The Company’s Internal Controls
Framework (ICFW) has been designed to
implement and maintain the controls on financial
reporting and assessing the effectiveness of the
internal controls in place. The Chief Finance
Officer is required to sign-off on the performance
quality of these controls and ensure that
mitigation plans are being implemented to curb
any gaps identified.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Company has a formal policy and transparent
procedures for remuneration of its Directors in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019. In view of its
objectives, the Company operates an independent
and transparent method to fix Directors’
remuneration. The purpose of this procedure is
to determine the remuneration of directors (both
executive and non-executive directors including
independent directors). HRRC recommends
remuneration package of the Directors to the
Board. The Company ensures that the
remuneration of the Board of Directors remain
market-based in accordance with their
experience.

The key element of determining the
remuneration is by market benchmarking against
other key players of Fast-Moving Consumer
Healthcare Companies and other similar types of
business and remuneration is not at a level that
could be perceived to compromise the
independence of the Directors. For the purposes
of clarity, no Director is involved in deciding their
own remuneration.

Non-Executive Independent Directors are entitled
to remuneration for their services, as decided by
the Board, for attending Board and Committee
meetings. They are also entitled to
reimbursement of expenses including boarding /
lodging and travel expenses incurred in
connection to attendance of the Board and its
Committees meeting and Annual / Extra Ordinary
General Meetings.

Accordingly, such remuneration paid during the

year is specified in Note No. 35 of the annexed
financial statements.
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SECURITY CLEARANCE OF
FOREIGN DIRECTORS

All foreign Directors on our Board are required
submit relevant documents, including
declarations and/or undertaking and any
document required to facilitate security
clearance undertaken by the Ministry of Interior.
Relevant documents of all foreign directors are
submitted to SECP within the prescribed time and
further documents to assist the clearance from
Ministry of Interior are made available as and
when needed. All appointments of foreign
Directors are subject to provision of security
clearance certificate from the Ministry.

GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
EXCEEDING LEGAL
REQUIREMENTS

The Company strives to operate transparent,
consistent and timely compliance with all
prevailing laws and regulations of Pakistan. We
take pride in proactively complying with many
additional legal requirements which are not
mandatory.

In addition to all the mandatory requirements of
the laws and regulations of Pakistan, some
examples are given below:

e The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 encourages at
least half of the directors on the Board of a
Company to have completed the Directors’
Training Programme trained by 30 June 2020.
Currently, as of 31 December 2021, more than
50% of the Directors are either trained through
SECP approved institutions or exempted.

e Reporting requirements enhanced to best
practice guidelines issued by ICAP & ICMAP,
SAFA and the Pakistan Stock Exchange’s Top 25
Companies requirements.

e The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, also encourages at




least one (1) female executive to complete the
Directors’ Training Programme in a year, which
the Company has complied with to ensure best
practices in corporate governance yearly, despite
this being an encouraged stipulation of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

e The Company has had two (2] female
directors on its Board prior to the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 mandating female
representation on boards. The Company has
continued its commitment to inclusion and
diversity and continues to have two (2] female
directors on its Board.

LIVING OUR VALUES AND
EXPECTATIONS / NEW CULTURE
AND BEHAVIOURS

Together, our Values (Consumer First, Integrity,
Respect and Transparency) and Expectations
(Courage, Accountability, Development and
Teamwork] help us to create the culture we want.
They are included in the Company’s Code of
Conduct, which we have updated to make it
simpler and easier to use. Every employee and
complementary worker is required to complete
mandatory trainings on the Code of Conduct
annually.

2021 also signaled the year a new Culture team
was created with cross functional representation
from Jamshoro, the head office, commercial,
supply functions, sales and expert. This team was
responsible for the rollout of the new Purpose
(Everyday Health with Humanity) and Behaviours
(Keep it Human, Do What Matters Most and Go
Beyond) of the Company, which it successfully
completed with immense engagement.

INCLUSION AND DIVERSITY POLICY

Inclusion and Diversity (I&D] continues to be a big
priority for the Company, which has always prided

97

itself on being an equal opportunities employer.
The Company believes that I&D unleashes the
enormous potential of its people, which in turn
helps the Company to strengthen its ability to
meet the needs of its consumers.

The Company believes that everyone has a part to
play in creating a fair and inclusive work
environment. Currently, the Company has 15%
female representation within its workforce. In
2021, the Company accelerated its progress on
|&D. One of the first steps the Company took
during the year was to ensure the approval of the
I&D Policy by the esteemed Board of Directors.
Consequently, the Company took resolute
measures to increase representation of females
on the Company’s Sales and Expert teams. The
Company has aspirations to further accelerate
their approach to I&D over the course of the year.

The Company has a zero-tolerance approach to
harassment, bullying, unwelcome / unreasonable
/ offensive behavior, and/ or discrimination of any
kind. This policy is driven by home by several face
to face awareness sessions further to the GSK
Women’s Leadership Initiative, Protection against
Harassment of Women at the Workplace Act,
2010 as well as the GSK Code of Conduct. The
Company cascades several e-learning modules
to its employees as well on, covering its Code of
Conduct, and on Inclusion and Diversity on an
annual basis.

INCLUSION AND DIVERSITY ON
THE BOARD AND C-SUIT
EXECUTIVES

Conscious of its commitments as a modern
employer, the Company pledges to do more in its
approach to inclusion and diversity. The Board of
Directors is certainly no exception to the same
and takes a progressive approach to inclusion
and diversity. The Company commits to provide
equal opportunities across all boundaries of race,
ethnicity, gender, religion and so on.
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Appointments on the Board are strictly based
upon value addition and exclusive of any
discriminatory elements. This is evidenced by
female non-executive directors on the Board
before female representation became mandatory
by law, two female directors currently on the
Board, a female former chairperson, and several
c-suite female executives, including but not
limited to, the Company Secretary and the Chief
Internal Auditor.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS IN THE
COMPANY SERVING AS
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

No executive Directors are acting as
non-executive directors in any other Company.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE IN
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Refer note no 36 of the annexed financial
statements on page 195 to 196 of the Annual
Report.

POLICY OF RELATED PARTIES AND
DICLOSURE OF INTEREST BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has a formal policy of Related
Parties” Transactions which has been approved
by the Board of Directors. The Policy covers the
procedures with regard to Related Party
Transactions for reviewing, approving and
ratifying related party transactions and in
providing disclosures as required under section
208 of Companies Act 2017 and other applicable
law. The Policy also covers all Related Party
transactions between the Company and any of its
related parties.

The Company maintains a party wise record of
transactions and ensures that it includes the
minimum information as prescribed by the law.
All transactions with related parties arising in the
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normal course of business are carried out on an
unbiased, arm’s length basis at normal
commercial terms and conditions. If the Company
enters into a transaction or agreement which is
not at arm’s length, the Company must ensure
that the terms are in the best interest of the
Company. Further, where majority of Directors of
the Company are interested, the transaction is
referred to shareholders in a general meeting for
ratification and approval.

Records of all related party transactions are
placed before the Board Audit Committee on a
quarterly basis. Upon recommendation of the
Audit committee all related party transactions
are placed before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval.

Names of all such related parties along with
whom the Company had entered into transactions
during the year, along with the nature of their
relationship and percentage holdings have been
appropriately disclosed in Note No. 36 and
detailed disclosure regarding related party
transactions has been presented in Note No. 36
of the Financial Statements.

INSIDE INFORMATION REGISTER

In compliance with regulatory requirements, the
Company ensures that it maintains an Inside
Information Register, which is updated on a
regular basis. For efficiency and ease, the Inside
Information Register is managed digitally, in
addition to being available in hardcopy form.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST AMONG
BOARD MEMBERS

The Company has a clear policy on conflict of
interests which contained in the Code of Conduct
duly approved by the Board of Directors. As per
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance), 2019, every Director is required to
bring to the attention of the Board complete
details regarding any material transaction which
has a conflict of interest for prior approval of the




Board. The interested Directors neither
participate in discussions nor vote on such
matters. Further, complete details of all
transactions with related parties are submitted to
the Audit Committee which recommends them to
the Board for approval in each quarter. These
transactions are also fully disclosed in the annual
financial statements of the company. All
Directors are reminded of insider trading and
avoid in the dealing of shares during the closed
period every quarter.

The Board has been constituted in compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017
and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance], 2019. The members of the Board,
including Non-Executive and Independent
Directors, exercise full independence and are
expected to highlight and recuse themselves in
case of any possible conflict of interest. All
observations / suggestions of Board members
during their proceedings are accordingly
recorded.

POLICY FOR SAFEGUARDING OF
RECORDS

Under the Company’s Global Records Retention
Policy and Schedule, all staff in all business
units, regions, areas and functions must follow
approved retention periods in managing their
records. The Company’s Global Records
Retention Schedule applies to all media and
formats.

The Company believes that documentation
practices have a direct impact on product quality
and consumer safety, and it implements the
highest standards of record safeguarding
through our document management and control
policy. The Company has strict data lifecycle
management guidelines in place which are
implemented across all its activities and
processes. These guidelines outline procedures
for data approvals, use, access and retention as
well as the use of third-party archive service.

This helps ensure document accuracy,
consistency, integrity, availability and legibility.

In line with regulatory requirements and the GSK
Code of Conduct, the Company ensures
documentation practices meet its requirements
for design, management and control of
instructions, reports and master documents. The
Company also has checks in place that cover
archiving requirements for all stored data, both
physical and electronic.

The Company continues to invest in technology
and software to ensure the safekeeping for
documents which includes its contract
management repository, and other forms of
document management applications. This
includes the running of software to delete data
beyond its retention period in soft form as well.
Further, Legal and Procurement have led the
implementation of SAP Ariba in the Company to
be used as a repository of contracts entered into
with third parties.

BENEFICIAL (INCLUDING
INDIRECT) OWNERSHIP AND FLOW
CHART OF GROUP SHAREHOLDING

Complete disclosure of GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
shareholders has been provided in Director’s
Report on page 83. In addition, group
shareholding and direct & indirect ownerships of
the Company are demonstrated on page 28.

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

The Company’s governance structure operates
from the Board of Directors and underpins its
ability to deliver the Company’s strategy and
create long-term value and benefit for
shareholders and stakeholders. The Company’s
Purpose and Values have always been a source of
great pride for the Board and employees. It is a
powerful force in attracting and retaining
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talented people who, as individuals, want to be
part of a company that contributes meaningfully
to society.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST
CORPORATE PRACTICES

The Company is fully compliant with the
requirements of Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The
Report issued by the auditors confirming the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 is contained on
page 149.

The Directors of the Company confirm
compliance with the below mentioned:

e Financial statements accurately represent
the current standing of the Company, its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

e Books of accounts of the Company have been
properly maintained.

e Internal control has been implemented and
monitored by the Internal Audit function led by
the Chief Internal Auditor supported by Ernst &
Young Ford Rhodes (Pakistan), Chartered
Accountants.

e The Company has followed the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS] in
preparation of financial statements.

e Departures from the IFRS, if any, have been
adequately disclosed and explained throughout
this Annual Report.

e Thereis no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance as per the
Code of Corporate Governance.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

The Board is well versed with the requirements
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
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Governance) Regulations, 2019 and has taken
relevant steps to ensure compliance with the
same along with Management. Please refer to
the review report on the Statement of
Compliance issued by the external auditors of the
Company further to the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

BRIEF ROLE AND
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
CHAIRPERSON

The Board of Directors has appointed a
Chairperson from amongst non-executive
directors. The Chairperson and the Chief
Executive have separate and distinct roles. The
Board has defined the respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairperson and Chief
Executive Officer.

The Chairperson has all the powers vested in him
under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and presides over
all Board meetings. The primary role of the
Chairperson is to ensure that the Board of
Directors remains effective in its tasks of setting
and implementing the Company’s direction and
strategy, entrusted with the overall supervision
and direction of the Board’s proceedings, and has
the power to set the agenda, give directions and
sign the minutes of the Board meetings. He is
also responsible for ensuring that the Board
plays an effective role in fulfilling its
responsibilities, besides assessing and making
recommendations on the efficiency of the
Committees and individual Directors in fulfilling
their responsibilities and avoidance of conflicts of
interests.

BRIEF ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITES OF THE CEO

The Chief Executive Officer performs his duties
under the powers vested by the law and the
Board, recommends and implements the
business plans and is responsible for overall
control and operation of the Company. The CEO of




the Company is to whom all business and
functional heads directly or indirectly report. He
is responsible for presentation of the Company’s
aims and policies to the Government and all
stakeholders.

The responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer
include:

e Toplan, develop, implement and direct the
organization’s operational and fiscal function and
performance.

e Act as a strategic partner by developing and
implementing the company’s plans and
programs.

e Analyze and make recommendation on the
impact of long-range growth initiatives, planning,
and introduction of new strategies and regulatory
actions.

e Create, improve, implement and enforce
policies and procedures of the organization that
will improve operational and financial
effectiveness of the company.

e Communicate effectively and establish
credibility throughout the organization and with
the Board of Directors as an effective developer
of solutions to business challenges.

e Matters recommended and/or reported by the
audit committee and other committees of the
Board.

e Improve the planning and budgeting process
on a continual basis by educating departments
and key members of corporate leadership.

e Provide strategic input and leadership on
decision making issues affecting the
organization; specifically relating to the
evaluation of potential mergers, acquisitions or
partnerships.

e Optimize the handling of banking
relationships and work closely with CFO to foster
and grow strategic financial partnerships.

e Work with the finance team to develop a solid

cash flow projection and reporting mechanism,
which includes setting a minimum cash
threshold to meet operating needs.

e Report on governance, risk management and
compliance issues.

e Evaluate the Company’s financial,
operational, and sales and marketing structures
to plan for continual improvements and a
continual increase of operating efficiencies.

PRESENCE OF THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE AT THE
AGM

In view of Company’s priority of being transparent
with all of its shareholders and stakeholders,
members of the Board, senior management, the
Chairperson of the Board, Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir
and the Chairperson of the Audit Committee,
Syed Anwar Mahmood were present at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
21 April 2021 as well as on 21 March 2022 in order
to address all concerns and queries raised by the
shareholders.

EXTERNAL SEARCH CONSULTANCY
- APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

No external search consultancy has been used in
the appointment of the Chairperson or a
non-Executive Director. The Company, however,
relies upon PICG's databank to identify
candidates holding relevant expertise, experience
and skill set.

CHAIRMAN’S SIGNIFICANT
COMMITMENTS

The Chairperson’s significant commitments
during the year included:

e Effective conducting of meetings and decision
making virtually keeping in view COVID-19
induced lockdown and social distancing
measures.
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e Maximizing value and safeguarding of
interests of shareholders under the difficult
circumstances of the COVID-19 pandemic.

e Focused attention to the intersection between
the business and society in the face of country’s
economic hardship.

e Delivery of value by the Company to its
customers.

e Monitoring the Company’s supply of its
products and ensuring access of the same
patients and consumers, all the more under the
difficult circumstances of the COVID-19
pandemic.

e Review of the Company’s progress in
strategic matters, risk management,
technological advancements and financial
performance.

e Working with the management to foster a
culture instilled with GSK Values and
Expectations and having visibility of the
Company’s COVID-19 safety measures for all
employees.

The Chairperson’s engagements other than GSK
have been disclosed on page no. 104 of this
Report.

RETENTION OF BOARD FEE

No executive Directors are acting as
non-executive directors in any other Company.
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Board of Directors Meeting

The Board has established a corporate governance framework with clearly defined responsibilities and
accountabilities. The framework is designed to safeguard and enhance long-term shareholder value
and to provide a platform to realize the Group's strategy through the Company’s long-term priorities of
Innovation, Performance and Trust, that is consistent with its Culture, Values and Expectations. For our
Board to operate effectively and to consider key matters, Board Committees have been established as
set out below.

Further, the Board of Directors calendar is approved annually, in which Board Meetings, Human
Resource, Remunerations and Nominations Committee and Audit Committee Meetings are scheduled
for the upcoming year. Board Members are issued meeting notices within statutory timelines. The
board folder is prepared with material and concise information and is sent to the Board for its
consideration seven (7) days prior to a board meeting.

The attendance of the members of the Board at board meetings and sub-committee meetings held in
2021 was as follows:

ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS 2021

BOARD OF BOARD OF REMUNERATION INTEGRATION &
DIRECTORS AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ;I: t'vt NA J ) SNO COMMITTEE
MEETINGS* MEETINGS* y OMMITTE MEETINGS***
2
Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir 5/5 5/5 2/2 -
Mr. Farhan Muhammad i ) ) 2/2
Haroon
Mr. Dilawar Meghani 5/5 - - 2/2
Syed Anwar Mehmood 5/5 5/5 1/2 -
Ms. Ayesha Aziz 5/5 5/5 2/2 -
Mr. Oussama Abbas 415 - - 2/2
Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim 5/5 - - -
Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin 1/1 . . .
*04-2020 | 01-2021 | 02-2021 | 03-2021 | Q4-2021 **04-2020 | 04-2021 ***(1-2021 | 03-2021
S5Mar21 | 21Apr21 | 24Aug21 | 260ct21 | 9 Feb22 5 Mar 21 | 17 Jan 22 8 Mar 21 | 30 Sep 22
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BOARD MEETINGS HELD OUTSIDE
PAKISTAN DURING THE YEAR

No Board meetings were held outside Pakistan during the year.

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS

Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir

Ms. Ayesha Aziz

Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim

Mr. Oussama Abbas
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Organizations

Wyeth Pakistan limited
Pakistan Oxygen Limited

Loads Limited

Pak Brunei Investment Company
Awwal Modaraba Management Limited
KSB Pumps Company Limited

Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited

Primus Leasing Limited

GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Nigeria plc
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has formed the following Committees
in line with best practices and requirements of
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019:

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of three (3]
members, all of whom are Non-Executive
Directors including the Chairperson of the
Committee, who is an Independent Director.

The Audit Committee comprises of two (2)
members, who are Chartered Accountants, while
one (1) member has a M.Sc. in Finance and
Economics. The Audit Committee members have
extensive experience in the fields of financial
management, accounting, business, and
economics.

The Audit Committee annually reviews the
financial aspects and appropriateness of
resources, the corporate accounting and financial
reporting process, the effectiveness and
adequacy of internal controls, the management
of risks and the external and internal audit
process.

The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the Audit
Committee and acts as the Secretary of the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Function utilises
the services of an independent audit firm to
continuously examine Company records and
operations, ensuring fair financial reporting
processes, compliance with applicable laws and
adherence with internal control systems.

The Audit Committee meets once every quarter of
the financial year. These meetings are held prior
to the approval of the interim results of the
Company by its Board of Directors and after
completion of external audit.

The Audit Committee held four (4] Meetings in
2021 and met once with the Chief Internal Auditor
and other members of the Internal Audit function
without the CFO and the external auditors being

present.

The Audit Committee also met the external
auditors without the presence of the CFO and
Chief Internal Auditor.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company regularly monitors the
implementation of financial controls, whereas
the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of
the internal control framework.

The Audit Committee terms of reference state
the following:

e The Internal Audit department carried out its
audits in accordance with the approved audit plan
which is presented annually to the Audit
Committee.

e The Committee has ensured that the Internal
Audit department is well equipped with personnel
possessing financial and business acumen
according to the criteria defined in the
Companies Act 2017.

e The Head of Internal Audit has the required
qualifications as prescribed under the
Regulations.

e The Internal Audit department has direct
access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee. The performance appraisal of the
Head of Internal Audit is also carried out directly
by the Audit Committee.

e Internal Audit function plays a vital role in
improving the overall control environment. It also
acts as an advisor to other functions for
streamlining processes and ensuring
implementation of the Company’s policies.

e Audit Committee has provided a proper
platform to the management to report to the
Audit Committee in confidence, concerns, if any,
about actual or potential improprieties in
financial and other matters. Adequate remedial
and mitigating measures are applied, where
necessary.
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e The Audit Committee also undertook an
overall review of the business risks to ensure
that the existing control environment identified
any emerging risks post COVID-19. The summary
of the risks together with the mitigation plan was
presented to the Board for its review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

It is the Company’s pleasure to present the Annual
Audit Committee’s report which records the
Committee’s activities during the year ended 31
December 2021.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

While all board directors have a duty to act in the
interests of the company the audit committee has a
particular role, acting independently from the
executive, to ensure that the interests of
shareholders are properly protected in relation to
financial reporting and the risk management and
internal controls over that reporting are operating
effectively.

In terms of the Committee’s membership, the Audit
Committee comprises of three members, all of
whom are Non-Executive and Independent
Directors. Syed Anwar Mahmood, the Chairman of
the Committee, graduated with honors in
Economics and later obtained a master’s degree in
the same discipline. Ms. Ayesha Aziz was appointed
on 3rd March’'2021 as Non-Executive Independent
Director. Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir, is the other
member of the Audit Committee and he is
considered as “financially literate” as per the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

A detailed profile of the directors is mentioned on
page 73 to 79 of the Annual Report.

The Audit Committee met on four occasions during
the year; all these meetings were held via video
conferencing due to restrictions of the COVID-19
pandemic. The Committee also updated the Board
on the work of the Committee and discussed some
of the major challenges ahead. Meetings were also
held with the External Auditors and Internal
Auditors, and these provided the Committee with
assurances regarding the work carried out to help
strengthen internal controls in the Company.

EVALUATION OF THE COMMITTEE

Evaluation of the committees of the Company is
mentioned in detail on page 92 to 94 of the Annual
Report.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risk Management continues to be an area of
significant focus for the Committee. During 2021,
the Committee engaged with the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer on the risk
management systems and processes in place
across the Company and obtained satisfactory
assurances. The Committee reviewed the
significant risks highlighted for key functions during
the year, focusing on the new and heightened risks
being managed by the Company post pandemic
environment.

Internal audit has a crucial part to play given its
role of providing independent, objective assurance
related to the operating effectiveness of risk
management, governance, and internal control
processes of the Company. During 2021, the Audit
Committee took account of the impact of the
pandemic and advised on adjusting the Audit Plan
accordingly. The Committee was apprised on the
progress of Internal Audit throughout the year and
is satisfied that the work was completed
appropriately in line with the Approved Internal
Audit Plan and its amendments for the year.

The Committee confirms that the Internal Audit
department is appropriately resourced and pursues
a well-articulated work plan and strategy. The
Committee notes that the Internal Audit department
allows time in performance of its duties for the
provision of advice when required by business
functions. Advisory is given when decisions may
arise involving increased risk, in addition to fraud
issues and investigations and their escalation to the
Audit Committee in complete confidence.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

e Given the shift in dynamics post COVID-19, the
Audit Committee met the external auditors without
the presence of the management and discussed
how their audit procedures were affected or
adjusted according to the new Control environment.
Additionally, they also focused on the external
auditor’s perspective regarding potential changes
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in audit risk, management’s process for developing
significant estimates related to the impact of
COVID-19 and the resulting impact on internal
controls over financial reporting. Furthermore, the
audit committee reviewed the audit work that was
performed over significant transactions or
accounting judgments during the interim and
annual reporting period.

e Allinternal audit reports were made available
for review to the external auditors during the year.
e The external auditors Yousuf Adil Chartered
Accountants have been engaged as the external
auditors of the Company and have completed their
audit assignment and review of the Statement of
Compliance in line with the Listed Regulations.
They shall retire as the auditors on the conclusion
of 7th Annual General Meeting.

e Being eligible for reappointment as auditors of
the Company, the Audit Committee has
recommended the appointment of Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants as external auditors of the
Company for the year ending 31 December 2022.

e The Company does not obtain any non-audit
services from Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the audit committee are
mentioned in detail on page 105 to 106 of the Annual
Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

The Company has complied with the mandatory
requirements specified under the Regulations.

The Committee would like to state that:

e The Company has issued a Statement of
Compliance with the Regulations which has also
been reviewed and certified by the external
auditors of the Company.

e They have reviewed the effectiveness of the
Ethics and Compliance function.

e The Company’s Code of Conduct has been
disseminated across the organization.

e The Committee reviewed the Annual Report and
concluded that it is fair, balanced, and
understandable.

e The Committee reviewed the integrity of the
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financial statements, including annual reports,
half-year reports, and quarterly financial
statements; and recommended them for
approval of the Board.

e These Financial statements present a true and
fair view and provide all necessary information
to assess the Company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy.
Further, the committee has reviewed all related
party transactions carried out during the year.
Both were subsequently approved by the board.

The Committee also reviewed the preliminary
announcements of results prior to publication.

The Audit Committee believes that it has carried out
responsibilities to the full, in accordance with the
Terms of Reference approved by the Board and as
stipulated under the Regulations.

Syed Anwar Mehmood
Chairman Audit Committee

HUMAN RESOURCE,
REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

The Company has established the HRR&N
Committee in accordance with the requirements
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019. The HRR&N
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities in the review, formulation,
recommendation and implementation of Human
Resource policies and the appointment and
remuneration of the CEO, CFO, Company
Secretary, and Chief Internal Auditor. It also
considers and approves recommendations on
matters related to succession planning of CEO,
CFO, Company Secretary, and Chief Internal
Auditor and ensuring proper compensation to the
Company’s employees. The HRR&N Committee
meets at least once in a year.
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Terms of Reference of the Human
Resource and Remuneration and
Nomination Committee

This Committee shall conduct its activities
ensuring the achievement of its objectives &
scope of work as set out above and to this end
shall have the following specific responsibilities:

e Satisfy itself and report to the Board that the
Company’s leadership development, talent
planning, organization structure and
compensation policies are consistent with the
company’s objectives and strategies as
approved by the Board.

e Ensure supply of high calibre talent at senior
management position to lead the business
now and into the future.

e Ensure adequate training and development of
senior employees with the skill and
knowledge to effectively perform their duties.

e Establish achievement of high-performance
culture and employee engagement that will
drive the organizational success.

e Ensure that the management remains
committed to adequate talent management.

e Coordinate with the majority shareholders
and recommend to the Board the selection,
evaluation, compensation, authorities, and
accountabilities of Chief Executive Officer
(CEOQ), Chief Financial Officer (CFQJ, Company
Secretary and Head of Internal Audit.

e Inrespect of other direct reports of the CEO,
the Committee will approve the appointment
and compensation and will inform the Board
accordingly.

e Ensure that an adequate succession plan of
the CEO and other senior executives remains
in place.

e Satisfy itself that the CEO has a process in
place for performance assessment including
business ethics and code of conduct for all
employees.

e Schedule formal meetings with the direct

reports of the CEQ.

e Review the annual increment of staff
including any bonus and recommend the
same to the Board.

e FEvaluation and selection of potential

~ candidatels)rasoDirecter(s) oR fié/Board.

Committee members and approved in the Board
Meeting held on 9 February 2022

INTEGRATION AND SUPPLY
NETWORK OPTIMIZATION
COMMITTEE

The Integration and Supply Network Optimization
Committee comprises of three (3] members of
the Board. The purpose of this committee is to
explore significant Supply Network opportunities
and facilitate a smooth Integration process.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Management Committee comprises of nine
(9) senior members of the Company’s Leadership
Team who are external facing and who meet and
discuss significant business plans, issues,
progress and updates of their respective
functions. Significant matters to be put forth in
the Board as per the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 are
also discussed for onward approval. The
Management Committee meets once very
quarter.

The role of the Management Committee is to
review, implement and monitor:

e Business risks.

e Business strategy.

e Business plans.

e |Issues pertaining to respective functions.
e Improvements to policies/ procedures.
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Composition’ 6f

The Management Committee

Mr. Farhan
Muhammad
Haroon

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Dilawar
Meghani

Chief Financial Officer

Syed Abrar
Ali

Sales Director
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Mr. Salman
Altaf

Marketing Director

Mr. Faisal
Rafiq

Head of Expert

Mr. Khurram
H. Khan

Head of Commercial
Excellence
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Mr. Mazhar
Shams

Head of Regulatory

Mr. Moein
Ahmed Khan

Pakistan E2E SC and
Jamshoro Site Lead

Ms. Mashal
Mohammad

Legal Director and
Company Secretary
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CALENDAR OF MAJOR FINANCIAL EVENTS HELD IN 2021

04-2020 AGM-2020 01-2021
5 March 2021 21 April 2021 23 April 2021
02-2021 03-2021 Corporate Briefing
24 August 2021 26 October 2021 Session

19 November 2021

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2022*

04-2021 AGM-2021 01-2022
9 February 2022 21 March 2022 22 April 2022
02-2022 03-2022 Corporate Briefing
22 August 2022 21 October 2022 Session

21 November 2022

* Approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 9 February 2022.
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COMMUNICATION OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

Periodic financial statements of the Company were circulated to Directors duly endorsed by the CEO
and the CFO. Half-yearly and annual financial statements were initialed by the external auditors their
presentation to the Board Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for approval.

Furthermore, quarterly unaudited financial statements of the Company along with Director’s Review,
were approved, published, and circulated to shareholders on a timely basis. Half-yearly financial
statements were subjected to a limited scope review by the statutory auditors. This annual financial
statement has been audited by the external auditors and approved by the Board and will be presented
to the shareholders at the AGM for approval. The said financial statements have been circulated on

PUCARS well within the statutory prescribed timelines and posted on the Company’s website
accordingly.
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Whistle Blowing / Speak Up Policy

The Company has global procedures on reporting
misconduct and safeguarding people who report
these concerns. We believe that ethical business
conduct is the responsibility of everyone working
for and on behalf of the Company. It is the
foundation for building trust in the Company and
protects its license to operate. The Company
expects everyone to live its Values and
Expectations, speak up if they have any concerns,
engage appropriately with stakeholders and
respect human rights. The Company also extends
these ethical expectations to the third parties it
works with.

SPEAK UP INSTANCES DURING THE
YEAR

During 2021, there were no instances that
qualified as that of material nature.

ZERO TOLERANCE FOR
RETALIATION

At the Company, anyone can report concerns
without fear of reprisal. The Company prohibits
retaliation against anyone who raises, or reports
concerns and will take disciplinary action up to
and including dismissal (in accordance with local
labour laws) against any employee who threatens
or engages in retaliation, bullying and/or
harassment of someone who has reported, or is
considering reporting, a concern in good faith.
Similarly, we will report an agency worker who
retaliates against anyone raising a report or
concern to the worker’s employment agency and
terminate their assignment with the Company.

The Company treats all questions and issues

confidentially, where possible, while investigating
fairly, cooperating with governments and
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complying with legal obligations. When someone
reports a concern in good faith, the Company will
support that individual.

As a part of the Company’s Values and
Expectations of doing the right thing, all Company
employees are required to promptly raise
concerns of possible misconduct, potential
conflicts, or known breaches of the Company’s
Code of Conduct, and other Company policies and
procedures. Further, any suspected violations of
country laws and regulations must also be
reported. Contingent workers working on behalf
of the Company are also required to report
misconduct concerns, with ‘Speak Up’ integrity
line information provided in the Company’s
Third-Party Code of Conduct.

REPORTING AND INVESTIGATING
CONCERNS

The Company encourages people to speak up if
they have any concerns relating to unethical
conduct or behaviour that is inconsistent with its
Values - or if they simply want to ask a question
about how to apply the Company’s Code of
Conduct. Anyone within or outside the Company
can raise concerns or speak to an independent
third party through our integrity lines,
confidentially or anonymously if they prefer. The
Company takes every reported concern very
seriously and each complaint is reviewed to
understand whether a formal investigation is
warranted. If investigations show that an
employee has breached Company policies,
appropriate disciplinary action is taken.
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Response to COVID

The COVID-19 pandemic is considered as the most crucial global health calamity of the century and the
greatest challenge that the humankind faced since the World War Il. It has rapidly spread around the
world, posing enormous health, economic, environmental and social challenges to the entire human
population. The coronavirus outbreak has severely disrupted the global economy. Almost all the
nations are struggling to slow down the transmission of the disease by testing & treating patients,
quarantining suspected persons through contact tracing, restricting large gatherings, maintaining
complete or partial lock down etc.

Even in such times the companies must operate while taking all the necessary precautions and actions
and that is what GSK CH did to ensure that company keeps functioning while providing safety to its
employees. Firstly, they introduced work from home for their employees to ensure their safety and
well-being. Secondly, they ran a COVID-19 awareness campaign by Panadol and Sensodyne to raise
awareness among masses. In order to reach doctors, the expert team started remote detailing in which

they hosted online conferences. Besides this, protective kits were given to doctors, experts, and sales
team for their safety. For the safety of Pharmacists & customers, safety shields were installed in
medical stores. To deal with the upsurge in demand of CaC-1000 PLUS and Panadol, strong BCGS were
put into place. COVID-19 Pandemic had an impact on all companies in and outside of Pakistan and this
is how GSK CH responded and tackled all the hardships ensuring Company continues to function while
keeping safety as its top priority.

Quickly responded to Dentist Awareness message on Expert team started Remote
changing market dynamics Oral Health habits by Sensodyne Detailing to reach doctors;
during COVID-19 hosted online conferences
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PEOPLE SAFETY SUPPLY CHAIN OPERATIONS

e Ensured team and frontline
workers were safe

e  Work from Home + Electronic Impac.t
Approval process implemented . Analysis -
for Employees (Ergonomics .

N 4

Testing & Business Recovery
Maintenance Continuity Strategies

allowance provided)

’ N
4 N
4 \
4 N

(\f\
P

Plan
" Development
Protective Protective Kits
;hielﬂsd . givlen t&o EOCtO[S' Strong BCPs put in place to cater to
:quga}cael sltnores teaarerffor tﬂ?a?rl: upsurge in demand of Panadol & CaC
for safety of safety

pharmacists

COVID-19 has led to massive change in consumer caused high exposure to pharmacists resulting in
sentiments and behavior. Since the onset of the a surge in COVID-19 cases amongst them. Living
pandemic, people have started shifting into the GSK attribute of customer obsession, we
protection mode, minimizing their exposure to introduced Protective Counter Units in this
potential virus contraction. While other sectors channel to not only minimize exposure for
remained under lockdown, pharmacy was one pharmacists and consumers but also leveraged
channel that remained operational to facilitate on the branding opportunity in a disruptive way.

provision of public healthcare. In turn, this

Additional inventory of
RM/PM purchased to
support continuous
operations

BCPs agreed with LSPs to
ensure Finished Goods are
delivered to customers on
time and in full
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PANDEMIC RECOVERY PLAN

There is nothing in the world which didn’t get
impacted by the Pandemic of COVID-19. From
poor to rich, small businesses to corporate
giants, lifestyles, social activities, just everything
got terribly impacted. The entire world
implemented alternate measures & execute
Business Continuity Plans (BCPs] to cope up with
the situation.

GSK CH put in place a strong governance
process, firstly to ensure the safety of the
employees along with the business continuity.
BCPs were executed at all levels to ensure that
remote working doesn’t hamper the product
supply to the patients and consumers. Starting
from the procurement of materials to the final
distribution of finished goods, the entire chain
worked with great collaboration to avoid any
disruption. On one hand Factories played an
integral role to run the production machines with
full capacities while following the COVID-19
related SOPs and precautionary measures; on
other hand, a strong alliance with the 3rd party
helped executing the BCP following the Covid
related SOPs and controls, On other hand, a
strong alliance with 3rd party Logistics business
partners really helped in executing a BCP around
warehousing and distribution operation which
resulted in robust On time and In Full
Performance (above 98% throughout the year].

Furthermore, our team underwent a
transformational journey, with the onset of
COVID-19 giving rise to new ways of working. The
country-wide lockdown meant that all
face-to-face interactions with HCPs had to be
halted indefinitely. However, continuing to HCPs
in scientific dialogue while safeguarding the
wellbeing of our field force was our utmost
priority. Hence, we successfully navigated to a
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hybrid detailing model, using digital channels to
engage HCPs where face-to-face interaction was
not possible. During this time, our team also
conducted numerous digital presentations and
hosted informative webinars in partnership.

DISASTER RECOVERY
MECHANISM

The Company has an effective disaster recover
mechanism in place to ensure a smooth and
expeditious transition to a backup mode of
operations to minimize any disruption to the
business.

IT Continuity Plan Key objectives:

e |dentify IT Recovery Team- roles and
responsibilities and to identify escalation
and disaster recovery steps.

e To have continuity procedures in place for
core IT Infrastructure including WAN &,
LAN.

e To highlight application recovery
procedures- for all major applications
critical to business continuity.

e To list backup retention policies and
information on critical storage locations for
backup tapes and servers.

e Tolist ITCP review results and details of
testing schedules.

IT Continuity Team- Key responsibilities include:

e Torestore, maintain and secure the critical
business systems of the company.

e Establish and maintain regular progress
reporting for duration of incident.

e Take ownership of IT continuity plan
(maintain, review and update).

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



e Prepare ITCP outcome report.

e Key responsibility is to ensure that the IT
Escalation Process is adhered to.

e The IT continuity coordinator of the Company
will inform the respective BU Head of IT who
will then escalate the incident to the Area IT
Head or his designated area IT staff. The Area
IT Head and the International IT point of
contact will decide on whether to record the
incident in the IT Escalation database.

In the event of a major disaster, business
operations can be continued from the GSK Site
located at F-268, SITE. All the centrally hosted
applications and systems will be accessible from
mentioned location.

BUSINESS
CONTINUITY
PLANNING

The Company routinely monitors the compliance
of external manufacturing suppliers to identify
and manage risks in our supply base in case of
any natural calamity or force majeure. Where
practical, the Company minimizes its dependence
on single sources of supply for critical items.
Where alternative sourcing arrangements are not
possible, our inventory strategy aims to protect
the supply chain from unanticipated disruption.

The Company has always used effective crisis
management and business continuity planning to
provide for the health and safety of our people
and to minimise impact to us, by maintaining
functional operations following a natural or
man-made disaster, or a public health
emergency. A corporate policy requires each
business and functional area head to ensure
effective crisis management and business
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continuity plans are in place that include
authorised response and recovery strategies, key
areas of responsibility and clear communication
routes, before any business disruption occurs.
Corporate Security supports the business by
coordinating crisis management and business
continuity training; facilitating simulation
exercises; assessing our preparedness and
recovery capability; and providing assurance
oversight of our central repository of plans
supporting our critical business processes.

The above enabled the Company to swiftly deploy
technology to ensure business continuity and to
offset the disruptions caused by the COVID-19
induced lockdown. The Company acted with
speed and agility to ensure the continual
movement of our supply chain, balanced with the
safety of its workforce. Keeping in view the
proactive approach of the Company regarding its
advanced business continuity planning, its
responsibility as a diligent corporate citizen, and
our consumer focused approached, the Company
ensured access of its OTC medicines and
products to Consumers through the year.
Progress was, and continues to be, monitored
weekly in a Crisis Management Team meeting
consisting of the Company’s leadership team and
regular updates were provided to the Board of
Directors. The disruption brought about by
COVID-19 also had the Company implement a
flexible way of working for employees with
office-based roles called ‘Performance by
Choice’, which enabled employees to perform
their best based on their role, team, and personal
circumstances.
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Performance and Position

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL AND NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Non-Financial Performance

Bring differentiated, Balanced business Focusing on three
high-quality and needed growth priorities —Innovation,
healthcare products Performance and Trust.

We invest in scientific and Putting our values and We aim to achieve
technical excellence to expectations at the heart industry leading growth
develop and launch a of everything we do, we by investing effectively in
pipeline of new products become a high our business and

that meet the needs of performing team. ensuring the quality and
the patients, payers and reliable supply of our
customers. products.

Manufactured Capital Human and Intellectual Intellectual Capital
Capital

Market share, Ranking as Market share, Channel Employee Engagement
per IQVIA. Share and Innovation
Sales
i
| Analysis

.......... The Company continuously
monitors all KPIs to ensure that its

objectives are being achieved.
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Financial Performance at a Glance

Rupees in millions

Net Sales

Gross Profit
Operating Profit
Profit Before Tax
Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share Rs.

Dividend per share
Return on equity
Market capitalisation

Paid-up Capital

Explanation of Negative Changes in Performance

performance over the past six years.

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

24,163 19,846 16,317 14,875 8,298 5,376

6,615 5,328 4,986 4,404 3,101 1,509

3,033 1,832 1,892 1,688 1,179 858

3,016 1,774 1,700 1,463 1,171 856

(882) (512) (442) (388) (464) (311)

2,134 1,262 1,258 1,075 707 545

18.23 10.78 10.74 9.18 7.39 7.60

- 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 -

31.78% 24.44% 27.94% 28.02% 30.77% 34.16%

28,217 31,035 30,015 31,182 30,986 -

1,171 1,171 1,171 1,171 956 956

As evident from above, the Company has not experienced any negative changes in terms of
Statement of Profit or loss Varince Analysis - PKR in millions

1,287

1,262

PAT Gross
2020 Profit
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SM&D

(35)

Admin
Expenses

/J/,\ I/\

(90)

Other Op.
Expenses

Other
Income

Financial
Charges

Taxation

PAT
2021




PKR in millions

PKR in millions
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Net Sales Vs Other Income

Net Sales ‘ Other Incomes

Statement of Profit or Loss - Expenses

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

@ Cost of sales SM&D @@ Admin Expenses
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Key Operating Financial Data & Ratios

Rupees in millions

Statement of Financial Position 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Assets employed

Fixed Assets - property, plant and equipment 3,706 3,493 2,915 2,650 125 132
Intangible asset - Goodwill 128 128 128 128 - -
Deferred taxation - - - - 8 17
Long-term loans and deposits 18 17 17 1 1 1
Net current assets 3,157 1,765 1,626 1,174 2183 1,456

7,010 5,404 4,685 3,962 2,316 1,605

Less: Non-Current Liabilities

Staff retirement benefits - Staff gratuity 97 88 54 38 20 9
Deferred taxation 197 152 131 90 - -
294 240 185 127 20 9
Net assets employed / Shareholders fund 6,715 5,164 4,501 3,835 2,297 1,597
Financed by
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 1,171 1,171 1,171 1,171 956 956
Reserves 5,544 3,993 3,330 2,664 1,341 641
Shareholders’ Equity 6,715 5,164 4,501 3,835 2,297 1,597
Turnover and profit 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Net sales 24,163 19,846 16,317 14,875 8,298 5,376
Gross profit 6,615 5,328 4,986 4,404 3,101 1,509
Operating profit 3,033 1,832 1,892 1,688 1,179 858
Profit before taxation 3,016 1,774 1,700 1,463 1,171 856
Taxation (882) (512) (442) (388) (464)  (311)
Profit after taxation 2,134 1,262 1,258 1,075 707 545
EBTIDA 3,334 2,101 2,146 1,899 1,202 866
Cash Dividend including bonus shares - 585 585 585 478 -
Sales per employee 53 40 33 31 132 98
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Statement of financial position - Assets employed

PKR in millions

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
H Fixed Assets- property, Intangi.ble asset- H Deferred
plant and equipment Goodwill taxation
[ Long- term loans and deposits [ Netcurrentassets

Statement of financial position - Non Current Liabilities
& Shareholder's equity

2021 I I
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

! |
! |
! |
! 1
! |
! |
! |
! |
! |
! |
! |
! |
! I
! |
! |
! |
! |
! |
! |
! 1
! |
! |
! 1
! |
! |
! |
! |
! |
! |
| |
! 1

1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000

PKR in millions

B Staff retirement benefits- staff gratuity Deferred taxation

B Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital B Reserves
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2021

Gross Profit Vs Profit
after taxation -
Rs in million

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

M Gross Profit M Profit after taxation

Sales per employee -
Rs in million
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Cashflows Valuation 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Operating Activities Rs. in million 1,594 2,914 1,334 (426) 559 950
Investing Activities Rs. in million (322) (814) (487) (223) 72 (1,049)
Financing Activities Rs. in million (82) (82) (83) (78] - 0
Changes in Cash equivalents Rs. in million 1,190 2,018 764 (727) 631 (99)
Cash & equivalents - Year end Rs. in million 3,088 1,898 (120) (884) 1,302 670
Financial Highlights Valuation 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Cash dividend per share Rupees - 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 -
Market value per share - year end Rupees 241.06 265.13 256.42 266.39 324.29 -
Market value per share - high Rupees 295.85 330.03 353.53 529.00 365.00 -
Market value per share - low Rupees 210.00 199.56 164.10 258.00 100.63 -
Market capitalization Rs. in million 28,217 31,035 30,015 31,182 30,986 -
Profitability Ratios Valuation 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Profit before tax ratio % 12.48 8.94 10.42 9.83 1411 15.92
Gross Yield on Earning Assets % 5.99 1.51 2.98 8.76 8.14 3.53
Gross Spread ratio Times 0.32 0.24 0.25 0.24 0.23 0.36
Cost / Income ratio Times 0.56 0.66 0.63 0.63 0.64 0.58
Return on Equity / return on

shareholders fund % 31.78 24.44 27.94 28.02 30.77 34.16
Return on Capital employed % 30.45 23.35 26.83 27.12 30.51 33.98
Gross Profit ratio % 27.38 26.85 30.56 29.61 37.37 28.07
Net Profit to Sales % 8.83 6.36 7.71 7.22 8.52 10.15
EBITDA Margin to Sales % 13.80 10.59 13.15 12.77 14.48 16.14
Operating leverage ratio Times 3.0 -0.1 1.2 0.5 0.7 0.0
Return on assets ratio % 15.39 11.50 14.00 13.51 17.88 19.06
Ownership ratio % 48.43 47.06 50.10 48.21 58.09 55.80
Investment / Market Ratios Valuation 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Earnings per share (EPS) Rupees 18.23 10.78 10.74 9.18 7.40 7.60
Price Earnings ratio Times 13.22 24.59 23.88 29.02 43.88 2.20
Price to Book ratio Times 4.28 6.16 6.86 8.41 13.49 -
Dividend Yield ratio % - 1.89 1.95 1.88 1.54 -
Dividend Payout ratio Times - 0.46 0.47 0.54 0.68 -
Dividend Cover ratio Times - 2.16 2.15 1.84 1.48 -
Break-up Value per share -

(no revaluation or investment impact) Rupees 56.28 43.02 37.36 31.67 24.04 16.71

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Capital Structure Ratios Valuation 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Earning assets to total assets ratio % 23.10 19.43 7.16 8.89 32.9 23.4
Net assets per share Times 54.85 42.07 36.85 31.67 41.2 29.9
Debt to Equity ratio Times - - 0.03 0.24 - -
Financial leverage ratio Times - 0.00 0.18 0.43 - -
Weighted average cost of debt % 0 0 " 6 0 0
Interest Cover ratio Times - 66.63 15.65 11.18 281.0 856.1
Liquidity Ratios Valuation 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Advances to Deposits ratio Times 5.9 1.4 5.1 3.4 23.5 -
Current ratio Times 1.46 1.32 1.38 1.29 2.3 2.16
Quick / Acid test ratio Times 0.87 0.78 0.72 0.72 1.8 1.72
Cash to Current Liabilities Times 0.47 0.38 0.15 0.18 0.8 0.53
Cash flow from Operations to Sales % 6.60 14.68 8.17 (2.86) 6.7 17.67
Activity / Turnover Ratios Valuation 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Inventory turnover ratio Times 5.0 5.0 L.l 6.8 7.5 7.0
No. of Days in Inventory Days 74 73 83 55 49 53
Debtor turnover ratio Times 27.3 25.8 20.1 29.0 28.3 17.0
No. of Days in Receivables Days 14 15 19 13 13 22
Creditor turnover ratio Times 19.5 20.0 15.4 17.1 14.3 14.4
No. of Days in Creditors Days 19 19 24 22 26 26
Total Assets turnover ratio Times 1.74 1.81 1.82 1.87 2.1 1.9
Fixed Assets turnover ratio Times 6.5 5.7 5.60 5.61 66.5 40.8
Operating Cycle Days 69 69 78 46 36 49

Methods and assumptions used in compiling the indicators.

Financial indicators are computed using formulae which are widely used in the industry and are
relevant to different stakeholders such as shareholders, bankers and regulators. The data used is
generated through our internal management information systems, together with audited financial

statements.
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Graphical Presentation

Statement of cash flows - Rs. in millions

(1,200) g oo T
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
[ Operating Activities I Investing Activities B Financing Activities

Cash & Cash equivalents (year end) - Rs. in millions

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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Market value per share (year end) - Rs

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Market capitalization - Rs.in million

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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Profitability Ratios (%) - A

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
@ Profit Before Tax Ratio % Gross Profit Ratio %
@ Net Profit to Sales % @ EBITDA Margin to Sales

Profitability Ratios (%) - B

2021

@ Gross Yield on Earning Assets % Return on Equity / return on shareholders fund %

@ Return on Capital employed %
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Earnings per share - Rupees

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Market Ratios - Rupees

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

‘ Price Earnings ratio Times ‘ Price to Book ratio Times
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Break-up Value per share - (No Revaluation or Investment Impact)
- Rupees
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Capital Structure Ratios

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

‘ Earning assets to total assets ratio % ‘ Net assets per share Times
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Liquidity Ratios - Times

Advances to Current Quick / Acid Cash to Current
Deposits Ratio Ratio Test Ratio Liabilities
B 2016 2017 @ 2018 m 2019 @ 2020 [ ] 2021

Activity Ratios - Days
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Comments on Financial Ratios

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Profitability ratios of the Company have improved
significantly versus last year, mainly on account
of higher sales and change in portfoilio mix.

Profit after Tax increased by 69% compared to
prior year.

Gross profit margin improved to 27.4% versus
26.8% last year. Net profit margin reached all
time high to 8.83% (2021 to 2017) versus 6.36%
during 2020 which is in line with the reasons
mentioned above.

LIQUIDITY RATIOS

Cash inflows from operating activities has
declined versus last year primarily on account of
increase in investment in working capital.

The Company remains sufficiently liquid and has
Rs. 3,088 million of cash and cash equivalents as
at 31 December 2021 to meet its investment and
operational cash requirements.

Quick / acid test ratio (2021: 0.87, 2019: 0.78),
current ratio (2021: 1.46, 2020: 1.32) and cash to
current liabilities (2021: 0.47, 2020: 0.38)
improved versus last year mainly on account of
higher sales and cash generation.

ACTIVITY / TURNOVER RATIOS

Operating cycle is maintained at 69 days in 2021
as compared to same period last year.

Total assets turnover ratio (average assets])
decreased to 1.74 in 2021 from 1.81 in 2020 mainly

due to increase in current assets during the year.

Fixed assets turnover ratio (average assets)

increased to 6.50 in 2021 from 5.70 in 2020 mainly
due to significant increase in sales during the
year.

INVESTMENT / MARKET RATIO0S

Earnings per share jumped to Rs. 18.23 in 2021
from Rs. 10.78 in 2020 as a result of increase in
profit after tax by 69% as mentioned above.

Price Earnings ratio has dropped to 13.22 in 2021
from 24.59 in 2020, mainly due to decrease in

price per share and increase in earnings per
share.

Dividend yield ratio is 0% in current year due to
non-declaration of dividend.

Dividend pay-out ratio is 0% in current year due
to non-declaration of dividend.

Break-up value per share has increased to Rs.
56.28 in 2021 from Rs. 43.02 in 2020 due to

increase in total equity by Rs. 1,551 million as
compared to prior year on account of increase in
profitability.

Market capitalisation has reduced to Rs. 28,217
million in 2021 from Rs. 31,035 million in 2020 due

to decrease in market price per share to Rs.
241.06 in 2021 from Rs. 265.13 in 2020.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE ADEQUACY ANALYSIS

Total equity increased by 30% to Rs. 6,715 million
comprising of share capital amounting to Rs.
1,170.55 million which consists of issued share
capital of 117,054,508 shares of Rs. 10.00 each.
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. and
its nominees is the major shareholder of the
Company, having 100,423,259 shares being
85.79% of total paid-up capital.
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Comments on Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
SALES

Looking at the overall market conditions, the
Company managed to achieve 22% growth as
compared to last year. which was supported by the
increase in OTC and FMCG portfolio by 20% and 31%
(excluding divestments) respectively. This progress
was marginally offset by decrease in Exports.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales of the Company increased primarily on
account of closure of a major Chinese supplier of
Paracetamol (i.e. the key raw material of Panadol)
causing the prices to go up. Rest of the increase is
attributed to inflation and currency devaluation.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses during the year
increased by 8% which is mainly attributable to
advertising, sales promotion and handling & freight
expenditure.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The increase in administrative expenses of 12% is
mainly driven by one off legal & professional
charges and prinitng and stationery expenses
amounting to Rs. 17 million and Rs. 4 million
respectively.

OTHER CHARGES

Increase in other charges during the current year
by 58% is primarily on account of increase in
statutory charges (WPPF, WWF and CRF) which is in
line with the increase in profitability of the
Company.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment have witnessed an
increase over prior year due to investment in
production facilities and infrastructure to support
growing scale of business. Major capital
expenditure incurred during the year was for
expanding manufacturing capacity, enhancement of
productivity, and improvement of plant efficiency.

CURRENT ASSETS

The increase is current assets can be substantiated
by the increase in Stock levels amounting to Rs. 1
billion due to build up of CaC1000 Plus inventories.
Trade debts contributed Rs. 432 million due to
higher sales of FMCG and tolling portfolio whereas
other recievables from group companies increased
by Rs. 67 million.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current liabilites are depicting an increase of 23.1%
owing to the higher inventory purchase and
advertisement & promotional expenses accrual
amounting to Rs. 299 million and Rs. 360 million
respectively.

EQUITY

Equity increased from prior year primarily due to
increase in profitability.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ANALYSIS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Company’s cash flows decreased significantly
versus last year mainly on account of increase in
investment in working capital: In order to prepare
for the upcoming season of CaC1000 Plus, the
Company build the inventory amounting to Rs. 1.2
billion, wherease, increase in FMCG and tolling
sales have caused the trade debts to increase by
Rs. 432 million. Furthermore, capacity utlisation
claim recorded at year end caused the other
receivables to go up by Rs. 151 million. Moreover,
zero interest payments due to improvement in
liquidity position benefitted the Company in terms of
investing in core business activites.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Net cash outflows from investing activities have

decreased from prior year primarily due to
decrease in capital expenditure.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Net cash outflow from financing activities reamined
constant as compared to same period last year.
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Quarterly Analysis

For the year ended December 31, 2021

o1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
Revenue from contracts with customers - net 5,234,828 6,688,013 6,079,605 6,160,704 24,163,150
Cost of sales (3,718,057)  (4,773,925)  (4,532,973)  (4,523,120) (17,548,075)
Gross profit 1,516,771 1,914,088 1,546,632 1,637,584 6,615,075
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses (611,846) (916,040) (922,170) (903,584)  (3,353,640)
Administrative expenses (61,037) (75,520) (85,680) (102,847) (325,084)
Other operating expenses (77,925) (78,861) (47,613) (40,118) (244,517)
Other income 136,684 65,268 40,866 98,585 341,403
Operating profit 902,647 908,935 532,035 689,620 3,033,237
Financial charges (6,507) (2,029) (15,322 6,725 (17,133)
Profit before taxation 896,140 906,906 516,713 696,345 3,016,104
Taxation - net (281,131) (243,188) (152,819) (204,632) (881,770)
Profit after taxation 615,009 663,718 363,894 491,713 2,134,334

Quarterly Analysis

Revenues from Gross
contracts with Profit
customers- net

HQa JJ o2

137

Profit before Profit after
taxation taxation
W 03 7 04
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Comments on Quarterly analysis

Since the Company is well poised to grow its market share and deliver sustainable growth both in
terms of revenue and profitability. In an environment where preventive care has become an essential
part of daily lives and consumers being more aware of their every-day health needs, with our best in
class OTC and Oral Healthcare brands we believe that we are serving our consumers better everyday
health with humanity. This is evident from the fact that company achieved record growth in FY 2021
which is 22% in terms of sales.

In terms of quarters, Sales during the second quarter represented 28% (highest) of total revenue,
whereas profit during the same period was 31% of total profit after tax mainly due to effect of
seasonality and rise in COVID-19 cases. Sales during the first quarter was only 22% (lowest) of total
revenue due to challenging economic and regulatory environment.

Whereas, in Q3 & Q4, we invested heavily on our brands which is evident from the increase in selling,
marketing and distribution expenses. This helped us in maintaining the growth trajectory and delivering
the remarkable performance.

Analysis of Variation in Interim Results and Final Accounts

The revenue reported in H1 - 2021 was slightly low as compared to revenue reported in H2-2021. In
H1-2021, the core business (excluding toll and exports) grew by 27% vs SPLY (June Vs June). The
performance was mainly driven by increase in demand and underlying consumption trend. Our best in
class Supply Chain and in market execution teams ensured that we were able to meet the consumer
needs across all categories. The core business witnessed healthy performance in both OTC and
Fast-Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) portfolios. In terms of categories; Oral Healthcare registered a
growth of 46%, while Nutrition & Digestive Health and Pain category registered a growth of 27% and
18% respectively as compared to the corresponding period last year. Similarly, our toll manufacturing
business witnessed a growth of 38% in revenue.

Whereas in full year, the Over the Counter (OTC) portfolio; Respiratory, Pain Management and Nutrition
& Digestive Health categories registered a growth of 63%, 21% and 17% respectively; whereas Oral
Healthcare registered a growth of 31% over the corresponding period. Similarly, our toll manufacturing
business of Rs 3 billion and the export business of Rs 151 million continued to contribute towards our
revenue.
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The Company's Return on Equity improved by 7.34% Rs. 6,857

majorly due to higher sales and profits.

Return on Equity / Return on Shareholders Fund (%)
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Free Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2021

December 31

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Rupees in ‘000
Profit before taxation 3,016,104 1,774,292 1,699,778 1,462,692 1,170,839 856,064
Adjustment for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortization 301,237 268,412 231,401 210,635 22,965 10,148
Operating assets written off - - - - 1,642 -
Interest expense 2,101 37,067 123,894 143,996 - -
Gain on disposal of operating assets (707) (1,526) (7,907) (2,414) (2,511) (279)
Interest income (191,947) (32,091) (19,147) (61,985) | (105,970 (23,671)

Provision for slow moving, obsolete
and damaged stock and stock written-off 172,854 197,658 130,631 114,025 4,340 (2,112)
Allowance for impairment of trade debts - 3,706 23,929 23 158 152
Provision for impairment of fixed assets - - 22,500 - - -
Provision for staff retirement benefits 90,619 77,061 67,944 57,046 9,107 5,202
374,157 550,287 573,245 461,326 (70,269) (10,560]
Working capital changes (879,914) 1,334,414 | (165,330) |(1,411,637) | (264,856) 430,983
Staff retirement benefits paid (78,328) | (60,898) (61,189) | (52,738) (7,.492) (5,020)
Mark-up paid (4,711) | (59,863) | (140,971) | (139,780) - -
Income taxes paid (832,340) | (624,481) |(565,409) | (743,789) | (268,656) | (321,666)
Decrease in long-term loans to employees 1,591 1,334 (3,233) (1,841) (216) 56
Increase in long-term deposits (2,360] (1,574) (3,106) - - -
(1,796,062) 588,932  (939,238) (2,349,785)  (541,220] 104,353

Net cash generated from / (used in)
operating activities 1,594,199 2,913,511 1,333,785  (425,767) 559,350 949,857
Fixed capital expenditure (543,264)  (851,268)  (524,793)  (314,786)  (28,388) (71,004)
Free cash flows 1,050,935 2,062,243 808,992 [(740,553) 530,962 878,853

Comments on Free Cash Flows

Company’s free cash flows decreased significantly versus last year mainly on account of increase in investment in

working capital: In order to prepare for the upcoming season of CaC1000 Plus, the Company build the inventory
amounting to Rs. 1.2 billion, whereas, increase in FMCG and tolling sales have caused the trade debts to increase
by Rs. 432 million. Furthermore, capacity utlisation claim recorded at year end caused the other receivables to go
up by Rs. 151 million. Moreover, zero interest payments due to improvement in liquidity position benefitted the

Company in terms of investing in core business activites.

Annual Report 2021

140




Free Cash Flows
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Direct CashFlow

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers / service providers

Cash paid to employees

Payment of indirect taxes and other statutory duties
Staff retirement benefits paid

Mark-up paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditures
Proceeds from disposal of operating assets

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid
Lease rental paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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2021 2020
Rupeesin ‘000
23,730,142 20,194,744
(19,769,803) (15,042,920)
(1,431,325) (1,348,965)
(19,436) (144,107)
(78,328) (60,898)
(4,711) (59,863)
(832,340) (624,481
1,594,199 2,913,510
(543,264) (851,268])
29,581 5,961
191,361 31,629
(322,322) (813,678)
(79,406) (79,951)
(2,460) (1,768)
(81,866) (81,719)
1,190,011 2,018,113
1,897,774 (120,339)
3,087,785 1,897,774
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Horizontal Analysis (%)

Statement of Financial Position Analysis 2021 2020 2019 2018* 2017 2016
Share Capital and Reserves 30.0 14.7 17.4 67.0 43.9 100.0
Non Current Liabilities 22.8 28.5 46.6 552.0 128.5 100.0
Current Liabilities 2341 29.7 7.6 143.8 30.3 100.0
Total Equity and Liabilities 26.4 22.2 12.9 101.2 38.2 100.0
Non Current Assets 5.9 18.9 9.7  1,983.7 (10.6] 100.0
Current Assets 36.5 23.9 14.7 35.2 40.9 100.0
Total Assets 26.4 22.2 12.9 101.2 38.2 100.0
Statement of Profit or Loss Analysis 2021 2020 2019 2018* 2017 2016
Net sales 21.8 21.6 9.7 79.3 54.4 100.0
Cost of sales 20.9 28.1 8.2 101.5 34.4 100.0
Gross profit 24.2 6.9 13.2 42.0 105.6 100.0
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 8.2 13.1 12.2 34.0 85.1 100.0
Administrative expenses 12.2 2.3 (1.9) 49.7 46.2 100.0
Other operating expenses 58.5 8.2 12.1 43.8 35.8 100.0
Other operating income 627.6 (34.5) (49.3) (22.0) (65.8) 100.0
Operating profit 65.5 (3.2) 12.1 43.2 37.5 100.0
Financial charges (70.5) (69.8) (14.8)  2,676.1 423.2 100.0
Profit before taxation 70.0 4.4 16.2 24.9 36.8 100.0
Taxation 72.1 15.8 13.9 (16.4) 49.4 100.0
Profit after taxation 69.1 0.4 17.0 52.0 29.6 100.0

*The Horizontal analysis for 2018 numbers includes the entire business of GSK OTC (Private) Limited as it stood merged
with and into GSK Consumer Pakistan Healthcare Limited with effect from January 1, 2018.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Comments on Horizontal Analysis - Statement of Financial Position

Shareholders’
Equity

Non-Current
Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Non-Current
Assets

Current Assets

Share capital and
Reserves increased by
30% as compared to
14.7% last year. The
increase is mainly
attributable to higher
sales which has
resulted in an increase
in profit after tax and
other comprehensive
income.

Non-current
liabilties have
increased by 22.8%.
The increase is
mainly driven by
deferred tax liability
booked on
accelerated tax
depreciation and
amortization
amounting to Rs. 51
million.

Current liabilites are
depicting an increase
of 23.1% owing to the
higher inventory
purchase and
advertisement and
promotional expenses
accrual amounting to
Rs. 299 million and Rs.
360 million
respectively.

There is adip in
non-current assets
percentage as
compared to same
period last year. This
can be attributed to
the significant capital
expenditure being
done in FY 2020 owing
to the Panadol
insourcing
arrangement. For the
current year, no such

The increase in current
assets can be
substantiated by the
increase in Stock levels
amounting to Rs. 1
billion due to build up of
CaC1000 Plus
inventories. Trade debts
contributed Rs. 432
million due to higher
sales of FMCG and
tolling portfolio
whereas other

capex was planned and recievables from group

only the capitalisation
of the same was done.

companies increased by
Rs. 67 million.

Comments on Horizontal Analysis - Statement of Profit or loss

Sales

Cost of Sales

Selling, marketing and
distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Looking at the overall
market conditions, the
Company managed to
achieve 22% growth as
compared to last year which
was supported by the
increase in OTC and FMCG
portfolio sales by 20% and
31% (excluding divestments)
respectively.

Cost of sales of the
Company increased
primarily on account of
closure of a major Chinese
supplier of Paracetamol
(i.e. the key raw material
of Panadol] causing the
prices to go up. Rest of the
increase is attributed to
inflation and currency
devaluation.

Selling, marketing and
distribution expenses during
the year increased by 8%
which is mainly attributable
to advertising, sales
promotion and handling &

freight expenditure depicting

the growth of 4%.

The increase in
administrative expenses of
12% is mainly driven by one
off legal & professional
charges and prinitng and
stationery expenses
amounting to Rs. 17 million
and Rs. 4 million
respectively.

Other operating expenses

Other income

Financial Charges

Taxation

Increase in other expenses
during the current year by
58% is primarily on account
of increase in statutory
charges (WPPF, WWF and

CRF) which is in line with the

increase in profitability of
the Company.
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Increase in other income
of Rs. 294 million is mainly
on account of better
cashflow management and
recovery of expenses from
the group entities
amounting to Rs. 160
million and Rs. 107 million
respectively.

The decrease of Rs. 40
million is mainly on account
of zero interest charge on
running finance facility.

Increase in tax expense
during the current year by
72% is primarily on account
of increase in profitability of
the Company.
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Vertical Analysis (%)

Statement of Financial Position Analysis 2021 2020 2019 2018* 2017 2016
Share Capital and Reserves 48.4 471 50.1 48.2 58.1 55.8
Non Current Liabilities 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.6 0.5 0.3
Current Liabilities 49.4 50.8 47.8 50.2 L1.4 43.9
Total Equity and Liabilities 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Non Current Assets 27.8 33.2 34.1 35.1 3.4 5.2
Current Assets 72.2 66.8 65.9 64.9 96.6 94.8
Total Assets 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Profit and Loss Analysis 2021 2020 2019 2018* 2017 2016
Net sales 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales (72.6) (73.2) (69.4) (70.4) (62.6) (71.9)
Gross profit 27.4 26.8 30.6 29.6 37.4 28.1
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses (13.9) (15.6) (16.8) (16.4) (22.0) (18.3)
Administrative expenses (1.3) (1.5) (1.7) (1.9) (2.3) (2.5)
Other operating expenses (1.0 (0.8) (0.9) (0.9) (1.1) (1.2)
Other operating income 1.4 0.2 0.4 1.0 2.2 9.9
Operating profit 12.6 9.2 11.6 1.4 14.2 16.0
Financial charges (0.1) (0.3] (1.2] (1.5) (0.1) (0.0)
Profit before taxation 12.5 8.9 10.4 9.8 141 15.9
Taxation (3.6) (2.6) (2.7) (2.6) (5.6) (5.8)
Profit after taxation 8.8 6.4 7.7 7.2 8.5 10.1

*The Vertical analysis for 2018 numbers includes the entire business of GSK OTC (Private) Limited as it stood merged with
and into GSK Consumer Pakistan Healthcare Limited with effect from January 1, 2018.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Comments on Vertical Analysis - Statement of Financial Position

Shareholders’
Equity

Non-Current
Liabilities

Current
Liabilities

Non-Current
Assets

Current Assets

Share capital and
Reserves as a
percentage

of equity have
increased from 47.1%
in 2020 to 48.4% at the
close of 2021 owing

to higher profits
generated i.e. 71%
increase in profit after
tax and other
comprehensive
income.

Non-current
liabilties have
decreased by 0.1% as
a percentage of
equity, however, in
real terms, the staff
retirement benefit
and deferred tax
increased by Rs. 9.2
million and Rs. 45
million respectively.
This is mainly due to
changein
assumptions and
rates while
calcualting the
relevant P&L impact
for these liabilities.

There is a decline in
current liabilities as a
percentage of equity
by 1.3%. The Company
has imposed strict
controls on meeting
the working capital
requirements in
order to ensure that
sufficient cash
reserves are
available at all times.

There is a dip of 5.3%
in non-current assets
as a percentage of
equity which can be
attributed to the
significant capital
expenditure being
done in FY 2020 owing
to the Panadol
insourcing
arrangement. For the
current year, no such

The increase in current
assets as percentage of
equity by 5.3% can be
substantiated by the
increase in Stock levels
amounting to Rs. 1
billion due to build up of
CaC1000 Plus
inventories. Trade debts
contributed Rs. 432
million due to higher
sales of FMCG and

capex was planned and tolling portfolio

only the capitalisation
of the same was done.

whereas other
recievables from group
companies increased by
Rs. 67 million.

Comments on Vertical Analysis - Statement of Profit or loss

Gross profit

Taxation

Net profit

The turnover increased by 22%
whereas gross profit ratio has

The increase in tax percentage by

While delivering growth on our key

improved by 0.5% only. A declining
trend in gross profit margin is mainly
due to closure of a major Chinese
supplier of Paracetamol (i.e. the key
raw material of Panadol] causing the
prices to go up.
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1% is mainly driven by increase in
profits. The enlistment credit have
been utilised and the effective tax
percentage is maintained at 29% as
compared to SPLY which is the
applicable tax rate for Companies.

brands with continued focus on
sustainable gross margins, we have
also been able to exercise due control
on our cost levers. Total expenses to
net sales ratio has improved from 18%
to 16% as compared to same period
last year (SPLY). Further, the other
income of the Company increased by
Rs. 294 million vs SPLY mainly on
account of better cashflow
management and recovery of
expenses from the group entities. This
has resulted in an increase in net
profit percentage by 2.47%.
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Statement of Value Added

Rs. In million

2020

Revenue

Rs. 20,519

Purchases

Rs. 13,787

Wealth

Generated
Rs. 6,732

Rs. 2,682
13.1%

Rs. 216
1.1%

Rs. 1,293
6.3%

Rs. 1,273
6.2%

Rs. 6
0.03%

Rs. 585
2.9%

Rs. 677
3.3%

Rs. 6,732
100%

OO EOE

Wealth
Distributed €=

\ 4

Selling, Marketing and
Distribution Expenses

»

Administrative Expenses
and Financial Charges

To Government
as taxes and duties

To Employees
as remuneration

To Society

To Shareholders
as Dividend

Retained in the
Business

N’
— 2021 —
Revenue

Rs. 25,263

Purchases

Rs. 16,645

Wealth

Generated
Rs. 8,618

Rs. 2,886
1.4%

Rs. 192
0.8%

Rs. 1,885
7.5%

Rs. 1,521
6.0%

Rs. 0.4
0.001

Rs. 2,134
WA

Rs. 8,618
100%

OO0 4
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Economic Value Added
Rs. in million
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Independent
Auditor’s Review Report

To the members of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2021 in accordance
with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers

all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31,
2021.

NOUgey Nd

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi
Date: February 21,2022
UDIN: CR202110091efgkHOwIp

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
Year ended 31 December 2021

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (‘Regulations’] in the following manner:

1. The total number of Directors are 7 with following diversity:

a. Male Five (5)
b. Female Two (2]

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category | Name |

Independent Directors [0 Syed Anwar Mahmood
00 Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir
[0 Ms. Ayesha Aziz

Executive Directors [J] Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon
[0 Mr. Dilawar Meghani
Non-Executive Directors [] Mr. Oussama Abbas

[1 Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim

Female Directors [1 Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim
[0 Ms. Ayesha Aziz

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where
applicable).

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along
with the date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and in his absence, by a Director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with requirements of the Companies Act,
2017 (‘Act’) and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings
of the Board.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations.
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9. Majority of the Board members have attained training under Directors’ Training Program in prior years and
collectively meet the requirements of the Regulations.

10. The Board has approved the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Chief Internal
Auditor, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

11.  The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

i.  Syed Anwar Mahmood - Chairperson
ii.  Mr.M.Z. Moin Mohajir
iii. Ms. Ayesha Aziz

b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

i.  Syed Anwar Mahmood - Chairperson
i.  Mr.M.Z. Moin Mohajir
iii. Ms. Ayesha Aziz

c) Integration Supply and Network Optimization Committee

i.  Mr. Oussama Abbas - Chairperson
ii. Mr.Farhan Muhammad Haroon

iii. Mr. Dilawar Meghani

13. The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of the meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of the committees were as per following:

al Audit Committee Quarterly
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 4™ Quarter
c) Integration & SNO Committee 1stand 3™ Quarter

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes, who are considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
Company.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




16.

17.

18.

19.
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The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not
a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with; and

Explanation with respect to compliance with non-mandatory requirements of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 is specified below:

Regulation
No.

The Terms of Reference for 29
Nomination Committee are covered

Requirement

Explanation

1. The Board may constitute a
separate committee, designed as

the nomination committee, of such
number and class of Directors,

as it may deem appropriate in its
circumstances.

by the Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee, which
timely apprises the Board with
regard to any changes therefore
a separate committee is not
considered necessary.

The Board may constitute the risk
management committee, of such
number and class of Directors, as

it may deem appropriate in its cir-
cumstances, to carry out a review of
effectiveness of risk management
procedures and present a report to
the Board.

The Terms of Reference for Risk
Committee are covered by the Board
of Directors and the Risk Manage-
ment Compliance Board* which
meets quarterly to review the ef-
fectiveness of the Company’s risk
management procedures and timely
apprises the Board with results,
therefore a separate committee is
not considered necessary.

30

*For Further Details Regarding the Risk Management Compliance Board, please refer to page 85 of the
Annual Report.

gﬁJ__
Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir
Chairperson

Karachi
Date: 9 February 2022




Independent
Auditor’s Report

To the members of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer HealthCare Pakistan Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer HealthCare Pakistan
Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2021 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




Following is the Key audit matter:

S. No.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Valuation of inventories

Refer to notes 3.4 and 7 to the financial
statements relating to valuation of inventories.

As at December 31, 2021, the Company held
inventories of Rs. 3,916.05 million, which is 28% of
total assets and against which provision for slow
moving, obsolete and damaged stock of Rs. 148.09
million has been recorded.

We focused on inventories as it is a significant
portion of Company’s total assets and it requires
management judgement with respect to standard
costs (including capitalisation of variances),
determination of net realizable value and
determination of obsolescence of stock.

In this respect, we performed the following audit
procedures:

- Obtained an understanding of procedures
followed by the Company with respect to
valuation of inventories;

- Assessed appropriateness of the Company’s
accounting policies for valuation of inventories
and compliance of those policies with the
accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan;

- Onasample basis, verified supporting
documents for purchases of inventories and the
production costs;

- Obtained working of variances recorded by
management and tested the amounts, which
were incurred and retained to actualize the
standard cost of inventories at year end;

- Obtained an understanding and assessed
reasonableness of management’s process for
determination of net realizable value (NRV) and
the key estimates adopted, including future
selling prices, future costs to complete and
costs necessary to make the sales and their
basis;

- Compared the NRV, on a sample basis, to the
carrying value of inventories to assess whether
any adjustments were required to carrying
value of inventories in accordance with the
policy; and

Tested provision recorded for obsolete inventory
to ensure that whether it was as per the policy of
the Company.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021, but does not include the
financial statements, our auditor’s report thereon, and the review report issued on statement of compliance
with Code of Corporate Governance.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted

in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
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We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b) statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of

account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nadeem Yousuf Adil.

NOUgey Nd

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi
Date: February 21,2022
UDIN: AR202110091pFAnM20tg
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Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2021

2021 2020
ASSETS Note  ---------- Rupees in ‘000 ----------
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 3,706,466 3,493,313
Intangible 5 127,674 127,674
Long-term loans to employees 6 7,669 9,260
Long-term deposits 10,430 8,070
3,852,239 3,638,317
Current assets
Stores and spares 121,594 61,956
Inventories 7 3,916,050 2,902,222
Trade debts 8 1,101,726 669,585
Loans and advances 9 412,863 491,187
Trade deposits and prepayments 10 69,596 42,947
Interest accrued 1,227 641
Refunds due from Government " 39,015 32,391
Other receivables 12 485,056 333,739
Taxation - payments less provision 663,992 668,936
Investment at amortised cost 13 747,935 -
Bank balances 14 2,454,867 2,132,049
10,013,921 7,335,653
Total assets 13,866,160 10,973,970
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 15 1,170,545 1,170,545
Reserves 16 5,544,627 3,993,383
6,715,172 5,163,928
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Staff retirement benefits 17 97,244 88,028
Deferred taxation 18 197,102 151,724
294,346 239,752
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 4,941,078 4,155,523
Accrued mark-up - 2,769
Unpaid dividend 20 1,915,564 1,409,697
Current portion of lease liability - 2,301
6,856,642 5,570,290
Total liabilities 7,150,988 5,810,042
Total equity and liabilities 13,866,160 10 0
Contingencies and commitments 21

The annexed notes from 1to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

g amtid 5

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 31, 2021

2021 2020

Note -------- Rupees in '000 --------
Revenue from contracts with customers - net 22 24,163,150 19,846,106
Cost of sales 23 (17,548,075) (14,518,244)
Gross profit 6,615,075 5,327,862
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 24 (3,353,640) (3,098,439)
Administrative expenses 25 (325,084) (289,759)
Other operating expenses 26 (244,517) (154,287)
Other income 27 341,403 46,923
Operating profit 3,033,237 1,832,300
Financial charges 28 (17,133) (58,008)
Profit before taxation 3,016,104 1,774,292
Taxation - net 29 (881,770) (512,283)
Profit after taxation for the year 2,134,334 1,262,009
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of staff retirement benefits 17.1.8 3,075 (18,764)
Impact of taxation 18.1 (892) 5,352

2,183 (13,412)

Total comprehensive income 2,136,517 1,248,597
Earnings per share 30 18.23 10.78

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

U AL ok

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Capital reserves Revenue reserve
Reserve
Reserve arising arising on
Share under the Scheme  amalgamation Unappropriated Total
capital of Arrangement - under the Scheme profit
note 1.1 of Merger
- note 1.4
——————————————————————————————— Rupees in ‘000 ---------===-ommmmmommo oo
Balance as at January 01, 2020 1,170,545 101,914 728,726 2,499,419 4,500,604
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity - distribution
Final dividend for the year ended
December 31,2019 [@ Rs. 5 per share - - - (585,273) (585,273)
Total comprehensive income
Profit after taxation for the year - - - 1,262,009 1,262,009
Other comprehensive loss - - - (13,412) (13,412)

- - - 1,248,597 1,248,597

Balance as at December 31, 2020 1,170,545 101,914 728,726 3,162,743 5,163,928

Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity - distribution

Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2020 @ Rs. 5 per share - - - (585,273) (585,273)

Total comprehensive income

Profit after taxation for the year - - - 2,134,334 2,134,334

Other comprehensive income - - - 2,183 2,183

- - - 2,136,517 2,136,517

Balance as at December 31, 2021 1,170,545 101,914 728,726 4,713,987 6,715,172

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations

Staff retirement benefits paid

Mark-up paid

Income taxes paid

Decrease in long-term loans to employees
Increase in long-term deposits

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditures

Proceeds from disposal of operating assets

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid
Lease rental paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

31

33

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

32

2021

2020

Rupees in ‘000 --------

2,510,347 3,658,992
(78,328) (60,898)
(4,711) (59,863)
(832,340) (624,481)
1,591 1,334
(2,360) (1,574)
1,594,199 2,913,510
(543,264) (851,268
29,581 5,961
191,361 31,629
(322,322) (813,678)
(79,406) (79,951)
(2,460) (1,768)
(81,866) (81,719)
1,190,011 2,018,113
1,897,774 (120,339)
3,087,785 1,897,774

The annexed notes from 1to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer
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Director
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Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2021

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated in
Pakistan as a public unlisted company under the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) on March 31, 2015 principally to effect the demerger of
consumer healthcare business of GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited (GSK Pakistan) under a
Scheme of Arrangement (the Scheme), which was approved by the Honourable High Court of Sindh
(SHC) and its order was submitted to the Registrar of Companies on April 01, 2016. The Company
is a subsidiary of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. The ultimate parent of the Company
is GlaxoSmithKline plc, UK. The Company is engaged in manufacturing, marketing and sale of
consumer healthcare products. The Company has been listed at the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited since March 22, 2017. The registered office of the Company is situated at 35-Dockyard
Road, West Wharf, Karachi.

1.2 Due to the pending transfer of marketing authorisations and certain permissions for Over the
Counter (OTC) products of the Company with Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP), GSK
Pakistan, for and on behalf of the Company was engaged in the procurement, manufacturing and
managing the related inventory and receivable balances pertaining to such products against a
service fee charged by GSK Pakistan.

1.3 Impact of COVID-19

The coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak emerged last year (March 2020), has caused governments
around the world to implement strict measures to control its spread. This includes smart lock-
downs, travel bans, quarantine, social-distancing, closures or reduced operations for non-essential
businesses, governmental agencies, schools and other institutions.

General economic activities in Pakistan were although affected but continued since then. However,
healthcare businesses were allowed to continue their operations by both provincial and federal
governments in order to ensure availability of essential medicines in the market. Staff of the
Company were working without any disruption either from office / plant or online remotely.

The management of the Company is closely monitoring the situation, and there has not been any
material impact on the financial performance of the Company as it was fully operational during the
year.

1.4 Merger of GlaxoSmithKline OTC (Private) Limited with and into the Company

In 2018, GlaxoSmithKline OTC (Private] Limited (GSK OTC), a wholly owned subsidiary of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V., was merged with and into the Company with effect
from January 01,2018 through a Scheme of Merger sanctioned by SHC vide its order dated December
12, 2018, which was also endorsed by Drug Regulatory Authority of Pakistan (DRAP] vide its letter
no. F.2-4/88-Lic (Vol-1V) dated March 07, 2019.
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2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS] issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
requirements of IFRS or IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as
otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies below.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented
in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All financial
information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise indicated.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the
basis of making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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The matters involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant which have been disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial
statements are:

i) Intangibles (note 3.2 and note 5J;

ii)  Provision for staff retirement benefits (note 3.7 and note 17);

iii) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 3.1 and note 4);
iv] Impairment of non-financial assets (note 3.12);

v]  Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock (note 3.4 and note 7J;
vi] Allowance for impairment of trade debts (note 3.11.4 and note 8); and
vii) Taxation (note 3.16, note 18 and note 29).

2.5 Application of new standards, amendments and interpretations to the published approved
accounting standards

2.5.1 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year
ended December 31, 2021

The following amendment is effective for the year ended December 31, 2021. This amendment is
either not relevant to the Company’s operations or is not expected to have significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from
accounting period
beginning on or after

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 January 01, 2021
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

2.5.2 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations
and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected
to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures.

Effective from
accounting periods
beginning on or after

- Amendment to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - COVID-19 related rent concessions April 01, 2021
extended beyond June 30, 2021
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Effective from
accounting periods
beginning on or after

- Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ - Reference to
the conceptual framework January 01, 2022

- Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds
before intended use January 01, 2022

- Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’ - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract January 01, 2022

- Annuallmprovements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (related
to IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41) January 01, 2022

- Amendmentsto|AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, Disclosures of accounting policies January 01, 2023

- Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of accounting estimates January 01, 2023

- Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ - deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

2.5.3 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB] has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted
locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented:

3.1  Property, plant and equipment
3.1.1 Operating assets

Operating assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged using the straight line method whereby the carrying value of an asset less
estimated residual value, if not insignificant, is written-off over its estimated remaining useful
life. Depreciation / amortisation on assets is charged from the month of addition to the month of
disposal. Cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease.
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3.1.2

3.2

3.3

3.4
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses on disposal of operating assets are recognised in statement of profit or loss during
the year in which the asset is disposed-off.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each item of operating assets that
is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
annually.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any. It consists of expenditure
incurred and advances made in respect of items of property, plant and equipment in the course
of their acquisition, construction and installation. Transfers are made to the relevant category of
assets when assets are available for intended use.

Intangible

In a business combination, goodwill is recognised at the acquisition date and measured at the fair
value of consideration paid less the fair value of net assets acquired. After initial recognition, it is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any. Goodwill is assessed annually for impairment.

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cost, determined using weighted average method, and net realisable
value, less provision for obsolete items, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice
value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date. Provision is made for items
which are obsolete and slow moving and is determined based on management estimate regarding
their future usability.

Inventories

These are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using first-in first-out
method.

Cost of raw and packing materials comprise of purchase price including directly related expenses
less trade discounts, if any. Cost of work-in-process and finished goods include cost of raw and
packing materials, direct labour and related production overheads.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
necessary costs to be incurred to make the sale. Provision is made for slow moving and expired
inventory where considered necessary.




3.5

3.6

3.7

3.71

3.7.2

3.8
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Stock-in-transit is carried at accumulated cost incurred upto reporting date.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost / amortised
cost. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank
balances in current, savings and deposit accounts, other short-term highly liquid imvestments with
original maturities of upto three months, short-term borrowings under running finance and book
overdraft, if any.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recognised at their face value. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the issue of shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan
The Company operates an approved funded gratuity plan (the Plan) for its permanent employees.

Gratuity is based on employees’ last drawn salary. Provisions are made to cover the obligations
under the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuations are
carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gain or loss (re-measurements)
are immediately recognised in statement of comprehensive income as they occur. The amount
recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit
obligation as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets. Current service costs and any past service
costs together with net interest cost are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Retirement benefits are payable to employees on completion of prescribed qualifying period of
service under the Plan.

Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees.
Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the employee at the rate of 10%
per annum of the basic salary.

Compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences of its non-management employees on un-availed
balance of leave in the period in which the leaves are earned.
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3.9

3.10

3.1

3.11.1

3.11.2
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risk and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

Share-based payments

Cash-settled share-based payments provided to employees are recorded as liability in the
statement of financial position at fair value over the period the services are received.

Financial assets and liabilities
Initial recognition

Allfinancial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at their fair value plus or minus, in
the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset and financial
liability. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recorded at fair value and transaction cost are expensed out in the statement of profit or loss.

These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortised cost as the case may be. The Company
recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes party to the contractual

provisions of the instruments.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed its part of the
contract or the contract is a derivative contract.

Classification
(i) Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"),
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"), or
- atamortised cost ("AC”).
The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The

classification of instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business
model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.




3.11.3

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

(ii)

Financial liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), or
- atamortised cost (“AC”).

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at
FVTPL or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value, with gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive (loss) income.

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when financial instrument
are derecognised or impaired or through the amortisation process.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
Realised and unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial

assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability
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at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Company’s own credit risk will be recognised in
other comprehensive (loss) / income.

3.11.4 Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, recognition of impairment is based on expected
credit loss (ECL) model. The Company measures loss allowance of an amount equal to lifetime
ECL or 12 months ECL based on credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company recognises lifetime ECL for trade debts. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where appropriate.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based
on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant
recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due

3.11.5 Derecognition
(i) Financial assets

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows
from the financial assets expire, or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially
all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of a
financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying value
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial
liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.11.6 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Carrying values of non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists, assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment. Cash-generating units to which
goodwill is allocated are tested for impairment annually. Where the carrying values of assets or
cash-generating units exceed the estimated recoverable amount, these are written down to their
recoverable amount and the resulting impairment is charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Impairmentis reversed only if there has been a change in estimates used to determine recoverable
amounts and only to the extent that the revised carrying value does not exceed the carrying value
that would have existed, had no impairment been recognised, except impairment of goodwill
which is not reversed.

3.13 Business combination

Business combinations generally are accounted for using acquisition method of accounting in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’. The Company follows
predecessor’s accounting method for business combination falling under common control which
are out of scope of IFRS-3 ‘Business Combinations’.

3.14 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration
that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and
is recognised on the following basis:

- Revenue from sale of goods, scrap sales or service fee is recognised when control of goods or
services have been transferred to a customer either over time or at a point in time, when the
performance obligations are met.

- Returns on savings accounts, deposit accounts and investments at amortised cost are
recognised using effective interest rate method.

- Insurance commission is recognised when performance obligations are met.
- Promotional allowance is recognised when the right to receive the allowance is established.

3.15 ljarah

In ijarah transactions, significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor. Islamic Financial Accounting Standard 2 - ‘ljarah’ requires the recognition of ‘Ujrah
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3.16

3.16.1

3.16.2

317

3.18

319
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payments’ (lease rentals) against ijarah financing as an expense in the statement of profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the ijarah term.

Taxation
Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after
taking into account applicable tax credits and rebates available, if any, and taxes paid under the
final tax regime.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method for all temporary differences at the
reporting date arising between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets arerecognised to the extent thatitis probable that taxable profits and taxable temporary
differences will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The
carryingamount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits and taxable temporary differences will
be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit
or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. The effect of deferred taxation of the portion of the income
subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the requirement of Technical
Release - 27 of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded into Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are
translated into Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial
position date. Exchange gains and losses are taken to the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders and appropriations to / from reserves is
recognised in the period in which these are approved.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
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calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker (CODM) who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments. The Management has determined that the
Company has a single reportable segment as the CODM views the Company’s operations as one
reportable segment.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based
on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Company.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease
liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over the shorter of
the lease term and the asset’s useful life. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on
the same basis as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and
decreased by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension
option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

Each lease paymentis allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to the statement of profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use asset and
lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets. The lease payments associated with these leases is recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.



2021 2020

Note ~  ------- Rupees in '000 -------
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets 41 3,091,001 2,655,047
Capital work-in-progress 4.5 615,465 836,283
Right-of-use assets - building - 1,983
3,706,466 3,493,313
4.1 Operating assets
Building and
Leasehold  improvements Plant and Furniture and Vehicles Office Total
land on Leasehold machinery fixtures equipment
land
[note 4.4)
Rupees in ‘000
Net carrying value
year ended December 31, 2021
Opening net book value 6,137 682,185 1,561,332 91,226 144,269 169,898 2,655,047
Additions (at cost) - 11,799 580,004 6,777 109,501 56,001 764,082
Disposals / write-offs
- Cost - - (40,055) (905) (48,606) (25,752) (115,318)
- Accumulated depreciation - - 31,871 627 31,563 22,383 86,444
- - (8,184) (278) (17,043) (3,369 (28,874)
Depreciation / amortisation
charge (301) (24,244) (170,608) (19,790) (48,013) (36,298)  (299,254)
Closing net book value 5,836 669,740 1,962,544 77,935 188,714 186,232 3,091,001
Gross carrying value
at December 31, 2021
Cost 7,646 796,110 2,677,990 139,527 355,009 306,304 4,282,586
Accumulated depreciation
/ amortisation (1,810)  [(126,370) (715,446) (61,592) (166,295 (120,072)  (1,191,585)
Net book value 5,836 669,740 1,962,544 77,935 188,714 186,232 3,091,001
Depreciation rate
per annum 4% 2.5%t010% 6.67% to 25% 10% 25% 10% to 33.33%
Net carrying value
year ended December 31, 2020
Opening net book value 6,438 693,697 1,460,660 28,047 154,220 141,545 2,484,607
Additions (at cost) - 12,432 258,523 81,599 37.491 51,670 441715
Disposals
- Cost | - | | - | | (11,093] | | (559) | | (50] | | (688] | | (12,390] |
- Accumulated depreciation - - 7,103 21 17 403 7.544
- - (3.990) (538) (33) (285) (4,846)
Depreciation / amortisation
charge (301) (23,944) (153,861) (17,882) (47,409} (23,032)  (266,429)
Closing net book value 6,137 682,185 1,561,332 91,226 144,269 169,898 2,655,047
Gross carrying value
at December 31, 2020
Cost 7,646 784,31 2,138,041 133,655 294,114 276,055 3,633,822
Accumulated depreciation
/ amortisation (1,509} (102,126) (576,709) (42,429) (149,845) (106,157)  (978,775)
Net book value 6,137 682,185 1,561,332 91,226 144,269 169,898 2,655,047
Depreciation rate per annum 4% 2.5%t010%  6.67% to 25% 10% 25% 10% to 33.33%
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4.2 Details of assets sold, having net book value in excess of Rs. 500,000:

Description Cost Accumulated Book Sale Gain/ Mode of Particulars of purchaser
P depreciation value proceeds (loss) disposal P
—————————————————— Rupees in ‘000 ------------------
Plant &
machinery 998 256 742 406 (336) Tender M/s The Penta Waste Mgmt Service Co., Shop
No D-5 & 6, Street#2, Rehman Town, Phuleli,
Hyderabad
Motor vehicles 1,810 876 934 1,267 333 Company Mr. Raj Kumar - (Executive)
Policy
2,897 1,267 1,630 2,028 398 - Ms. Hina Sadiq - (Executive)
2,054 1,155 899 1,130 231 " Mr. Muhammad Faisal - (Executive)
5,407 2,535 2,872 3,040 168 - Mr. Saleem Khilji - (Ex-Executive)
2,154 1,143 1,01 1,723 712 " Mr. Ali Gul Jariko - (Ex-Executive)
1,789 1,286 503 716 213 - Mr. Siddiq A Siddique - (Executive)
5,257 3,778 1,479 2,891 1,412 - Ms. Sadia Nasir - (Ex-Executive)
2,647 1,985 662 1,150 488 " Ms. Mahvash Furhan - (Ex-Executive)
2,093 916 1,177 1,465 288 - Mr. Aun Ali - (Ex-Executive)
2,054 1,059 995 2,085 1,090 - Mr. Farooq Ali Hashwani - (Ex-Executive)
2,647 1,530 1,117 2,340 1,223 - Mr. Farhan Haroon - (Chief Executive Officer)
31,807 17,786 14,021 20,241 6,220

4.3 Particulars of immovable assets of the Company are as follows:

Location Address Usage of immovable property Total area

4 acres and 1

Jamshoro Sandoz Nagar, Petaro Road, Jamshoro Factory
ghunta

4.4 Leasehold land consists of land located at Jamshoro Sandoz Nagar, Petaro Road. The Company is
the beneficial owner of the land, however, the title and lease is yet to be transferred in the name
of the Company. The land is currently in the name of Novartis Pharma (Pakistan) Limited.

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in 000 -------
4.5 Capital work-in-progress

Opening balance 836,283 426,730
Additions during the year 543,264 851,268
Transfers during the year (764,082) (441,715)
Closing balance 4.6 615,465 836,283

4.6 As at December 31, capital work-in-progress represents:
Civil works 93,365 39,077
Plant and machinery 443,575 614,558
Furniture and fixtures 8,626 34,512
Office equipment 5,721 81,123
Advances to suppliers 4.6.1 64,178 67,013
615,465 836,283

4.6.1 The advances to supplier do not carry any interest or mark-up.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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INTANGIBLE

This represents intangible acquired by the Company under the Scheme of Merger (note 1.4) which
comprise of goodwill that had arised on the business acquisition of Novartis Pharma (Pakistan)
Limited (NPPL) by GSK OTC, which is the difference between the purchase consideration and the
fair value of assets acquired.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is the higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to
sell. Value-in-use is calculated as the net present value of the projected cash flows of the Cash

Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs, discounted at risk-adjusted discount rate.

Details relating to the discounted cash flow model used in the impairment test are as follows:

Valuation basis Value-in-use
Key assumptions Sales growth rates
Determination of assumptions Growth rates are internal forecasts based on both internal and external

market information and past performance.
Cost reflects past experience, adjusted for inflation and expected changes.
Discount rate is primarily based on weighted average cost of capital.
Terminal growth rate 4.0%
Period of specific projected cash flows  5years
Discount rate 15.22%

The valuation indicates sufficient headroom such that a 1% change in the terminal growth and
discount rate has not resulted in an impairment of the intangible.

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in ‘000 -------
LONG-TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES
Secured - considered good 6.1 15,254 14,272
Recoverable within one year 9 (7,585) (5,012)
7,669 9,260

These loans have been given in accordance with the terms of employment for purchase of motor
car, motor cycle and for the purpose of house relocation and are repayable in 18 to 60 equal
monthly installments. These loans are interest free. All loans are secured against the retirement
fund balances.
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Note
INVENTORIES
Raw and packing materials [including in transit Rs. 545.03
million (2020: Rs. 104.39 million]]
Work-in-process
Finished goods [including in transit Rs. 150.55 million
(2020: Rs. 130.31 million]]
7.1

Less: Provision for slow moving, obsolete and damaged stock 7.2

Detail of inventories held with third parties is as follows:
For use in third party manufacturing

Roomi Enterprises (Private) Limited

Stock held at third party warehouse

Emirates Supply Chain Services (Private) Limited

Connect Logistics (Private] Limited
Glaciers (Private) Limited

2021

2020

——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------

2,237,197 1,582,790
41,288 14,375
1,785,654 1,442,493
4,064,139 3,039,658
(148,089) (137,436)
3,916,050 2,902,222
505,114 557,064
392,607 393,054
459,913 684,780
252,791 147,71

During the year, inventories of Rs. 113.09 million (2020: Rs. 159.87 million) have been written-off

against provision.

TRADE DEBTS

Trade debts 8.1
Less: Allowance for impairment of trade debts

2021 2020
——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------
1,132,578 700,437
(30,852) (30,852
1,101,726 669,585

These include Rs. 653 million (2020: Rs. 452.46 million) receivable from NPPL against toll

manufacturing and sale of goods.
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8.2 The ageing analysis of trade debts past due but not impaired is as follows:

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in 000 -------
- Up to 3 months 87,646 7,393
- 3 to 6 months 45,032 35,543
- 6 to 12 months 14,146 18,156
- Over 1year 26,640 12,941
173,464 74,033
9. LOANS AND ADVANCES - CONSIDERED GOOD

Current portion of long-term loans to employees 6 7,585 5,012

Advances to:
- employees 9.1 3,301 7,139
- suppliers 251,051 303,315
- against letter of credit 150,926 175,721
412,863 491,187

9.1 Advances to employees are provided to meet business expenses and are settled as and when the
expenses are incurred.

2021 2020

------- Rupees in ‘000 -------
10. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits - considered good 12,913 4,838
Prepayments 56,683 38,109
69,596 42,947

1. REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

These represent sales tax refundable due from Government which are considered good.

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in 000 -------
12. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Due from associated companies 12.1 67,135 -
Workers’ Profits Participation Fund 19.5 - 25,766
Others 12.4 417,921 307,973
485,056 333,739
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14.
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14.2

14.3
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2021 2020
——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------

Due from associated companies - considered good

GlaxoSmithKline Export Limited 21,850 -
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Export Limited 18,254 -
GlaxoSmithKline Pte Limited 27,031 -

67,135 -

The maximum aggregate amount due from associated companies at the end of any month during
the year was Rs. 107.57 million (2020: Rs. 567.74 million).

As at December 31, 2021, the age analysis of these related parties receivables are:

2021 2020
——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------

Up to 3 months 67,135 -

This includes media rebates and capacity utilisation claim amounting to Rs. 162.12 million (2020:
Rs. 162.12 million) and Rs. 203 million (2020: Rs. 102.82 million) respectively.

INVESTMENT AT AMORTISED COST

This represents Treasury Bills (T-bills) which are held with Company’s banker for safe custody.
The yield on T-bills were 8.10% to 8.38% per annum. These T-bills have maturity dates of January
13, 2022 and January 27, 2022.

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in ‘000 -------
BANK BALANCES
With banks:
- in deposit accounts (other financial asset at amortised cost) 14.1 - 1,300,000
- in savings accounts 141 2,445,386 561,897
- in current accounts [including foreign currency account
Rs. 2.20 million (2020: Rs. 1.99 million]] 9,481 270,152
2,454,867 2,132,049

As at December 31, 2021, the rates of mark-up on deposit accounts were Nil (2020: 5.5% to 6.5%])
per annum and on savings accounts were 7.25% to 7.85% (2020: 6.25% to 6.3%) per annum.

As at December 31, 2021, the facility for running finance available from a bank amounted to Rs. 1.84
billion (2020: Rs. 1.84 billion). Rate of mark-up is one/three month KIBOR plus 0.3% to 1% (2020:
one/three month KIBOR plus 0.3% to 1%) per annum. The arrangement is secured by a Stand-by
Letter of Credit issued by the Company’s parent.

As at December 31, 2021, the facility for corporate credit cards for travel and entertainment
expenditure amounted to Rs. 50 million (2020: Nil). The arrangement is secured by a Stand-by
Letter of Credit issued by the Company’s parent.
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15. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

2021 2020 2021 2020
————— Number of shares ----- Note ------- Rupeesin ‘000 -------
200,000,000 200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 2,000,000 2,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2021 2020
————— Number of shares -----

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

10,000 10,000 fully paid in cash 100 100
For consideration other than cash
95,540,183 95,540,183  under the Scheme of arrangement 1.1 955,402 955,402
For consideration other than cash
21,504,325 21,504,325 under the Scheme of Merger 1.4 215,043 215,043
117,054,508 117,054,508 1,170,545 1,170,545

15.1 As at December 31, 2021, GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. and its nominees held
100,423,259 shares (2020: 100,423,259 shares).

15.2 The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no rights to fixed income. The holders of
shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote
per share at the meeting of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in ‘000 -------
16. RESERVES
Capital reserves
- Reserve arising under the Scheme of Arrangement 1.1 101,914 101,914
- Reserve arising on amalgamation under the Scheme of
Merger 16.1 728,726 728,726
Revenue reserve - unappropriated profit 4,713,987 3,162,743

5,544,627 3,993,383

16.1  Thisrepresents reserve arising from merger of GSK OTC with and into the Company effective from
January 01, 2018 (refer note 1.4).
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17.  STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS
17.1  Funded gratuity scheme

17.1.1 The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees.
Actuarial valuation of the Plan is carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuation was
carried out as of December 31, 2021 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

17.1.2 Planassets heldintrustare governed by local regulations which mainly include Trust Act, 1882; the
Companies Act, 2017; Income Tax Rules, 2002 and the Rules under the trust deeds. Responsibility
for governance of the Plan, including investment decisions and contribution schedules, rests with
the Board of Trustees. The Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the
Company.

17.1.3 Details of the Plan as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

2021 2020
Note  ------- Rupees in ‘000 -------
17.1.4 Statement of financial position reconciliation
Present value of defined benefit obligation 17.1.5 220,160 194,809
Fair value of plan assets 17.1.6 (122,916) (106,781)
Deficit 97,244 88,028
17.1.5 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Balance at January 1, 2021 194,809 156,521
Benefits paid during the year (41,113) (21,309)
Current service cost 40,253 34,622
Interest cost 21,337 20,356
Re-measurement loss on obligation 5,180 12,674
Balance transferred to GSK Pakistan - net 17.1.15 (306) (8,055)
Balance at December 31, 2021 220,160 194,809
17.1.6 Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Balance at January 1, 2021 106,781 102,856
Contributions made during the year 36,570 25,926
Benefits paid during the year (41,113) (21,309)
Interest income 12,729 13,453
Re-measurement gain / (loss) on assets 8,255 (6,090)
Balance transferred to GSK Pakistan - net 17.1.15 (306) (8,055)
Balance at December 31, 2021 122,916 106,781
17.1.7 Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 40,253 34,622
Net interest cost 8,608 6,903
48,861 41525
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17.1.8 Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement loss on obligation arising due to change in:

2021 2020

————— Rupees in ‘000 -------

Experience adjustment - loss 17,265 2,542
Financial assumptions (gain] / loss (12,085) 10,132
Re-measurement (gain) / loss on plan assets (8,255) 6,090
(3,075) 18,764
17.1.9 Net recognised liability
Balance at January 1, 2021 88,028 53,665
Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss 48,861 41,525
Contribution made to the Plan during the year (36,570) (25,926]
Remeasurements (gain)/ loss recognised in other
comprehensive income (3,075) 18,764
Balance as at December 31, 2021 97,244 88,028
17.1.10 Detail of plan assets
Plan assets of the Company comprise of the following:
2021 2020
Rupees in o Rupees in 0
Note ‘000 %) 000 Yo
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 40,498 34% 42,124 39%
- Regular Income Certificates 28,503 23% 25,613 24%
- Defence Saving Certificates 28,704 23% 21,653 20%
- Term Finance Certificates 7,948 6% 7,388 7%
- Bank balances 17,115 14% 6,202 6%
- Others 17.1.10.1 148 0% 3,801 4%
122,916 100% 106,781 100%
17.1.10.1 This includes investments inequity instruments.
2021 2020
0/0 0/0
17.1.11  Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 12.25 10.25
Future salary increases 12.25 10.25
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17.1.12

17.1.13

17.1.14

17.1.15

17.2

Mortality was assumed to be based on SLIC (2001-05) Ultimate mortality tables rated down one
year.

In case of the funded plans, investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching
(ALM] framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with
the obligations under the retirement benefit plan. Within this framework, the ALM objective is
to match assets to the retirement benefit obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest
securities with maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due.

The Company’s gratuity expense for the year ending December 31, 2022 is expected to be Rs.
54.70 million.

During the current year, certain employees were transferred to / from GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan
Limited from / to the Company. Accordingly, their defined benefit obligations and related assets
are transferred to / from GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan gratuity fund.

Sensitivity analysis of the Company for actuarial assumptions

The Gratuity scheme exposes the entity to the following risks:

Mortality risks

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’
service / age distribution and the benefit.

Investment risks

The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities.

Final salary risks

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than what is assumed.
Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount increases similarly.

Withdrawal risks

The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either
way depending on the beneficiaries’ service / age distribution and the benefit.
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The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined
benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption  assumption  assumption

——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------

Discount rate 1% (21,123) 24,757
Future salary increases 1% 19,452 (17,104)

If longevity increases by 1year, the resultant increase in obligation is insignificant.

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the gratuity liability recognised within the statement of financial position.

2021 2020
17.3 Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation and plan assets

Experience adjustment - loss on obligation

(as percentage of plan obligation) 7.84% 1.30%
Financial assumptions - (gain) / loss on obligation

(as percentage of plan obligation) (5.49%) 5.20%
(Gain) / loss on plan assets

(as percentage of plan assets) (6.72%) 5.70%

17.4 The weighted average duration of approved funded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees
is 10.36 years. (2020: 10.52 years).
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17.5 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefit plan of the Company:

Lessthana Between Between Between

year 1-2years 2-5years 5-10years Total
--------------------- Rupees in ‘00 -----------==------—-
At December 31, 2021 13,722 15,325 81,191 247,618 357,856
At December 31, 2020 12,868 16,047 70,019 230,618 329,552
18. DEFERRED TAXATION
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
0 i Closi Openi Closi
. pe.n.mg Charge / . o?fng .pe.n.lng Charge / c?s.lng
liability / liability /  liability / lability /
(reversal) (reversal)

(asset) (asset) (asset) (asset)

--------------------------- Rupees in 000 -----------===mmmmccmmmmo-
Deferred tax liability on taxable

temporary differences

- Accelerated tax depreciation and

amortisation 225,581 51,032 276,613 197,214 28,367 225,581
- Right-of-use assets - building 566 (566) - 1,015 (449) 566
226,147 50,466 276,613 198,229 27,918 226,147

Deferred tax asset on deductible
temporary differences

- Allowance for impairment of trade debts | (8,800) (7) (8,807) (7,746) (1,054 (8,800)

- Lease liability (657) 657 - (1,073) 416 (657)
- Provision for slow moving, obsolete

and damaged stock (39,856) (3,089) | | (42,945) (43,121) 3,265 (39.856)

- Staff retirement benefits (25,110) (2,649) (27,759) (15,314) (9,796) (25,110)

(74,423) (5,088) (79,511) (67,254) (7,169) (74.,423)

151,724 45,378 197,102 130,975 20,749 151,724

18.1  Charge of deferred tax has been allocated to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in ‘000 -------
- taken to profit or loss for the year 29 44,486 26,101
- taken to other comprehensive income being tax impact of
remeasurement gain / (loss] on staff retirement benefits 892 (5,352
45,378 20,749
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2021 2020

Note  ------- Rupees in '000 -------
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors:
- Associated companies 19.1 140,277 48,032
- Others 400,848 250,629
Bills payable:
- Associated companies 19.2 423,990 263,885
- Others 86,386 189,879
Accrued liabilities 19.3 2,863,848 2,502,991
Contract liabilities 19.4 488,008 442,748
Taxes deducted at source and payable to statutory authorities 51,377 68,475
Workers’ Welfare Fund 133,783 73,340
Workers’ Profits Participation Fund 19.5 137,265 -
Sindh Services Sales tax 1,815 1,815
Central Research Fund 20,816 19,209
Payable to provident fund - 563
Book overdraft 19.6 115,017 234,275
Others 77,648 59,682
4,941,078 4,155,523
19.1  Creditors include payable to the following associated companies:
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 140,277 48,032
19.2 Bills payable include payable to the following associated companies:
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Trading Services Limited 33,882 164,019
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Health S.A. 377,263 99,078
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare (UK) Trading Limited 11,853 -
GlaxoSmithKline Biologicals S.A. 992 788
423,990 263,885

19.3 This includes liability for share based compensation amounting to Rs. 86.03 million (2020: Rs. 57.31 million).

19.4 This represents advance from customers and accrual for returns & allowances amounting to Rs. 261.42
million (2020: Rs. 262.29 million) and Rs. 226.59 million (2020: Rs. 180.46 million) respectively.

2021 2020
Note  ------- Rupees in '000 -------
19.5 Workers’ Profits Participation Fund
Opening balance (asset] / liability (25,766) 3,489
Allocation for the year 26 163,031 96,429
Payment to the fund - (125,684)
Closing balance liability / (asset) 137,265 (25,766)
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This balance represents book overdraft against the cheques issued but not yet presented. As per
arrangement with the bank, the payments to these cheques will be made by transferring balance
from the savings accounts as and when presented.

UNPAID DIVIDEND

This includes part of final dividend for the years ended December 31, 2017, December 31, 2018,
December 31,2019 and December 31,2020 which remained unpaid to the Company’s shareholders.
Out of the total amount of unpaid dividend, Rs. 1,900.93 million (2020: Rs. 1,398.83 million)
pertains to the Company’s foreign shareholder GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V.,
which has remained unpaid due to non-registration of shares with the State Bank of Pakistan
(SBP). Subsequent to the year end, the Company was able to register 78,918,934 shares and
21,504,325 shares are in the process of registration. The Company is in the process of applying
for remittance of dividend to its foreign shareholder.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
Income tax

GlaxoSmithKline OTC (private] Limited (now GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan
Limited) received a notice issued under section 161(A)/205 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (The
Ordinance) and subsequently an order dated January 30, 2019, raising demand of Rs. 4.43 million
(including default surcharge of Rs. 0.44 million and penalty of Rs. 0.36 million) pertaining to tax
year 2017. Against the order, the Company filed appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue
(Appeals) [CIR[A)] who, vide his order dated June 22, 2021, has set aside the proceedings for re-
examination of the issues.

As a result of monitoring proceedings of withholding taxes for tax year 2017, the Assessing
Officer (AO) has issued order and raised the demand of Rs.15.04 million (inclusive of default
surcharge of Rs. 2.69 million and penalty of Rs. 1.12 million) on account of non-withholding of tax
on certain expenses including meeting and symposia under section 156 of the Ordinance. The
CIR(A), through his order dated October 31, 2019, has confirmed demand related to travelling
and legal & professional expenses whereas the demand related to publication & subscription,
advertisement, vehicle running expenses and fixed asset has been set-aside or deleted by CIR(A).
The company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is pending
adjudication

The Assessing Officer (AO) amended the assessment of the Company for tax year 2019 and
passed an order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance raising demand of Rs. 80.45 million. Such
demand is on account of apportionment of various expenditures, non-declaration of FTR receipts
of imports, intercompany loan of Rs.1,000 million added back, stock written off and provision for
obsolete stock. The Company filed appeal against the said order before Commissioner Inland
Revenue Appeals [CIR(A]] and has also obtained stay order from Honourable Sindh High Court
against any recovery proceedings.

The CIR(A), through his order dated November 18, 2021, remanded back the proceedings to AO
on all the issues except for provision for obsolete stock, intercompany loan (which was already
ractified by AO) and stock written-off. Against the order of the CIR(A], the Company has filed an
appeal before ATIR which is pending for hearing.

The management is confident that the ultimate decisions in the above cases will be in favour of
the Company, hence, no provision has been made in respect of the aforementioned tax demands.
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21.2 Sales tax

21.2.1  The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR], LTU-II, Karachi, passed the Order-in-Original,
dated November 28, 2018, to establish sales tax demand aggregating to Rs. 27.53 million on
various issues mainly on the admissibility of input tax covering the tax periods from July 2016 to
June 2018. The Company made, under protest, payment of the principal amount of sales tax at Rs.
21.89 million which included default surcharge amounting Rs. 4.24 million. Further, the Company
filed the appeal before the CIR(A], challenging the input tax claims as treated inadmissible and
levies of the default surcharge and penalty.

21.2.2 The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue passed the order dated July 04, 2019 demanding
sales tax of Rs. 5.76 million (inclusive of default surcharge of Rs. 0.63 million and penalty of Rs.
0.244 million) relating to inadmissibility of input tax in tax periods from July 2018 to December
2018. The Company has filed an appeal against the said order before the CIR(A) which is pending
adjudication.

21.2.3 Duringtheyear ended December 31,2020, Assistant Commissioner - Sindh Revenue Board raised
a demand of Rs. 190.56 million (including default surcharge of Rs. 92.95 million and penalty of
Rs.4.65 million in respect of the year ended December 31, 2016. Such demand is on account of
non-withholding of Sindh Sales Tax on certain transactions under various heads of expenses
such as transport, advertisement and third-party manufacturing services. The Company filed an
appeal against the said order before CIR(A) which is due for hearing and also obtained stay order
from Honourable Sindh High Court against any recovery proceedings.

The management is confident that the ultimate decisions in the above cases will be in favour of
the Company, hence, no provision has been made in respect of the aforementioned tax demands.

21.3 Commitments

21.3.1 The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at December 31, 2021, amounted to
Rs. 1,080 million (2020: Rs. 1,061 million) and Rs. 110 million (2020: Rs. 110 million) respectively of
which the amount remained unutilised at December 31, 2021, was Rs. 503 million (2020: Rs. 136
million) and Rs. 71 million (2020: Rs. 70 million) respectively.

21.3.2 Commitments for capital expenditure outstanding as at December 31, 2021, amounted to Rs.
161.31 million (2020: Rs. 400.07 million). 2021 2020

22. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Gross sales

- Local 22.1/22.2 25,222,462 20,703,883
- Export 150,669 248,676
Less:
Commissions, returns and discounts (451,596) (480,079)
Sales tax (758,385) (626,374)

(1,209,981) (1,106,453)
24,163,150 19,846,106

22.1 This includes sales amounting to Rs. 1.04 billion (2020: Rs. 1.66 billion) made by GSK Pakistan on
behalf of the Company (refer note 1.2).

22.2 This includes sales amounting to Rs. 2.99 billion and Rs. 7.27 billion (2020: Rs. 2.25 billion and Rs.
6.5 billion) to NPPL and Premier Agencies respectively.
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2021 2020

Note = ------- Rupees in ‘000 -------
23. COST OF SALES

Raw and packing materials consumed 12,147,781 8,793,735
Manufacturing costs charged by third parties 2,004,686 1,763,848
Stores and spares consumed 17,477 15,882
Salaries, wages and other benefits 23.1 903,118 731,307
Fuel and power 230,995 182,495
Rent, rates and taxes 32,363 28,191
Insurance 48,408 33,403
Repairs and maintenance 341,550 287,539
Travelling and entertainment 8,786 10,239
Vehicle running 5,641 9,622
Ujrah payments - 4,022
Canteen expenses 72,147 68,213
Security expenses 37,006 28,969
Printing and stationery 9,218 7,459
Communication and entertainment 8,124 4,953
Depreciation 256,465 213,218
Handling, freight and transportation 93,520 51,322
Stock written-off 49,115 49,044
Provision for slow moving, obsolete and damaged stock 123,739 148,614
Government levies 159,122 -
Restructuring cost 23.2 41,469 34,000
Others 143,768 124,114
16,734,498 12,590,189

Add: Opening stock of work-in-process 14,375 35,442
Less: Closing stock of work-in-process (41,288) (14,375)
Cost of goods manufactured 16,707,585 12,611,256
Add: Opening stock of finished goods 1,442,493 1,392,294
Add: Purchase of finished goods 1,183,651 1,957,187
19,333,729 15,960,737

Less: Closing stock of finished goods (1,785,654) (1,442,493)

17,548,075 14,518,244

23.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 25.58 million (2020: Rs. 23.13 million) and Rs. 22.05
million (2020: Rs. 20.08 million) in respect of defined benefit plans and contributory provident fund
respectively.

23.2 This represents charge for severance costs recognised in respect of cost savings initiatives.
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Note ------- Rupees in 000 -------
24. SELLING, MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 241 467,614 416,597
Sales promotion 885,690 781,314
Advertising 1,475,036 1,380,442
Handling, freight and transportation 361,879 348,825
Travelling and entertainment 22,432 27,706
Depreciation 29,192 31,701
Vehicle running 27,723 17,247
Allowance for impairment of trade debts - 3,706
Repairs and maintenance 3,078 9,119
Insurance 2,048 1,778
Printing and stationery 626 1,471
Security expenses 3,085 2,178
Shared services cost 24.2 11,947 61,552
Other expenses 63,290 14,803
3,353,640 3,098,439
24.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 17.33 million (2020: Rs. 15.34 million) and Rs. 25.43
million (2020: Rs. 14.78 million) in respect of defined benefit plan and contributory provident fund
respectively.
24.2 These represent cost reimbursements to GSK Pakistan in respect of costs of various functions /
services provided to the Company under a cost sharing agreement.
2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in ‘000 -------
25. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 25.1 150,230 125,211
Depreciation 15,580 23,493
Legal and professional charges 37,085 19,639
Travelling and entertainment 4,907 2,662
Repairs and maintenance 1,895 6,936
Auditors’ remuneration 25.2 8,537 6,129
Vehicle running 9,392 1,816
Publication and subscriptions 133 6,300
Insurance 5,077 8,028
Printing and stationery 5,815 1,630
Service fees 1.2 12,000 12,000
Ujrah payments - 2,362
Shared services cost 24.2 48,783 L4547
Donations 25.3 372 6,390
Others 25,278 22,616

2021

2020

325,084 289,759

25.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 5.94 million (2020: Rs. 3.16 million) and Rs. 5.35
million (2020: Rs. 0.58 million) in respect of defined benefit plan and contributory provident fund
respectively.
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25.2 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fee 3,879 3,393
Fee for limited review of half yearly financial statements and
other certifications 4,317 2,335
Out-of-pocket expenses 341 401
8,537 6,129
25.3 Donations to a single party exceeding 10% of total donations are as follows:
2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in 000 -------
Al-Khidmat Foundation Pakistan - 1,500
Green Crescent Trust - 4,140
Pakistan Association of the Deaf 372 750
372 6,390
26. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Workers’ Profits Participation Fund 19.5 163,031 96,429
Workers' Welfare Fund 60,443 38,572
Central Research Fund 21,043 19,286
244,517 154,287
27. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Return on deposit accounts / T-bills 32,210 2,034
Income on savings accounts 159,737 30,058
Income from non-financial asset
Gain on disposal of operating assets - net 707 1,526
Others
Scrap sales 18,334 13,305
Other 271 130,415 -
341,403 46,923

2021 2020
——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------

27.1 This includes recovery of expenses from group entites amounting to Rs. 107.57 million.
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2021 2020

Note ------- Rupees in ‘000 -------
28. FINANCIAL CHARGES
Interest on running finance - 27,034
Exchange loss - net 15,032 20,941
Bank charges 1,942 9,723
Interest on lease liability 159 310
17,133 58,008
29. TAXATION - NET
Current
- for the year 837,284 469,425
- for prior year - 16,757
Deferred 18.1 44,486 26,101
881,770 512,283
29.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation 3,016,104 1,774,292
Applicable tax rate 29% 29%
Tax calculated at applicable tax rate 874,670 514,545
Impact of taxability at Final Tax Regime 5,370 31,067
Effect of prior year tax - 16,757
Effect of tax credits - (51,930)
Tax effect of other than temporary differences 1,730 1,844
881,770 512,283
2021 2020
30. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after taxation for the year (in thousand) 2,134,334 1,262,009
Weighted average number of outstanding shares (in thousand) 117,055 117,055
Earnings per share 18.23 10.78

30.1 Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company did not have any convertible
instruments in issue as at December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, which would have any effect
on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.
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2021 2020
——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------
31. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 3,016,104 1,774,292

Add / (less): Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items

Depreciation and amortization 301,237 268,412
Interest expense 2,101 37,067
Gain on disposal of operating assets (707) (1,526)
Interest income (191,947) (32,091
Provision for slow moving, obsolete
and damaged stock and stock written-off 172,854 197,658
Allowance for impairment of trade debts - 3,706
Provision for staff retirement benefits 90,619 77,061
374,157 550,287
Profit before working capital changes 3,390,261 2,324,579

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes

[Increase] / decrease in current assets

Stores and spares (59,638) (9,466)
Inventories (1,186,682) (330,756)
Trade debts (432,141) 192,877
Loans and advances 78,324 (183,898)
Trade deposits and prepayments (26,649) 17,087
Refunds due from Government 6,624) (15,219)
Other receivables (151,317) 342,895
(1,784,727) 13,520

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 904,813 1,320,893
(879,914) 1,334,413
2,510 ;3,658,222
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2021 2020

Note ------- Rupees in 000 -------

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances 14 2,454,867 2,132,049
Investment at amortised cost 13 747,935 -
Book overdraft 19.6 (115,017) (234,275)
3,087,785 1,897,774

Unpaid dividend
2021 2020
——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Balance as at January 01 1,409,697 904,375
Non-cash changes - dividend declared 585,273 585,273
Financing cash outflows - dividend paid (79,406) (79.951)
Balance as on December 31 1,915,564 1,409,697

34. SEGMENT INFORMATION

34.1 For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organised into one operating segment
i.e.consumer healthcare segment. The Company operates in the said reportable operating segment
based on the nature of the products, risks and returns, organisational and management structure
and internal financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in these financial
statements are related to the Company’s only reportable segment.

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration of the Chief Executive,
Director and Executives are as follows:

Chief Executive Directors Executives
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
————————————————————————— Rupees in ‘000 ----------=--ommmoomomon

Managerial remuneration 17,837 28,396 7,639 7,405 223,376 182,116
Bonus - note 35.2 15,285 10,687 5,291 7,170 102,161 56,413
Retirement benefits* 2,194 - 1,585 1,497 40,562 34,770
House rent 4,758 - 3,438 3,332 87,967 76,505
Utilities 1,057 - 764 741 19,548 17,001
Medical expenses 399 - 28 27 2,218 4,257
Others 1,154 oM 4,518 1,724 49,883 52,847

42,684 39,994 23,263 21,896 525,715 423,909
Number of persons 2% 1 1 2 84 74

* Retirement benefits represent amount contributed towards various retirement benefit plans.

** During the year, Mr. Sohail Ahmed Matin retired on March 31, 2021 and Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon was appointed
as Chief Executive Officer on April 01, 2021.
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35.1

35.2

35.3

36.

36.1

In addition to the above, fee paid to 4 (2020: 4) independent and non-executive directors for attending
Board of Directors meetings during the year amounted to Rs. 1.63 million (2020: Rs. 1.98 million)].

Bonus includes share-based payments as Share Appreciation Rights (SARs) given to the Chief
Executive, Executive Director and certain Executives amounting to Rs. 63.96 million (2020: Rs.
45.07 million). These are granted every year and are payable upon completion of three years of
qualifying period of service. These are linked with the share value of ultimate parent company,
GlaxoSmithKline plc, UK.

Chief Executive, Executive Director and certain Executives are also provided with Company
maintained cars in accordance with the Company policy.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties include holding company, associated companies, directors of the Company,
companies where directors also hold directorship and key management personnel of the Company.
The transactions with related parties are carried out in the normal course of business at contracted
rates. Details of transactions with related parties and balances with them at year end, other than
those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

2021 2020

Relationship Nature of transactions e Rupees in '000 -------
Associated companies: a. Purchase of goods 2,820,637 2,730,157
b. Service fees charged by GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 12,000 12,000

Expenses cross charged by GlaxoSmithKline

Pakistan Limited 60,730 106,099
d. Recovery of expenses 174,704 -
Staff retirement funds: a. Expense charged for retirement benefit plans 90,619 77,061
b. Payments to retirement benefit plans 78,328 60,898
Key management a. Salaries and other employee benefits 156,849 144,141
personnel: b. Post employment benefits 15,832 8,401
Sale of assets - sales proceeds 5,231 -

Balances of related parties as at December 31, 2021, are included in the respective notes to the financial statements. The
receivables and payables are mainly unsecured in nature and bear no interest.
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36.2 Details of related parties

H 0
S- Company Name . Country qf Registered address Ba5|'s °.f Aggregate ./° of
No. incorporation association shareholding
1 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V.  Netherlands Huis ter Heideweg 62, 3705 LZ, Zeist Holding Company 85.79%
2 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare (UK)  England 980 Great West Road, Brentford ,Middlesex, Associated N/A
Trading Limited TW8 9GS company
3 GlaxoSmithKline Biologicals SA Belgium Rue de Ulnstitut 89, B-1330 Rixensart, Belgium Associated N/A
company
4 GlaxoSmithKline Export Limited England 980 Great West Road, Brentford, Middlesex, Associated N/A
TW8 9GS company
5 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare S.A° Switzerland ~ Route de U'Etraz, Case Postale 1279, 1260 Nyon 1 Associated N/A
company
6 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare UAE Jebel, Ali Free Zone, Dubai Associated N/A
Export Limited company
7 GlaxoSmithKline Pte Ltd Singapore 23 Rochester Park Singapore (139234) Associated N/A
company
8 GlaxoSmithKline Services Unlimited England 980 Great West Road, Brentford ,Middlesex, Associated N/A
TW8 9GS company
9 GSK Consumer Trading Services Ltd England 980 Great West Road, Brentford, Middlesex, Associated N/A
TW8 9GS company
10 GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited Pakistan 35 - Dockyard Road, West Wharf, Karachi A;Snf;;'::;d N/A
11 Archroma Pakistan Limited Pakistan Plot # 1-A/1, Sector 20, Korangi Industrial Area, Associated N/A
Karachi, Pakistan company
12 Pakistan Oxygen Limited Pakistan P. 0. qu 4845, Dockyard Road, West Wharf, Associated N/A
Karachi - 74000 company

37. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

The capacity and production of the Company’s plants are indeterminable as these are multi-product
and involve varying processes of manufacture.

2021 2020
——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
38.1 Financial assets as per statement of financial position

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Loans to employees 15,254 14,272
Advances and deposits 177,570 203,838
Trade debts 1,101,726 669,585
Interest accrued 1,227 641
Other receivables 485,056 307,973
Investments - at amortised cost 747,935 -
Bank balances 2,454,867 2,132,050

4,983,635 3,328,359
38.2 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Trade and other payables 4,030,366 3,489,691
Accrued mark-up - 2,769
Unpaid dividend 1,915,564 1,409,697

Lease liability 2,301

5,945,930 4,904,458
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38.2.1 The management expects to settle the above liabilities within one year.
38.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern
without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to
undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

(b) Fair value estimation

The Company discloses the financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of
financial position in accordance with the following fair value hierarchy:

Level1: Quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

As at December 31, 2021, the Company does not have any financial instruments carried at fair
values which are measured using methods falling under above categories, and the carrying values
of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values at the reporting date.
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
39.1 Financial risk factors
Introduction and overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

- market risk
- credit risk
- liquidity risk

This note presentsinformation about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks.

Financial risk factors and risk management framework

The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on having cost effective funding as
well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to
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The Company’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of shareholders’ value.
Risk is inherent in Company’s activities but it is managed through monitoring and controlling
activities which are based on limits established by the internal controls set on different activities of
the Company by the Board of Directors. These controls and limits reflect the business strategy and
market environment of the Company as well as the level of the risk that the Company is willing to
accept.

The Company’s finance and treasury department oversees the management of the financial risk
reflecting changes in the market conditions and also the Company’s risk taking activities, and
provide assurance that these activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that the financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s
policies and risk appetite.

(a) Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or the equity prices due to a change
in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative
activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market.

Under market risk the Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk.
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The liability is mainly denominated in
US Dollars. Net payables exposed to foreign currency risk as at December 31, 2021, amount to
Rs. 508.18 million (2020: Rs. 263.89 million).

At December 31, 2021, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the
US Dollar with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have
been lower / higher by Rs. 25.52 million (2020: Rs. 13.19 million), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses / gains on translation of US Dollar-denominated trade payables, trade debts
and bank balances.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from balances held in savings and deposit account
with banks and running finance.
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(b)

Carrying amount

2021 2020
——————— Rupees in ‘000 -------
Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets
- bank balance on deposit accounts - 1,300,000
- Treasury bills 747,935 -

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets
- bank balance on savings accounts 2,445,386 561,897

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not
affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instrument

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the year end would have increased or decreased
the profit before tax by Rs. 24.45 million (2020: Rs. 5.62 million). This analysis assumes that
all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2020.

(iii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk
or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market

As at December 31, 2021, there are no equity investments of the Company measured at fair
value, hence no equity price risk exists.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value
of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are
engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause
their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the
Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.
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Credit risk arises from balances with banks , trade debts, loans, advances and deposits. The
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably
high credit rating.

2021 2020
——————— Rupees in 000 -------
Loans to employees, interest accrued and other receivables 501,537 322,886
Trade debts 1,101,726 669,585
Advances and deposits 177,570 203,838
Bank balances 2,454,867 2,132,049

4,983,635 3,328,358

As at December 31, 2021, the Company’s greatest concentration of credit risk was in trade
debts; amounted to Rs. 653 million and Rs. 255.77 million with NPPL and Premier Agencies
respectively.

Trade debts of the Company are not exposed to significant credit risk as the Company trades
with credit worthy third parties. Trade debts of Rs. 204.31 million (2020: Rs. 104.88 million) are
past due of which Rs. 30.85 million (2020: Rs. 30.85 million) have been provided for. Past due
but not provided for balances include Rs. 85.82 million (2020: Rs. 66.64 million) outstanding for
more than three months. Trade debts are written-off when the company do not have realistic
prospect of recovery

Loans to employees are secured against their retirement benefits.

The credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external
credit ratings as follows:

Rating Agency Shortterm Longterm
Citibank N.A. Ocztg;er' Moody’s P-1 AA3
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited June, 2021 PACRA Al+ AAA

Trade receivables are grouped into customer segments that have similar loss patterns to
assess credit risk while other financial assets are assessed individually. Historical and
forward - looking information is considered to determine the appropriate expected credit loss
allowance. The Company believes that there is no further credit risk provision required in
excess of the allowance for expected credit losses already recognised.

For other financial assets, majority of the assets of the Company exposed to credit risk pertain
to counter parties which have high credit rating or where credit risk has not been increased
since initial recognition. Therefore, management believes that the impact of ECL would be
very minimal and hence, the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

Annual Report 2021




Settlement risk

Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honour its obligations to
deliver cash or other assets as contractually agreed on sale. The risk is addressed more or
less in accordance with the parameters set out in the credit risk management above.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. Due to dynamic nature of the business the Company maintains flexibility in
funding by maintaining committed credit lines available.

The Company’s liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level
of liquid assets necessary to meet the monitoring of liquidity ratios and maintaining debt
financing plans. As at year end, all the financial liabilities are due within one year.

40. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The investments out of the Funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2021 2020
41. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees including
contractual employees at the end of year 459 492
Average number of employees including
contractual employees during the year 473 489

42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view to maintain appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise

risk. The Company calculates debt to capital ratio by dividing borrowings with equity as at year end.

The debt to capital ratio as at December 31, 2021 is Nil (2020: Nil).
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43. BUSINESS UNITS - GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES

Business units Addresses
Factory Petaro Road, Jamshoro, Pakistan
Distribution / Sales offices North Sales Office - Aleem House, Plot no. 409, Sector

|-9, Industrial Area, Islamabad - 54000, Pakistan

Central Sales Office - 880-B, Faisal Town, Lahore -
54700, Pakistan

Warehouses and storage facilities Connect Logistics (Private] Limited - Plot no. 73 B,C,D,
Main Mauripur Road, Hawks bay Phase 2, Karachi,
Pakistan

Emirates Supply Chain Services (Private) Limited - 46
KM, Multan Road, Nathy Khalsa, Manga Mandi, Lahore,
Pakistan

Emirates Supply Chain Services (Private) Limited - Plot
no. 409, Sector |-9, Industrial Area, Islamabad, Pakistan

Glaciers (Private] Limited - Bahawalpur Bypass, Gopal
Purrah, Multan, Pakistan

Jamshoro - Petaro Road, Jamshoro, Pakistan

Plot B-3, SITE, Kotri, Pakistan

44. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 9 February 2022 proposed a cash dividend of
Rs. Nil per share (2020: Rs. 5 per share) amounting to Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 585.27 million)
subject to the approval of the members in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

45. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been reclassified in these financial statements, wherever necessary
to facilitate the comparison and to conform with changes and presentation in the current year.
However, no significant reclassifications were made in the financial statements.

46. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company on 9 February 2022.

e AL ok

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Officer
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Business Rationale of Major Capital Expenditure
and for Those Planned For Next Year

The capital expenditure for the year 2021 include replacement of one of the main packaging

head assembly which is used in the production of Cac-1000 effervescent Tablet - key brand for
GSK CH business. Other major investment include upgrade and replace site drainage system
as over the years number of facility expansions and modifications have been done which have
added additional flow to the old drainage system and Panadol liquid in-sourcing will also add

sanitary load to current drainage system that need to be addressed.

Further, to ensure the optimum quality of our products and compliance, the Company spent
Rs.58 million on quality related equipment and compliance.

The Company is planning to invest in CaC-1000 Plus vitamin line and environment friendly
initiatives in financial year 2022 in order to ensure continuous supply of our high quality

products.
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Segmental Review

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker (CODM) who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments. The management has determined that the
Company has a single reportable segment as the CODM views the Company's operations as

one reportable segment.
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Forward Looking
Statement

A detailed insight on the Company’s Future
Outlook and Challenges by the Board of
Directors is present in the Director’s Report
on pg. 87 of the Annual Report. Moreover,
significant factors affecting external
environment and the Company’s responses to
those factors are disclosed on pg. 33 of the
Annual Report.

ANALYSIS OF LAST YEAR’S
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT

The Company announced the deployment of
commercial ERP project which resulted in
GSK CH using one ERP system and one set of
global processes which increased efficiency
and operations. Despite the extraordinary
obstacles posed by the epidemic, the
Company had a strong performance and
accomplished notable milestones.

STATUS OF THE PROJECTS
DISCLOSED IN PREVIOUS YEAR

There were no projects in progress disclosed
in the forward-looking statement in the
previous years.

207

SOURCE OF INFORMATION AND
ASSUMPTIONS USED FOR
PROJECTIONS / FORECASTS

The Company makes a statutory budget every
year in line with the objectives and strategies
of the Company. These plans are approved by
the Board of Directors annually. Periodic
reviews of performance are carried out
against these plans to ensure adequate
monitoring and control.

Number of different assumptions and data
are used in preparing the plans, including,
but not limited to, historical figures, market
growth rates, pricing policy, capital
expenditure plans etc. Further,
macro-economic indicators such as inflation,
GDP growth rate etc. are also considered to
account for the uncontrollable factors in
future.
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ORGANIZATION’S CAPABILITY IN
RESPONDING TO POTENTIAL
CRITICAL CHALLENGES AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The company is aware of the changing
economic factors, which may provide
challenges to the organziation. The company
has an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM]
cycle in place that assists in identifying,
managing, and reporting on the most
essential risks in a proportionate and
consistent manner.

The Pakistani Rupee fell to an all-time low
during the year, causing raw material prices
to surge. These economic factors are
continuing to make it difficult to keep our
manufacturing costs stable. At the same
time, the Company considers the purchasing
power of its customers while making pricing
decisions in order to keep its business model
viable. However, we met these challenges
with resilience, cost economization and
continual improvement in our business
model which helped the Company in
delivering unparallel growth in terms of sales
and profits.
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Stakeholders
Relationship and Engagement

Engagement With Stakeholders

The Company recognizes that stakeholder engagement, particularly under the challenging circumstances of

a global pandemic, should be more than an exercise undertaken for its own sake, but rather an opportunity to
drive positive change for business, its employees, the environment, local communities / society as a whole and to
create value for its shareholders.

The Company engages with a wide range of stakeholders through day-to-day interactions with customers;
engagement with the government and regulators; regular dialogue with employees; suppliers, partners,
distributors and investors to follow its business priorities of Innovation, Performance and Trust in letter and
spirit.

Dialogues with stakeholders enable the Company to identify and prioritise significant issues and develop
responses that are in the best interests of society, as well as shareholders.

Engagement with the Company’s main stakeholder groups, including patients, shareholders, consumers,
customers and employees, at all levels of the organisation and across the enterprise is summarised below:

Stakeholder Modes of Engagement

Shareholders and Investors | ¢ Annual General Meetings

e Corporate Briefing Sessions

e Annual Reports

e Quarterly Financial Statements and Directors’ Reports
e The Company’s website

e Dedicated email address for investor relations

Consumers e Advertising campaigns

* Pressreleases

e Radio Messages

e Multichannel / digital campaigns

Employees e Regular newsletters

e Employee social media platform - Workday

e Biannual employee Surveys

e Let's Talk sessions with Leadership teams across the GSK universe

e Townhalls with the local leadership and lead by the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company

e Several engagement initiatives as a part of the ‘Play Above’ programme,
including skip level sessions with +1-line managers

e Annual Cycle Meetings

e Advisory Board Meetings

Healthcare e Conferences and seminars
professionals * Regular visits by field force (Sales and Expert teams)
(HCPs)
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Stakeholder Modes of Engagement

Suppliers and Distributors | ¢ GSK's Third Party Oversight programme and external platforms to help
monitor performance.

e Miscellaneous trainings like QMS training sessions and regular QMS audits

e Distributor conferences

e Market visits

Governments and e Scheduled meetings
Regulators e Industry conferences

e Trade associations

e Written communications
e Facility visits

Local Community e CSRinitiatives

Efforts to Encourage Shareholders to Convert Their Shares Into Book Entry Form

Further to section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SECP’s communication bearing File No. CSD/ED/Misc./2016-
639-640 dated March 26, 2021, the Company made efforts to encourage all shareholders holding physical shares
to convert their shares into book entry form. The Company published the necessary requirement into its AGM
notice. Further, it took out a notice in English and Urdu languages in newspapers having nationwide circulation
regarding this matter. The said notices, accompanied by a letter stating the statutory requirements and benefits
of dematerializing physical shares, were also disseminated to all members through PUCARS, as well as placed
on the Company’s website.

Encouraging Minority Shareholders To Attend Agm
The Company encourages its shareholders to attend its general meetings in the following manner:

a) Notices of general meetings:

i. Are circulated in accordance with legally stipulated lead times.
ii. Are published in leading Urdu and English newspapers with nationwide circulation.
iii. Are timely updated on its website.

iv. Contain a link / QR Code to a dedicated online portal / Vevox to facilitate those shareholders attending the
AGM to submit their queries to the Company in advance or during the meeting.

b) The Annual Report:

i. contains the notice of the AGM and is sent in a uniform manner to all shareholders, including minority
shareholders, regardless of shareholding.

ii. contains a proxy form to ensure shareholder representation and participation in the AGM in case a
shareholder is unable to attend the meeting.
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c) The AGM:

i is held virtually and the link to the AGM is shared upon receipt of request from shareholders.

ii. alinkand QR code for shareholder queries is shared in the AGM notice, in addition to a dedicated
timeslot to hear submitted or on the spot queries at the AGM.

Investors’ Relation Section On Website

In order to provide ease of access to stakeholders, the Company’s latest information for investors is available on
our website, under the “Investors” section on the Company’s website (www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com/en-
gb/investors).

This page is updated regularly in order to provide transparent, adequate and updated information to all
investors and stakeholders. All information is made available in both English and Urdu languages for the ease of
shareholders and investors and in compliance with applicable law.

The Company’s website has clearly specified the email address dedicated to shareholder complaints and queries
on its home page, as well as several other pages on its website.

Issues Raised In Last Agm

No significant issues were raised at the previous AGM held on 21 April 2021 other than general queries on the
accounts and business by shareholders and investors.

Investors’ Grievance Policy / Redressal of Investors’ Complaints

The Company’s Corporate Secretarial team promotes dialogue with its shareholders and investors in line with
GSK Values and Expectations. The Company’s commitment to open communication ensures accountability and
transparency to its external audiences and plays an important role in the Company’s success.

The Management of the Company is also committed to provide equal and fair treatment to all shareholders
through transparent investor relations, increased awareness, effective communication and prompt resolution
of shareholders’ complaints. Further, the Company maintains a record of all such grievances along with actions
taken for resolution. The main principles of the Investor Relations Policy are as follow:

e All the shareholders are always treated politely, fairly and equally.
e Complaints raised by shareholders are dealt with courtesy and in a timely manner.

e The management works in good faith and without prejudice towards the interests of any of the
shareholders.
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The Company has internally established a mechanism for shareholder grievances handling. The Company
has a dedicated Shares Department in place and has appointed an independent Share Registrar (CDCSRSL)
to resolve issues of the shareholders as well as to provide a faster and efficient provision of services to its
shareholders and investors.

Complaints are initially lodged with the Shares Department and the Share Registrar of the Company who
expeditiously takes necessary actions. The Shares Registrar forwards the complaints to the Company if these
fall outside their domain.

Shareholders can also submit their complaint(s) to a dedicated email address i.e. chc.shareinfodgsk.com
which is also available at the Company’s website in line with the directives of SECP. Grievances can also be
notified to the Company by post and telephone.

In case a complaint has not been properly redressed by the Company or the Registrar, shareholders /
investors, the Company has highlighted on its website that shareholders may lodge their complaints with the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan on their SDMS portal.
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The Company held its third
successful corporate briefing
session on 19 November 2021

virtually due to COVID-19. Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon (CEOQ), Mr. Dilawar Meghani (CFOJ, and
Ms. Mashal Mohammad (Company Secretary) presented and briefed investors on the Company’s
financial performance and operational overview.

The presentation was followed by a Q&A session, where thought provoking questions were put
forward to the management of the Company, which were well addressed to the satisfaction of the
attendees.

The following are some of the topics discussed during the briefing session:

e The landscape of the industry and the Company’s growth in relation to other players.

e Key brands performance and performance highlights of the Company since the last AGM.
e The Company’s response to COVID-19.

e The Company’s future outlook and challenges.

The presentation from the corporate briefing session can be viewed on the Company’s website
under the “Investors” section i.e.

https://pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com/en-gb/investors/financial-highlights/.
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Stakeholders’ Information
Pattern of Shareholdings

As at 31 December 2021

No. of Shareholders Shareholding Slabs Total Shares Held

1584 1 to 100 59,957
1549 101 to 500 400,649
504 501 to 1000 393,145
744 1001 to 5000 1,685,694
164 5001 to 10000 1,173,174
65 10001 to 15000 791,195
32 15001 to 20000 553,187
28 20001 to 25000 640,330
16 25001 to 30000 436,203
10 30001 to 35000 330,117
9 35001 to 40000 343,002
3 40001 to 45000 125,900
5 45001 to 50000 239,460
6 50001 to 55000 319,477
3 55001 to 60000 174,253
3 60001 to 65000 188,700
3 65001 to 70000 202,446
1 70001 to 75000 73,359
2 75001 to 80000 155,000
2 80001 to 85000 161,300
3 85001 to 90000 262,200
2 90001 to 95000 184,774
2 95001 to 100000 192,327
1 105001 to 110000 105,597
1 110001 to 115000 112,500
2 115001 to 120000 236,965
1 130001 to 135000 130,900
1 165001 to 170000 169,390
1 195001 to 200000 200,000
1 250001 to 255000 254,043
1 300001 to 305000 300,040
1 335001 to 340000 339,656
1 385001 to 390000 387,700
1 420001 to 425000 421,200
1 2130001 to 2135000 78,918,934
1 2750001 to 2755000 2753004
1 21500001 to 21505000 21504325
1 78915001 to 78920000 78918934
4,756 117,054,508
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Key Share Holding

As at 31 December 2021

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

SYED ANWAR MAHMOOD 1 1 0.00
MS. ERUM SHAKIR RAHIM 1 3 0.00
MUHAMMAD ZINDAH MOIN MOHAJIR 1 330 0.00
AYESHA AZIZ 1 1 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE B.V. 2 100,423,259 85.79
NIT and ICP 3 15,549 0.01
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking 12 885,955 0.76
Financial Institutions

Insurance Companies 5 3,227,048 2.76
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 22 3,358,867 2.87
General Public

a. Local 4,519 6,718,468 5.74
b. Foreign 27 115,193 0.10
Foreign Companies 3 77,000 0.07
Others 159 2,232,834 1.91
Totals 4,756 117,054,508 100.00

Shareholders holding 10% or more Y E Percentage

GLAXOSMITHKLINE CONSUMER HEALTHCARE B.V. 100,423,259 85.79

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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Members Having
5% or More of Voting Rights

Name of Shareholder(s) No. of Percentage
Shares Held

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare B.V. 100,423,259 85.79%

Shares Held By Sponsors,
Directors and Executives

Number of shares held at 31 December 2021 are summarized below:

No of Shares

Directors and Executives and Sponsors

Mr. Muhammad Zindah Moin Mohajir 330
Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim 3
Syed Anwar Mahmood 1
Ms. Ayesha Aziz 1

Details of the above have been presented in the Pattern of Shareholding, available on page 216 to 217 of this
Annual Report.

Trading In Shares By Directors and
Executives as Required Under the Law

During the year, Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon sold 4,913 fractional shares held by him on trust and
Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim bought 3 qualification shares. These have been presented by the Company
Secretary in the Board of Directors” Meetings. Apart from this no other trading in shares was executed by
Directors and Executives. All relevant disclosures and updates with regards to the same have been made
on a regular basis with accordance to the rules and law.
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Shareholding Position / IBAN

Current Total Number of Current Number of IBAN Ratio/Percentage
Shareholders as on 31 updated as on 31 of
December 2021 December 2021 IBAN updated
Physical CDS Total Physical CDS Total %
1,153 3,323 4,756 285 3,039 3,324 69.8

Total No. Shares as on 31 December 2021 Number of IBAN Updated as on 31 December 2021

285

o Mms3

4756

3323 3039

‘ Physical .’ cDS . Total ‘ ‘ Physical ‘ cDS . Total

Free Float of Shares

Free Float Shares of the Company are 15,549,142 i.e. (13.28%) out of the total 117,054,508 Shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2021.

P 13.28%

Free Float as at
31 December 2021

86.72%

. Free Float ‘ Non Free Float
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GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
Notice of Annual General Meeting 2021

Notice is hereby given to shareholders that the 7th Annual General Meeting (AGM’] of GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the ‘Company’) will be held on Monday, 21 March 2022 at 2:00
pm virtually to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1) To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements together with the Directors’ and
Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended 31 December 2021.

2) To appoint External Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year, and to fix their remuneration.
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, has proposed
the appointment of Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants as external auditors, for the year ending
31 December 2022.

3) To elect seven (7) Directors, as fixed by the Board, in accordance with the provision of Section 159 of
the Companies Act, 2017, for a term of three (3) years commencing immediately upon the
conclusion of the 7th AGM of this Company. The names of the retiring directors of the Company,
also eligible to offer themselves for re-election, are as follows:

1) Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir 5) Ms. Ayesha Aziz
2) Mr. Farhan Muhammad Haroon 6) Mr. Oussama Abbas
3) Mr. Dilawar Meghani 7) Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim

4) Syed Anwar Mahmood

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

4) To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By the Order of the Board

Karachi MASHAL MOHAMMAD
28 February 2022 Company Secretary
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Notes:

1. Virtual AGM and Attendance Protocols

al Pursuant to the SECP Circular No. 4 of 2021 dated 15 February 2021, Circular No. é of 2021 dated 3
March 2021, and the clarification issued by SECP bearing no. SMD/SE/2(20)/2021/117 dated 15 December
2021, the proceedings of the AGM shall be held virtually. In view of the surge of COVID-19 cases
(Omicron variant), travel restrictions in place for foreign directors and considering the safety and
wellbeing of all esteemed shareholders, Directors and management due to COVID-19, the 7th AGM is
being held virtually. The Company continues to monitor the impact of COVID-19 and any relevant
updates regarding the AGM will be announced on the Company’s website
(www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com) and through PUCARS.

b) Shareholders attending the AGM must register their intent beforehand and no later than close of
business on 18 March 2022. Shareholders are requested to email their respective name, folio number,
CNIC no, and scanned copy of their CNIC (front and back) to Ms. Rawail Adeel at
rawail.x.adeell@gsk.com, and following necessary verification, a link to access the AGM will be emailed
to him/her.

c] Please scan the QR code or access the link below to post any questions for the AGM as the telecon
will automatically mute all microphones:

Join at:
vevox.app

ID:
158-949-830

EI"%"EI
=]

https://vevox.app/#/m/158949830
Session ID: 158-949-830

Email Address: rawail.x.adeell@gsk.com

d) Please note that those shareholders attending virtually will be able to view the Directors and hear
the live proceedings of the AGM but will remain on mute so as to avoid any connectivity disruptions.
Those shareholders attending the AGM may submit their respective questions/comments/suggestions
along with their name and folio number on the link/QR Code/email address, provided above in this
notice ahead of or during the AGM.
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2. Book Closure

The share transfer books of the Company will be closed from 14 March 2022 to 21 March 2022 (both days
inclusive). Requests received at the office of the Share Registrar of the Company at CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi -
74000 at the close of business on 13 March 2022 will be treated in time for the purpose of attendance of
the Annual General Meeting and as applicable.

3. Appointment of Proxies

Shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint another shareholder as his/her proxy
to attend, speak and vote at the AGM on his/her behalf. The instrument appointing proxy must be
deposited duly signed and stamped at the Office of the Share Registrar of the Company at CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block — B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi
not later than forty eight (48] hours before the time of the AGM. An attested copy of the shareholder’s
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) must be attached with the proxy form. Please refer to
section 137 of the Companies Act, 2017 for further information. Shareholders holding physical shares
are also required to bring their original CNIC and/or copy of CNIC of shareholder(s) of whom
he/she/they hold proxylies). Such shareholder(s] shall not be allowed to attend and/or sign the Register
of Shareholders at the AGM without such CNIC(s). The proxy form is available on the Company’s website
(www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com].

4. CDC Account Holder

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the below guidelines as specified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

a) Attending the AGM

e In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities
are in a group account, and their registration details are uploaded as per the applicable regulations,
and shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card
(CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

e In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the
meeting.

b) Appointing Proxies

e In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall
submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

e The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

e Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

e The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the AGM.
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e In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

The proxy form is available on the Company’s website: www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com
5. Submission of CNIC/NTN Copy - Electronic Dividend (MANDATORY)

a) According to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP) SRO 831(1)/2012 dated
July 05, 2012 read with SR0O 19(1)/2014 dated 10 January 2014 and other relevant rules, the electronic
dividend should also bear the CNIC number of the registered shareholder or the authorized person,
except in the case of minor(s) and corporate shareholders.

b) Further, as per Regulation Nos. 4 and 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulations,
2017, the Company shall be constrained to withhold the payment of dividend to shareholders, in case of
non-availability of identification number (CNIC or National Tax Number) of the shareholder or
authorized person.

c] Accordingly, those shareholders who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid CNIC or NTN
certificate, are once again requested to immediately submit the same to the Company’s Share
Registrar at CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block - B, S.M.C.H.S., Main
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi. Those shareholders who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested
to submit the dividend bank mandate form duly filled to their participant / investor account services at
the CDC. Corporate entities are requested to provide their National Tax Number (NTN) and Folio
Number along with the authorized representative’s CNIC copy.

6. Payment of Cash Dividend Through Electronic Mode (Mandatory)

a) Inaccordance with SECP Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated 1 August 2017 and instructions related to
distribution of dividend indicated in Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 and Section
242 of Companies Act, 2017, all listed companies are required to ensure that with effect from 1
November 2017, cash dividends shall be paid through electronic mode only. Therefore, shareholders
are required to provide the details of their bank mandate through the Company’s E-Dividend Mandate
Form specifying: (i) title of account, (i) account number, [iii) IBAN number, (iv) bank name, (v) branch
name, code & address and (vi] mobile number; to the Company’s Share Registrar. Those shareholders
who hold shares with Participants / Central Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to
provide the same to their concerned participant / CDC.

b) Please note that as per Section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company is entitled to
withhold payment of dividend if the requisite information is not provided by shareholders.

c) For the convenience of shareholders, the Company’s E-Dividend Mandate Form is available on the

Company’s website i.e. www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com and a copy is appended in the Annual
Report as well.
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7. Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts

a) SECP, through its SRO 470(1)/2016 dated 31 May 2016, has allowed companies to circulate the annual
balance sheet, profit and loss account, Auditors’ Report and Directors’ Report etc. to its shareholders
through CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses. In view of the above, the Company had obtained
shareholders’ approval in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 20 November 2017 in this regard.

b) Pursuant to SRO 787(1)/2014 dated 8 September 2014, SRO 470(1)/2016 dated 31 May 2016, and under
Section 223(6) of the Companies Act 2017, circulation of audited financial statements and notice of
annual general meeting has been allowed in electronic format, including through email. Accordingly,
the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021, are available on
the Company’s website: www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com. The Annual Report shall be circulated
via email to those shareholders whose email addresses are present in the records/database of the
Share Registrar. Those shareholders requiring a printed copy or electronic format through email of
Annual Report may send a request using the Standard Request Form provided in the Annual Report and
placed on the Company’'s website: www.pk-consumerhealthcare.gsk.com. Hardcopies shall be provided
free of cost.

8. Deduction of Withholding Tax on Dividend (as applicable)

a) Shareholders whose names are not appearing in the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) are advised to
immediately make necessary arrangement to make them active. Otherwise, tax on their cash dividend
will be deducted as per law i.e. Section 150 read with Division | of Part Il of the First Schedule of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 withholding tax on dividend income will be deducted for ‘filer" and
‘non-filer’ shareholders at 15% and 30% respectively.

b) Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) vide Letter No.
1(54) Exp/2014-132872-8 dated 24 September 2014 and their subsequent letter No. C.No. 1(17) WHT/20m
dated 1 December 2014, withholding tax will be determined separately on Active/Non-Active Status of
Principal Shareholder as well as Joint-Holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of
joint accounts. In this regard, all shareholders who hold shares with joint shareholders are requested
to provide shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s) in respect of shares
held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Folio/CDS Total Name and gr:;grg:::ng Name and g?:;zct?::]mg
Account No. Shares CNIC No. (No. of Shares) CNIC No. (No. of Shares)
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Notes:

e The required information must reach our Share Registrar by 13 April 2022. Otherwise, it will be
assumed that the shares are equally held by the principal and joint holder(s) and tax will be deducted
accordingly.

e Shareholders are therefore requested to ensure that their CNIC/Passport number has been
recorded by the Participant/Investor Account Services or by the Company’s Share Registrar (in case of
physical shareholding).

e Those corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are requested to have their National Tax
Number (NTN] updated with their respective participants. Corporate physical shareholders should send
a copy of their NTN Certificate to the Company's Share Registrar. All shareholders must specify their
company name and their respective folio numbers while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case
may be.

e Withholding tax exemption from dividend income shall only be allowed if a copy of valid tax
exemption certificate is made available to the Company’s Share Registrar by 13 April 2022.

9. Postal Ballot/E-Voting

Further to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, for the purpose of election of Directors and
for any other agenda item subject to the requirements of Section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act,
2017, shareholders holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding as per law, will be allowed to
exercise their right of vote through postal ballot i.e. by post or e-voting, in the manner and subject to
conditions contained in the said Regulations.

10. Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company shall be required to replace
its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by
the SECP, within a period not exceeding four (4) years from the commencement of the Act, i.e., 30 May
2017. Those shareholders having physical shareholding(s) are encouraged to open a CDC sub - account
with any broker or Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less
form. This is beneficial in many ways, including safe custody and sale of shares at any time, as the
trading of physical shares is not permitted as per the existing regulations of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange.

11. Change of Address and Zakat Status

Shareholders are requested to notify the Company’s Share Registrar if there is any change in their
registered postal address or email address. Shareholders with physical shareholding are requested to
submit non-deduction of Zakat form, if applicable to them. Further, shareholders holding their shares
through CDC are requested to update their participants.

12. Unclaimed Dividend(s)

The Company has previously discharged its responsibility under Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017
whereby the Company approached shareholders to claim their unclaimed dividends in accordance with
the law. Those shareholders, whose dividends still remain unclaimed, are hereby once again requested
to approach the Company to claim their outstanding dividend amounts and/or undelivered share
certificates.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




13. Statutory Code of Conduct at AGM

Section 215 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 28 of the Companies (General Provisions and
Forms) Regulations, 2018, state the Code of Conduct of Shareholders, as follows: Shareholders are not
permitted to exert influence or approach the management directly for decisions which may lead to
creation of hurdles in the smooth functioning of management. The law states that Shareholders shall
not bring material that may cause threat to participants or premises where the AGM is being held,
confine themselves to the agenda items covered in the notice of the AGM and shall not conduct
themselves in a manner to disclose any political affiliation. Additionally, the Company is not permitted
to distribute gifts in any form to its shareholders in its meetings as per Section 185 of Companies Act,
2017.

14. Election of Directors

a)l Any person who seeks to contest the election of Directors shall file with the Company at its
registered office, not later than fourteen (14) days before the above said meeting his/her intention to
offer himself/herself for the election of the Directors in terms of Section 159(3) of the Companies Act,
2017 together with:

e Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for election of directors in terms of Section
159(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, together with the consent to act as director under Section 167(1)
of the Act on a duly filled and signed Form 28.

e Detailed profile along with office address as required under SRO 1196 (1)/2019 issued by SECP,
dated 3 October 2019.

e Adeclaration confirming that:

a. He / She is aware of his/her duties and powers under the relevant laws, Memorandum &
Articles of Association of the Company and regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange; and
b. He / She is not ineligible to become a director of a listed company under any provisions

of the Act, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, and any
other applicable law, rules and regulations.
e Copy of valid CNIC (in case of Pakistan national) / Passport (in case of foreign national), and NTN
& Folio No. / CDC Investors Account No. / CDC Sub-Account No (applicable for person filing consent
for the first time).

b) Independent Directors shall be elected through the process of election of Directors required under
section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017. Independent Directors shall meet the criteria laid down in
section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017 as well as the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent
Directors) Regulations, 2018. The following additional documents are required to be submitted by
candidates intending to contest the election of directors as an Independent Director:

e Declaration by Independent Director(s) under Clause 6(3) of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019; and

e Undertaking on the appropriate denomination of non-judicial stamp paper that he/she meet the
requirements of Regulation 4 (1) of the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors)
Regulations, 2018.
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Statement of Material Fact
Under Section 166(3) of The Companies Act, 2017

Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017 requires that a statement of material facts is annexed to the
notice of the general meeting called for the purpose of election of directors. As a listed company, GSK
Consumer Healthcare Pakistan is required to have two (2] or one third (1/3rd) shareholders of the
Board, whichever is higher, as independent directors on its Board in accordance with the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017. Accordingly, the Company shall ensure
that at least two (2] or one third (1/3rd) shareholders of the Board, whichever is higher, Independent
Directors are elected in accordance with the procedures for election of directors specified in Section
159 of the Companies Act, 2017.

After the contestants file their notice / intention to stand for elections, the Company shall apply the
following criteria for choosing the appointee for appointment as independent director:

* Inclusion of name of independent directors in the databank maintained by the Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance (PICG) duly authorized by SECP

e Appropriate competency, diversity, skill, knowledge and experience of the contestants shall be
assessed.

e The Company shall exercise its own due diligence before selecting a person from the PICG

databank that the contestant meets the independence criteria as mentioned in Section 166(2) of the
Companies Act, 2017.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
Proxy Form |

- I/We of , being a Member of
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited holding ordinary shares, HEREBY
APPOINT of , another Member of
the Company, failing him/her of as my/our proxy in

my/our absence to attend and to vote and act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held virtually at Karachi at 2:00 pm on Monday, 21 March 2022 and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand(s) this day of 20 . Rs. 5/-
Revenue

Signed in the presence of: Stamps

(Signature of Witness 1) (Signature of Witness 2]

Name of Witness: Name of Witness:

Tl CNIC No.: CNIC No.:
HEEEEEREEEEENAN HEEEEEREEEEEREN
Passport No. (Non-Pakistani): Passport No. (Non-Pakistani):

Address: Address:
(Name in Block Letters) Signature of the Shareholder
Folio No.

1. The Member is requested:
(a) to affix revenue stamp of Rs. 5/- at the place indicated above;
(b) to sign in the same style of signature as is registered with the Company;
(c) to write down his/her folio number.

2. For the appointment of the above proxy to be valid, this instrument of proxy must be received at the Office of the Share Registrar of
the Company at CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, 99-B, Block - B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, at least 48
hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

Any alteration made in this instrument of proxy should be initialled by the person who signs it.

4. Inthe case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by proxy will be accepted to the
exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, and for this purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the Register of Members.

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities:
In addition to the above, the following requirements have to be met:

(i) The proxy form must be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
(i) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and of the proxy must be furnished with the proxy form.

(iii) The proxy must produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

(iv) In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney and specimen signature must be submitted

| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
! l
| Notes: :
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
| |
! l
| (unless it has been provided earlier) along with the proxy form(s] to the Share Registrar. :
| |
| |
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GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited
E-Dividend Mandate Form

To: Date:

SUBJECT: BANK ACCOUNT DETAILS FOR PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

Dear Sir / Madam,
|/We/Messrs., , being a/the shareholder(s) of GlaxoSmithKline
Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited (the “Company”), hereby, authorize the Company, to directly credit cash

dividends declared by it in my bank account as specified below:

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No./CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account No. /CDC IAS
CNIC/NICOP/Passport/NTN No. (please attach copy)
Contact Number(s) (Telephone and Mobile Nos.)
Shareholder’s Postal Address

Shareholder’s Bank account details:

Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Number (IBAN)

Bank's Name

Branch Name
Branch Code No
Branch Address

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and | shall keep the Company, informed in case of any
changes in the said particulars in future.

Yours truly,

Signature of Shareholder
(Please affix company stamp in case of corporate entity)

Notes:

-

Those shareholders who hold shares in book-entry form are requested to fill the above-mentioned E-Dividend Mandate Form and
send it to the relevant Broker/Participants/Investor Account Services of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited where
the shareholder’s CDC account is being dealt.

2. Those shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to fill the above-mentioned E-Dividend Mandate Form and send
it to the Company’s Share Registrar address; i.e.; CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, Share Registrar Department, CDC House,
99-B, Block B, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400, Pakistan. Tel: 0800-23275 (CDCSRSL).

3. Incase of non-receipt of IBAN with bank details as requested above, future cash dividend, if any, could be withheld according to the
directives of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

4. GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited and CDCSRSL shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, liability or

claim arising, directly or indirectly, from any error, or failure in performance of any of its obligations whatsoever, caused due to
incorrect payment instructions provided by the shareholder and/or due to any event beyond the control of the bank.

_______________________________________________________________________________________
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Request Form for Transmission of Annual Report & Notice of
Annual General Meeting (AGM) Through Email or in Hard Copy

CDC Registrar Services Limited

CDC House,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, 99-B, Block ‘B’, SMCHS,
Karachi - 74400

SUBJECT: Request for transmission of Annual Reports and Notice of AGM through Email or in Hard copy

I/we hereby request to receive the Annual Report and Notice of AGM through email or in hard copy instead of receiving
the same through CD/DVD/USB as mentioned below:

Name of the Shareholder(s)

Folio No. / CDC Participants ID A/C No.

CNIC No.

Telephone Number

Mobile Number

Passport No. (in case of foreign shareholder)

Valid Email Address

Valid Postal Address

MODE OF RECEIVING ALL FUTURE ANNUAL REPORTS ALONG WITH NOTICE OF AGM THROUGH EMAIL OR IN HARD
COPY UNDER SECTION 223 (6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017, INSTEAD OF RECEIVING THEM THROUGH CD/DVD/USB
(Please select any one option)

OPTION 1: Through email on the valid email address provided above

OPTION 2: Hard copies on my registered postal address

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that I/We will intimate the changes in the
abovementioned information to the Company and / or the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

I/we hereby further authorize the Company to update my/our particulars mentioned above in the member register of the

Company along with email address mentioned.

I/we undertake that by sending the Audited Financial Statements and Notices through e-mail by the Company, the
Company shall be considered compliant with the relevant requirements of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017. In

case a hard copy of Audited Financial Statements and/or Notice of AGM of the Company is desired, a specific request for

the same will be made.

Signature of the Shareholder(s)

Notes:

. Please attach attested photocopy of the valid CNIC / valid Passport
e  This request form is optional and not compulsory

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
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“Keep it Human, Go Beyond, and Do What
Matters Most”
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Sustainability and
Corporate

Social Responsibility







Social and Environmental
Responsibility Policy

GSKCH is committed to drive the mission of helping people to “Do More, Feel Better, Live Longer.”
The company thinks that the development of our connected communities best reflects the Company's
success.

The company’s social and environmental activities and actions have been described in depth refer on
page 254 to 264 of the annual report and they include the following:

. . L

Training & Health & Environment Education
awareness well being conservation
program

It also emphasizes the importance of long-term company development, which is seen in its significant
social investments.

Sustainability Strategy & Focus

Our global future is predicated on long-term viability. We are moving towards higher future
sustainability by developing innovative solutions to lessen adverse impacts on our environment. This is
accomplished through our sustainability strategy, which is based on the approach that values people,
planet, and profit. Our goal drives beyond business for implementing the long-term viability of those
who are directly or indirectly associated with us, as well as the planet. We are dedicated to taking a
broader view of sustainability and making sure that every action we take is consistent with our core
standards. We strive to distribute profits to our shareholders while also ensuring that we can invest in
the needs of our broader shareholder community and the world we live on.

The company invests money into new concepts that lead to better products and services. The company
is taking good care of its employees by providing the training and awareness related to the operational
safety standards through various programmes , contributing towards improving employees productivity
and motivation.

Company’s people has dedicated itself to sustaining a safe business processes by implementing the
following sustainability projects in 2021, our manufacturing sites initiated various environmental
protection measures for water, energy, and waste conservation such as Achievement of Zero Waste to
Landfill and 100% Treatment of Waste Water, endorsed by Environmental Sustainability Center of
Excellence. Moreover, the Elimination of Ozone Depleting Hydrocarbons chemicals from Company’s
operations includes CFCs, HCFS, R-11, R-12 & R-22.

We recognize the value of our people’s health and safety, as well as the importance of preserving and
protecting natural capital for our own long-term sustainability and the well-being of society as a whole.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.




Development Goals

NO IZERD GODDHEALTH QUALITY GENDER CLEAN WATER

POVERTY HUNGER AND WELL-BEING EDUCATION EQUALITY AND SANITATION
[ ] e o [ ] H
it o .
8 A 4

DECENT WORK AND INDUSTRY, INNOVATION 1 0 REDUCED SIISTHHIBIEI}ITIES 1 RESPONSIBLE
ECONOMIC GROWTH ANDINFRASTRUCTURE INEQUALITIES CGONSUMPTION
ANDPRODUCTION

=) Eé_ O

v

CLIMATE LIFE LIFE PEACE, JUSTICE PARTNERSHIPS ;
1 ACTION 14 BELOW WATER 1 ON LAND 1 AND STRONG FORTHE GOALS @

INSTITUTIONS SUSTAINABLE
DEVE!;OPM ENT
@ GOALS

GSK Consumer Healthcare has started its incredible journey with the purpose of “Deliver better
everyday health with humanity.” Our values and expectations are at the heart of everything we do, and
they define our culture. Acting with integrity is non-negotiable, and that means we can be proud of how
we operate. At GSK Ch's we set out clear choices by going beyond, doing what matters most, and
keeping it human so we can deliver extraordinary things to our consumers and customers. we
continued to build on our GSK CH Priorities of Innovation, Performance and Trust as part of our
commitment to deliver game changing business results. To achieve this vision our strategy has
advocated through Advance Technology, strong leadership, employee development, Employee Health
and Safety, and our continued focus on being a Modern Employer.

Go Beyond

Our constant hunger and

Keep It Human

Our dedication to
irresistible energy drives
us to be better, move with
pace and outerforn
competitors

- consumers, customers and
each other demands
unmatched understanging
and empathy

Annual Report 2021
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GOOD HEALTH Goal 3:

AND WELL-BEING

-"\/\' Good Health
and Well-Being

GSK CH Pakistan has an established EHS framework of compliance and constantly raising the bar by
striving to go beyond the local legal environmental, health & safety requirements. EHS is the driving
force of our business operations which ensures safe workplace and healthy environment.

To make sure employee safety, Jamshoro Plant established a healthcare clinic for its employees to
improve their health conditions. The services being offered include screening, doctor consultation,
COVID-19 testing facility and pharmacy with a huge range of medicines. The clinic is operating 6 days a
week and all facilities being provided are 100% free of cost.

Living Safety campaign was launched in 2021 to bolster risk management system, strengthen safety
culture, and enhance continuous improvement.

In addition to that GSK CH has been supporting their employees by offering various programs to make
sure their mental health is taken care; few are as below:

- Employee Assistance Programme (EAP): Practical Advice, Support, or counselling at no cost.

- Mental Health Trainings for Managers: to learn about mental health and understand simple actions
to take support themselves, their team and family.

- Local Health Teams: Face to face support for employees.

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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m' Education

Career development is about building experience and capability and is not defined solely by promotion
and advancement. We offer our employees many opportunities both in our Keep Growing Campus and
in the MyLearning portal, with the most effective mix of learning modalities e.g., instructor-led,
e-learning, blended learning, and social learning. Employees can find suggestions on a wide variety of
topics and get training courses that give in-depth expertise and knowledge to help them grow in their
personal and professional life. We provide performance support, self-assessment tools, and resources
to help an employee develop. In 2021 at Jamshoro site, total no. of 53,832 training were completed with
the Total Training hours of 62,181.

GENDER 10 REDUCED Gﬂal 5/10:

%"j"" =, |Gender Equality /
~ | Reduced Inequalities

We aim to create an inclusive workplace to attract and retain the most talented people from all
background.

Being a modern employer is one of our core Trust commitments - creating an inclusive workplace
where everyone can be themselves, feel good, and keep growing.

Diversity makes us stronger and it is important that we talk, share, and understand our cultural
differences. The principles of Modern Employer and Be You are key to our success as a company. We
want employees to feel supported in being their authentic selves at work. We strive to create inclusive
environment where Everyone have the right to share their own thoughts, feelings, and perspectives.
One way we achieve this is through our Employee Resource Groups, including the Women’s Leadership
Initiative, Disability Confidence Network and Local ERGS.
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CLEANWATER Gﬂal 6:

AND SANITATION

E Clean Water
and Sanitation

Site is maintaining Purified Water system for the managing of Pharmaceutical drugs. It's equipped with
Double stage RO System and various pre-filtration system to reduce TDS and TSS. Site has robust
maintenance plan to sustain Water quality and reduce waste.

e | (G0 9
& Industry, Innovation,
and Infrastructure

In 2021 we embrace transformation and relies more on technology to boost efficiency. Leveraging
technology with our manufacturing and operational expertise has remained our focus over the time.
Furthering this, we are on mission to transform all our reports using Digital Data Analytical tools and
implement projects which could automate the existing system. Multiple initiatives were taken for
reducing paper usage across the site. One of the major project was deployment of Digital OEE Toolkits
on all packaging lines. It has benefited us in reducing paper usage to a huge amount also, gives live
monitoring of machines over web. The main objective of all these projects to make each process more
secure, improve productivity, and reduce paper usage thus bridging the digital gap and promoting
innovation across all processes to facilitate sustainable development.
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'Ililinnn:
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Goal 12:
Responsible Consumption
and Production

Site has promising energy program since many years to convert into Renewable energy. Site has added
around 500KWp of Solar PVs in four phases from 2018 - 2021. Which covers at least 15-20% of total site
annual consumption. It also avoids 581 Tons of Co2 annually.
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B | Goal 13:
€ | Climate Action

Jamshoro is committed towards green practices
and pursue continuous development for
environment. For carbon neutrality exercise this
year, Inkjet printers were converted to Thermal
printers. Thermal labels are much more
environmental friendly as the printers do not use a
ribbon. It reduces the amount of non-recyclable
waste and by-products. As they have a lower
shipping weight, carbon footprint is also greatly
reduced.

Moreover, the tree-plantation drives at Jamshoro
Plant reflect the efforts to preserve the
environment. This environmental campaign
supports the Sustainable Development Goal (SDG)
- Climate Action.

We are glad to announce that, once again GSK
Jamshoro site has received the 18th Annual
Environment Excellence Award (AEEA) 2021:

e Jamshoro site environment sustainability
target of 'Zero Hazardous Waste to Landfill’. This
is being achieved through investing in both
developing an in-house waste management
system and facility and paying a considerable
amount for complete destruction of hazardous
waste through incineration in an EPA approved
facility.

e Our wastewater effluent is being treated in the
“Zero Discharge Wastewater Treatment Plant”
based at Archroma (neighboring company,
formerly known as Clariant). The plant has been
designed with zero discharge as 75% of its
wastewater is being recycled and reused. The
remaining is being sent to evaporation ponds for
natural evaporation. This also advocates our
commitment of posing no harm to the
environment.

e We also committed to conform to the Montreal
Protocol through eradicating the use of CFCs and
HCFCs based refrigerants. We have eliminated the
use of all our R-11 and R-12 based refrigerants
(CFCs).

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Ltd.
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These achievements recognizes our dedicated efforts towards environmental compliance sustainability as
per GSK values. Previously we have been recognized by the National Forum for
Environment & Health committee during 2010, 2011, 2012, 2014, 2015, 2016,
2017, 2018,2019 and 2021.

This Event was organized by NFEH (National Forum for Environment & Health), a purely Non-Governmental,
Non-Profit and Voluntary Organization for promoting Environmental awareness and advancement.
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sustainabilty 227 Highligh

Paid-up Share
capital (No.)

N

Rs. 2,134 Rs. 18.23 117,054,508
million
Received the
18" Annual Environment
Excellence Award
(AEEA) 2021.
LEARNING & SAFE MAN CoviD
TRAININGS ! HOURS ! MANAGEMENT
Total No of i 4,325,323 i 1500+
53,832 ' ' Covid test has been
Training has been completed conducted during
with the Total Training hours of the year
62,181.06.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

GSK CH is highly committed to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR] in Pakistan. As a socially
conscious organization, GSK CH actively contributes to charitable organizations that work for the
welfare of the society.

This year, we have facilitated “The Pakistan Association of the Deaf (PAD)”, which is a leading
organization in Pakistan representing deaf community at regional, national and international level.
Their aim is to enhance the living standards of deaf and enable them to play an active and responsible
role in the society.

Our Grants and Donations (G&D] Committee has generously approved grant for “Ayesha Chundrigar
Foundation [ACF)”, which is an Animal Rescue organization for injured and abused stray animals such
as dogs and cats, wild animals like kites and monkeys and working animals such as donkeys, horses,
and camels. They provide shelter, medical treatment, food, and emotional rehabilitation to animals.
ACF advocates kindness to animals and creates outreach programmes that aim at enabling a
harmonious coexistence of animals and humans.

GSK CH also committed grant for “Health Education & Livelihood Promoters (HELP)”, who are
working for the betterment and stability of underprivileged people of Balochistan. This will enable them
to get Solar Lantern Lights and LifeStraw Community Water Filter which will benefit the deserving
people for 4-5 years.

G&D Committee kindly approved grant to facilitate “Madawa Welfare Society (MWS]”, which is
providing education, training, therapy, and easiness to the students having Down syndrome, Cerebral
Palsy and slow learning problems.

GSK CH strongly believes in giving back and supporting the underprivileged community in Pakistan.
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Unreserved Statement of Compliance
to International Financial Reporting Standards

The management of the Company strongly believes in adherence to unreserved compliance with all
the applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS] issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB] and as adopted by SECP necessary for fair preparation and presentation of
financial information. Compliance to IFRS encourages sufficient disclosures of the financial statements
that are beneficial for informed decisions of stakeholders.

Financial statements for the year have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards issued by IASB as are applicable in Pakistan.

IFRS adoption status is in detail is explained in note 2.5 of the annexed financial statements.

Integrated Reporting Framework

An integrated report is a concise communication about how an organization’s strategy, governance,
performance and prospects, in the context of its external environment, lead to the creation of value
over the short, medium and long term. It is to be prepared in accordance with the Integrated Reporting
Framework (the framework] issued by the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC].

The integrated reporting framework follows a principles-based approach, including the following
guiding principles:

Strategic focus Connectivity Stakeholder
. and future orientation of information . relationships
Materiality Conciseness Reliability SIETRENG7 -
and completeness and comparability

Integrated Report is to be presented by those charged with governance acknowledging the integrity and
compliance with the framework, including the following content:

Organizational Business Risks and
overview and Governance nc
. external . model opportunities
environment
Strategy and Basis of |
. resource Performance . Outlook preparation and
allocation presentation.

At present, the requirement to publish an integrated report is not mandatory in Pakistan. However, the
Company has disclosed some of the above content in it's annual report basis ICAPs BCR checklist.
Please refer table of content for the respective page numbers.
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Framework for Annual Reporting

Best Corporate Report Awards 2021

ORGANIZATIONAL OVERVIEW

AND EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

Particular

1.01 Principal business activities and markets local and international including | 7, 162, 9
key brands, products and services.

1.02 Geographical location and address of all business units including sales units | 202
and plants.

1.03 Mission, vision, code of conduct, culture, ethics and values. 21,23

1.04 | Ownership, operating structure and relationship with group companies [i.e. | 28, 195, 19
subsidiary, associated undertaking etc.] and number of countries in which
the organization operates. Also name and country of origin of the holding
company/subsidiary company, if such companies are a foreign company.

1.05 | Organization chart indicating functional and administrative reporting, |29
presented with legends.

1.06 | Identification of the key elements of the business model of the company 08

1.07 Key quantitative information (Number of persons employed as on the date | 30
of financial statements and average number of employees during the year,
separately disclosing factory employees).

1.08 Position of the reporting organization within the value chain showing | 31
connection with other businesses in the upstream and downstream value
chain.

1.09 Significant factors effecting the external environment and the associated | 33, 34
organization’s response. Also describe the effect of seasonality on business
in terms of production and sales.

1.10 Significant changes from prior years. 34

1.11 Composition of local versus imported material and sensitivity analysis in |34, 35
narrative form due to foreign currency fluctuations.

1.12 Competitive landscape and market positioning. 36
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STRATEGY AND BESOURCE

ALLOCATION

Particular

2.01 Short, medium and long term strategic objectives. 63

2.02 | Strategies in place or intended to be implemented to achieve those strategic | 63
objectives.

2.03 | Resource allocation plans to implement the strategy and financial capital | 63
structure.

2.04 | The effect of technological change, societal issues such as (population and | 63, 33
demographic changes, human rights, health, poverty, collective values and
educational systems), environmental challenges, such as climate change, the
loss of ecosystems, and resource shortages, on the company strategy and
resource allocation.

2.05 | Specific processes used to make strategic decisions and to establish and | 63
monitor the culture of the organization, including its attitude to risk and
mechanisms for addressing integrity and ethical issues.

2.06 |Key performance indicators (KPIs) to measure the achievement against | 63
strategic objectives.

2.07 | Strategy to overcome liquidity problem and the company’s plan to manage its | 64
repayment of debts and meet operational losses.

2.08 | Significant plans and decisions. 64

2.09

Significant changes in objectives and strategies from prior years.

RISKS AND OPPORTUNI

64

Particular

3.01 Key risks and opportunities effecting availability, quality and affordability of | 67 - 68
CAPITALS in the short, medium and long term.

3.02 | Description of the Risk Management Framework including risk management | 67
methodology.

3.03 Sources of risks and opportunities (internal and external). 67 - 68

3.04 | The initiatives taken by the company in promoting and enabling innovation. |63

3.05 Assessment of the ‘likelihood’ that the risk or opportunity will come to fruition | 67 - 68
and the ‘magnitude’ of its effect if it does.

3.06 | Specific steps being taken to mitigate or manage key risks. 67 - 68

3.07 |Board’'s efforts for determining the company’s level of risk tolerance by |67
establishing risk management policies.

3.08 | A statement from the board of directors that they have carried out a robust | 67 - 68
assessment of the principal risks facing the company, including those that
would threaten the business model, future performance and solvency or
liquidity.

3.09 |[Inadequacy in the capital structure and plans to address such inadequacy. 68
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Sr.

Governance

Particular

4.01 Board composition:
a) Leadership structure of those charged with governance. 29
b) Name of independent directors indicating justification for their|73, 76,77
independence.
c) Profile of each director including education, experience and involvement /| 73 - 79
engagement of in other entities as CEO, Director, CFO or Trustee etc.

4.02 | Review Report by the Chairman of the company. 89

4.03 | A statement of how the board operates, including a high-level statement of | 91
which types of decisions are to be taken by the board and which are to be
delegated to management.

4.04 | Shariah Advisor Report and Profile of the Shariah Advisor. 92

4.05 | Annual evaluation of performance, along with description of criteria used for | 92 - 94
the members of the board and its committees, CEO and the Chairman.

4.06 Disclosure if the board’s performance evaluation is carried out by an external | 93
consultant once in three years.

4.07 Details of formal orientation courses for directors. 94

4.08 | Directors’” Training Program (DTP) attended by directors, female executive | 94
and head of department from the institutes approved by the SECP and names
of those who availed exemptions during the year.

4.09 | Description of external oversight of various functions like systems audit /| 95
internal audit by an external specialist and other measures taken to enhance
credibility of internal controls and systems.

410 | a) Policy for remuneration to non-executive directors including independent | 88, 96
directors.

b) Policy of retention of board fee by the executive director earned by him [ 102
against his services as non-executive director in other companies.

4.11 Policy for security clearance of foreign directors. 96

4.12 How the organization’s implemented governance practices exceeding legal | 96
requirements.

4.13 Board's policy on diversity (including gender]), any measurable objectives | 97 - 98
that it has set for implementing the policy, and progress on achieving the
objectives.

4.14 | No. of companies in which the executive director of the reporting organization | 98
is serving as non-executive director.

4.15 a) Names of related parties in Pakistan and outside Pakistan, with whom | 195
the company had entered into transactions or had agreements and / or
arrangements in place during the financial year, along with the basis
of relationship describing common directorship and percentage of
shareholding.
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Sr. Particular Page no.
b) Contract or arrangement with the related party other than in the ordinary | 195
course of businessonanarm’s length basis, if any along with the justification
for entering into such contract or arrangement.
c) Approved policy for related party transactions including policy for disclosure | 98
of interest by directors in this regard.
416 Details of board meetings held outside Pakistan during the year. 104
417 Disclosure of policy for actual and perceived conflicts of interest. 98 - 99
418 Investors’ grievance policy. 213 - 214
419 Policy for safety records of the company. 99
4.20 Disclosure of IT Governance Policy. 50
4.21 Disclosure of Whistle blowing policy established to receive, handle complains | 114
in a fair and transparent manner and providing protection to the complainant
against victimization, and disclosure of the number of such incidences
reported to the Audit Committee during the year.
4.22 | Human resource management policies including preparation of a succession | 84
plan.
4.23 Social and environmental responsibility policy. 253
4.24 | Review by the board of the organization’s business continuity plan or disaster | 117 - 118
recovery plan.
4.25 Disclosure of beneficial (including indirect) ownership and flow chart of group | 99
shareholding and relationship.
4.26 | Compliance with the Best Practices of Code of Corporate Governance. 99 - 100
4.27 | A brief description about role of the Chairman and the CEOQ. 100 - 101
4.28 | Shares held by Sponsors / Directors / Executives. 218
4.29 | Salient features of TOR and attendance in meetings of the board committees | 103, 105
(Audit, Human Resource, Nomination and Risk management).
4.30 | Timely Communication: 202
Date of authorization of financial statements by the board of directors:
within 40 days
4.31 | Audit Committee Report 106
4.32 Presence of the chairman of the Audit Committee at the AGM. 101
4.33 | Where an external search consultancy has been used in the appointment of | 101
the Chairman or a non-executive director, it should be disclosed if it has any
other connection with the company.
4.34 Chairman’s significant commitments and any changes thereto. 101 - 102
4.35 | Disclosure about the Government of Pakistan policies related to company’s | 87 - 88
business/sector in Directors’ Report and their impact on the company | (Future Outlook
business and performance. and Challenges)
4.36 | Pandemic Recovery Plan by the management and policy statement. 17
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PERFORMANCE AND POSITION

Particular

5.01 | Analysis of the financial and non-financial performance using both qualitative
and quantitative indicators showing linkage between:
(a) Past and current performance; and 121 - 148
(b) Performance against targets /budget N/A
(c) Objectives to assess stewardship of management. 121 - 148

5.02 | Analysis of financial statements:
a) Financial Ratios 124 - 135
b) DuPont Analysis 139
c) Free Cash Flow 140 - 141
d) Economic Value Added (EVA) 148

5.03 | Combined analysis both vertical and horizontal of the Balance Sheet and | 143 - 146
Profit and Loss Account for last 6 years.

5.04 | Summary of Cash Flow Statement for last 6 years. 127

5.05 | Graphical presentation of the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and | 122,123, 125 -
analysis in 5.02, 5.03 and 5.04 above. 126,129 - 134

5.06 | Explanation of negative change in the performance against prior year|122,138
including analysis of variation in results reported in interim reports with the
final accounts

5.07 | Information about defaults in payment of any debts and reasons thereof | 68
period.

5.08 | Methods and assumptions used in compiling the indicators. 128

5.09 Cash Flow Statement based on Direct Method. 142

5.10 | Segmental review of business performance. 204

5.1 Share price sensitivity analysis using key variables with the consequent |35
impact on the company’s earning.

5.12 History of major events during the year. 05, 06

5.13 Business rationale of major capital expenditure /projects during the year and | 203
for those planned for next year.

5.14 Brief description and reasons;
a) For not declaring dividend despite earning profits and future prospects of | 83
dividend.
b) Where any payment on account of taxes, duties, levies etc. is overdue or | 68
outstanding.

5.15 | CEO presentation video on the organization’s website explaining the business | 88
overview, performance, strategy and outlook.
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6

Outlook

Sr. Particular

6.01 Forward looking statement. 207

6.02 | Explanation as to how the performance of the entity meets the forward looking | 207
disclosures made in the previous year.

6.03 | Status of the projects in progress and were disclosed in the forward looking | 207
statement in the previous year.

6.04 | Sources of information and assumptions used for projections / forecasts in the | 207
forward looking statement and assistance taken by any external consultant.

6.05 |How the organization is currently equipped in responding to the critical | 208

challenges and uncertainties that are likely to arise.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATI

AND ENGAGEMENT

Particular

7.01 How the company has identified its stakeholders. 211 - 212
7.02 | Stakeholders’ engagement process and the frequency of such engagements | 211 - 212
during the year.
7.03 | Steps taken by the management to encourage the minority shareholders to | 212 - 213
attend the general meetings.
7.04 |Investors’ Relations section on the corporate website. 213
7.05 Issues raised in the last AGM, decisions taken and their implementation | 213
status.
7.06 | Statement of value added and its distribution with graphical presentation: 147
a) Employees as remuneration 147
b) Government as taxes (separately direct and indirect) 147
c) Shareholders as dividends 147
d) Providers of financial capital as financial charges 147
e) Society as donation; and 147
f) Retained within the business 147
7.07 | Stakeholders engagement policy and steps board has taken to solicit and | 215
understand the views of stakeholders through corporate briefing sessions
and disclosure of brief summary of Analyst briefing conducted during the
year.
7.08 Highlights about redressal of investors” complaints. 213 - 214

273
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8

8.01

SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES OF

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particular
Specific Disclosures of the Financial Statements

158 - 202

SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPC
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Particular

9.01 Highlights of the entity’s performance, policies, initiatives and plans in | 253 - 264
place relating to the various aspects of sustainability and corporate social
responsibility.

9.02 | Certifications acquired and international standards adopted for best|253 -264
sustainability and CSR practices.

10.01

Business Model

Particular
Business model including inputs, business activities, outputs and outcomes.

08

STRIVING FOR EXCELLENCE
IN CORPORATE REPORTING

Particular

11.01 | Statement by management of unreserved compliance of International | 267
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB].

11.02 | Adoption of International Integrated Reporting Framework. 267

11.03 | Disclosures beyond BCR criteria. 275

Others

Particular

12.01 | BCR criteria cross referred with page numbers of the annual report. 268 - 274
12.02 | Brief about contents, scope and boundaries of the annual report. 1(b)
12.03 | SWOT analysis. 69 - 70
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Beyond BCR Checklist

S.No Content in the Annual Report Page no.

1 Market dynamics / highlights 06

2 Marketing calendar 16

3 Expert testimonials 14

4 Our People 38 - 60

5 Women employed (permanent / non - contractual ) at ¢ minus - 1 level in 80
percentage

6 Living our values and expectations / new culture and behaviours 97

7 Inside information register 98

8 Zero tolerance retaliation M4

9 Reporting and investigating concerns 14

10 Efforts to encourage shareholders to convert their shares into book entry 212
form

11 Trading in shares by directors and executives etc as required under the law 218

12 Risk management and compliance board 85

13 Integration and supply network optimization committee 108

14 Details of management committee 108 - 111

15 6 years analysis of sales per employee 124, 126
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